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2} GLOBAL DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

31 March 2018
NORTHERN CHINA 4t
20183 H31H Self-operated B4 E: 72 (48)

Licensed &2 f& /5 : 436 (427)
No. of shops /&% H : 508 (475)

CENTRAL CHINA # R
Self-operated B & Ji& 56 (55)
Licensed fh k& /& 243 (217)

No. of shops /5B : 299 (272)
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Worldwide total number of shops
CAMBODIA - 7
. HONG KONG
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* Figures as at 31 March 2017 are shown in brackets iy N 10 (10
SRR RN2017F3 A1 H 2 &= 2@
** This network included Lukfook shops only SINGAPORE AUSTRALIA
4 R RN E IS H N0 SR
10 10
NUMBER OF SHOPS | [S5&#E
- 31 March 2017 Y-0-Y Change
Lukfook Shops 7% ii& & & _ 2017434318 ?Ei@?b
HongKong®% 48 47 +
Macou®fy 10 10 -
28 +2
54 +18
88 +24
-- : 2
402 +30
695 +52
1,296 +108
Supotal it 1561 1,429 +132
R Mm% : ;]
1 +1
CTotal®% 1631 1,496 +135
31 March 2017 Y-0-Y Change
) +1
-_- 4 +1
CTotal®x 1 9 +2

Remarks: During the year under review, the Group operated 11 3D-GOLD self-operated shops established by a joint venture (in which the Group
held a 51% equity interest). As at 31 December 2017, total number of 3D-GOLD points of sale operated by China Gold Silver Group
Company Limited through self-operating and franchising models was approximately 370.
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
2BME

REVENUE AND PROFIT ANALYSIS (ks miion) | HA K5 9 4T (mmss)
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Hong Kong,
Macau &
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653

4.5% 126.6%
(4.0%) Licensing
AREERE

2,930
19.6%
Mainland China

& Wholesaling
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Retailing

Hong Kong, =25
Macau &
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it - B
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Gold &
Platinum

ESR#E

786 383 441

11.9%  112.8% 151.8%
Mainland China  Wholesaling Licensing Gem-set

RE R Heg RARER

Remarks: Comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2017 are 1 Sales = Revenue — Licensing Income
shown in brackets HE A - REEBRA
G HZE201743A318 L FE 2 LR A FRIER AR

2 Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Income
EF=FEEF - REEBRAEF

RETAIL SALES PERFORMANCE | Z&EHEXRIA

Same store sales growth (“SSSG”) represented a comparison of sales of the same Lukfook self-operated shop having full day operations in the
comparable periods and such data did not include sales of licensed shops and Mainland China’s e-commerce business.
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2 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 755 4 22

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE s RIR

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS T2 IFIE IR

(Opening Inventory + Closmg Inventory - 2 = Cost of Inventories Sold* Number of Days for the Year

(BGFE+ BRFE) -2 + E’érhﬁkzﬁ FRHE

(Long-term Bank Loans + Short—term Bank Loans + Bank Overdrafts + Gold Loans — Cash and Bank Balances) -+ Capital and Reserves Attributable
to Equity Holders of the Company

(RERATER+ EHRTER+ BTEZ+ BE2EE R RBTHES) T ARARAEEHE ARIEERRFE
(Long-term Liabilities + Short-term Liabilities) < Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
(REAE+ BHEE) - ARARAERFEARGERNRER

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders — Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
BRFA ARG - ARAREHAEARIGERRER

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders -+ (Long-term Assets + Short term Assets)

BEHEARIEN - (REEE + RHEE)

N

~ W

o
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CORPORATE PROFILE
EREN

Established in 1991, Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is one of the leading jewellery retailers in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. The Group principally engages in the
sourcing, designing, wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing
of a variety of gold and platinum jewellery and gem-set jewellery
products, with a total of over 1,600 shops in Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland China, Singapore, Malaysia, Cambodia, the United
States, Canada and Australia.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in May 1997.

NEEE (BEBR)ARAR ([AAR]) REWBAR (#7184
£ DRI A1F  EEBRPEARNMESHETETHZ —-
AREFETERESERIHS G LIKE SER 2 FE Rt
e AERERTEER AEERRBESS B -PEA
- FTANYE - BARPRDE SRR EB - MEA BN EEF BB
1,600 /& 44

KRBT FEAETEBARSMERARER M-

CORPORATE VISION
TERES

The corporate vision of the Group is to be the “Brand of Hong
Kong, Sparkling the World”. This is also our core brand value. The
Group always puts forth maximum effort for Lukfook to reach its
goal of becoming a globally recognised and desired brand, and
as one of the Hong Kong’s most renowned brands in the luxury
industry, the Group commits to crafting the finest jewellery for
customers to further establish its reputation in the international
market.

[BAERE «EER] BAKRENERBRE kML EE-
AEE-—HEFTH BOBNEAEKASEERARLEER
mhE - ERBEENMAEZmE AEEH) A2 RETRHEER
B OE— PR ERBERTS LBE-
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WONG Wai Sheung #{&%
Chairman and Chief Executive == & 38 1T A2 &k
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”), | hereby present the Group’s annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2018 (“FY2018” or the “Year under review”).

Benefiting from the overall economic recovery, successful product
strategy and positive retail sentiment, the Group’s revenue for
FY2018 recorded satisfactory increase. With a stable level of
overall gross margin, the profit attributable to equity holders for
FY2018 therefore recorded a substantial growth, which was
better than expected.

Generally speaking, during the Year under review, the retail
environment of the Hong Kong and Macau market has improved
due to the increase in visitor arrivals, therefore outperformed
the Mainland China market. Nevertheless, the same store sales
growth of both markets recorded positive growth, regaining a
growth track after three consecutive years of decline.

The Group’s total revenue for the Year under review amounted to
HK$14,578,409,000 (2017: HK$12,807,277,000), representing
an increase of 13.8% over last year. Profit attributable to equity
holders increased by 34.7% to HK$1,369,393,000 (2017:
HK$1,016,838,000), with earnings per share of HK$2.33 (2017:
HK$1.73). The board of directors of the Company proposed a
final dividend of HK$0.55 per share, together with the interim and
special dividends of HK$0.55 per share in total paid in December
2017, the total dividend for FY2018 amounted to HK$1.10 per
share (2017: HK$1.10 per share). The dividend payout ratio is
47.2% (2017: 63.5%) on a full year basis.

Despite the slowing economic growth in Mainland China, its GDP
growth was amongst those at the top of the world. Given the
considerable growth potential of the middle-class population, the
Group continued to actively pursue further development in the
Mainland China market. During the Year under review, the Group
opened a net total of 132 Lukfook shops in Mainland China,
and added 1 shop in each of Hong Kong, San Francisco of the
United States and Cambodia as well. As at 31 March 2018, the
Group had a total of 1,631 “Lukfook” shops globally (of which
1,406 were licensed shops and 225 were self-operated shops).
Together with 11 “3D-GOLD” self-operated shops in Mainland
China, there were 1,642 shops in total globally, spanning over
Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China, Singapore, Korea, Malaysia,
Cambodia, the United States, Canada and Australia.

BAIAR :

RABREAEBEE (EB)BRAA ([ARQ
A REMBAR (HBIAEE]ERIRES
N & EE £2018F3 8318 IEFE (201884
FIK[DBEFE])22FEE-

EENEEREEE EnREZANRTER
WE&? AREBN20188 FH) A SRS IE 7848
£ MBREMNERENIBEKTF <2018 F
E’\JTE SREE AR B SRS R B IR - I
SRR

FRRRE - MR E AN BRM IS E RS AR
B TERRBUBRTRE EHRR[A L
BRPEAETIS AN MLEEHEER
HEHREEER BEAE=ZFNKE ERTT
&,

AR E B EEFE /R A B14,578,409,000
77T (20174 £ 12,807,277,00058 ©) » & &=
FRIAFIZIN18.8% - = FH A FEAE & F Al
1 1134.7% % 1,369,393,000/% 7T (20174 :
1,016,838,000/%8 7T ) * Bk & F /22.833% T
(20175 1,738 70) - AR AIE S GEHIRN
FEIRR B & H0.558 7T 0 B[R B 120179124
IR SR R OER R B AR B A #8065 T
2018 F R B & A FR1.108 7T (20174
BE1.1087T) - 2FIRELLE B47.2% (2017
F:635%) ¢

HAPBEAMEOESERE HEEREER
BEHERDERERFIS]  FEREADATEHL
RENT AEBNSEERBIGHERRA
5 o BB FE A - AP B Rk F 125132
NEEE TERE ER=EMARBES
AR /N A8 5 &8 - 20183 A31H  AEEH
REERHE1,631/ [N&] [H4 (HF1,406/
BmiE)E  225MABEE) M ENEMAF
BR8] 845 25%EH1,6420
E%ﬁ BN EE R R R A BN 8
SRR SRIEE KB IE R RORM -

4 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

OUTLOOK

During the Year under review, attributable to the improved overall
economic environment and increased visitor arrivals in Hong
Kong and Macau, despite a higher base in the second half of
the financial year than the first half, the business performance
of the second half of the financial year was even better than
expected. Moreover, stepping into the new financial year, since
April 2018, the market sentiment remained positive, especially for
the Hong Kong and Macau market. The same store sales growth
maintained at a double-digit and the same store sales of gem-set
jewellery products in the Mainland market restored to a positive
growth. However, under the influence of US-China trade war and
geopoalitics, there are still many uncertainties around. Therefore,
the Group remains prudently optimistic about its business
development and expects continuing growth in its business in the
coming year. Moreover, with the anticipated considerable growth
of the middle-class population in Mainland China, the Group
also remains optimistic about the mid- to long-term business
prospects. The Group will focus on product offering enrichment,
market coverage enlargement in Mainland China and market
oriented strategies to penetrate into the mass market, covering
middle-class, wedding as well as kids.

The implementation of policies on pushing forward urbanisation
in Mainland China has led to a significant increase in per capita
income. In light of the strong growth potential in the Mainland
China market, the Group will continue to actively pursue further
development in the Mainland China market, and the Group’s
target for net shop additions in Mainland China for the new
financial year will be at least 120 shops. Moreover, given the
satisfactory performance of the Group’s e-commerce business
in Mainland China and the active consumption of consumers
from younger age group on online sales platforms, the Group
will continue to develop the e-commerce business and further
strengthen cooperation with e-commerce platforms in Mainland
China. The Group will also continue to promote sales of good-
value-for-money jewellery products on online platforms to attract
more young consumers, thereby raising the Group’s brand
awareness. The Group targets to grow e-commerce revenue by
30% in the coming year.

AR

REBEFE HRBRBEEREEMNE A
BEEANRITAERE BME M EERL
FER THHEEBRRDULEBRLT - BE
EAFFER (L2018 FMA AN ES  TER
SRFFRIFHEE - CHBRTIS - [5 5518
RGERFEMHFTIRE - MAMIKE & EmF
EHEMBERIEER - EXPXEZE L&
BoaRE NBEREZ THEAREE - it ANEE
HRFEBERDVEELBREE WHEX
BraF@EER -85 EPEAMBPEADE
RREFOFEHT AEEHNHPREEBANR
MELE UHEBETREEEMMAS 1
PEAMIBATISE S X LT I5E R R A
BERETE BEIZEMGHOARTE -

B A HE B TR © A URA K KR
Tt BRAMTHISNERSDERE S BULA
SEeHERGMREPEAMTS XA T
o o B 8 3 2 I8 RS S D 120/
ZBE-RmINERAEEBETBEAMETH
BEBERER RFEHEXNELBEETS
KO ERR AEESEETETRANME %
REFABGER LINRREFEHEEFLENG
E- AREBETHEEN B LFESEELS
MIREEMHZHE RIIEZFEHEEE I
EUERAAEENREAEE - AEERKEF
BEFEBBRANERBIZEH30% e
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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In light of different purchasing power and spending habits of
customers from different age groups, the Group will adopt holistic
approach to expand its sales markets. We will also continue to
attract customers and encourage local consumption by visual
merchandising enhancement, cross-selling boosting and VIP
promotional activities, so as to improve sales and profits. As social
media platforms and mobile applications will be important sales
platforms in the future, the Group will showcase, promote and
market its products on Facebook and WeChat, etc.

In addition to its efforts to broadening income sources by different
means, the Group will strive to enhance productivity and cost-
effectiveness in every operational aspect, including improvement
of service quality control, enhancement of support to licensees,
promotion of continuous improvement culture and full automation
of operational processes, so as to improve efficiency and reduce
costs in the hope of delivering better results to its shareholders.

In the long run, driven by the unique geographic and tax
advantages of Hong Kong and Macau, the Group’s cumulative
brand awareness and extensive retail network, the management’s
effective sales strategies plus cost-effectiveness enhancement
measures, the increasing per capita income in Mainland China,
as well as the solid customer demand for jewellery products, the
outlook for jewellery industry remains promising, which will be
conducive to the sustainable development of the Group.

| would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all our staff
members, shareholders, customers, business partners and other
stakeholders for their unfaltering support and contributions to
the Group’s continuing success. Going forward, the Group will
adhere to pragmatic and sound growth measures, strengthen its
competitive advantages and further enhance its leading position
in the market, so as to generate sustainable returns for its
shareholders and set a new benchmark for corporate excellence.

By order of the Board
WONG Wai Sheung

Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018

HRTRFREEEEZETRBE N MHE
B AEBBRREEEREABAEHE
M5 BPIREEEEBIRERMRY - XX 1E
HMVIPHEERE) WalBE HHALHE
RS HEMNE - BRI F e R TFHER
BABEERAREZNHET S AREHIA
HENMESETERRT SELEE-

BRARRIDEFRRIN AEBTEROESE
EBEERNRITEENRRA RS EPEE
WE RIS E 2R EFE - N5 B kR R Y SR
EBREES LR EEREEHE A BLEE
Ie PABRFT AR BB A A - BB R IR R 2K
FEXRS-

REME BEERBRFOMIERTHES
FEFERRBEHNMENEE  EANTERLE
B BB A HE RS  SIRE S KA M S
e K B A AR A Z IR S I EEE
HRKEERIDBEBRIOMIERFR  KEITE
AISIDRER BN ARBEXBOFEER-

AEERFENKY 2ERMHET BR-
BE EBEANEMSNENRAIIBNER
BURAZBUBAROHE | RF - AEED
BABERENERERE  MERFED &
—HEREAEERNTIS LR - /R
o SRR A (O e M A ST R T RO R SR AR

AEEGD
FERITHARE
RER

7B 201856 H27H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R W MDA
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue

A

HK$14,578SM BB # T
+13.8%

¢

Operating Profit
#ERw

HK$1,621M B & &
+25.7%

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders
REBBAELET

HK$1,369M B & & T

+34.7%

Mainland China E-commerce Business

Performance

hEAMEFREEREREA

Revenue W A : +88.7% Y-0-Y Change ¥z & &1t

Contribution to Mainland China Retail Revenue*

ERE AT ERAR

15.5% (FY2017 B4 4:11.0%)

# Sales of self-operated shops and e-commerce business
BEEREFHBEEBHES

Results

Benefiting from the overall economic recovery, successful
product strategy and positive retail sentiment, Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) recorded revenue growth
of 13.8% to HK$14,578,409,000 (2017: HK$12,807,277,000)
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (the “Year under review”).
With a stable overall gross margin of 25.7% (2017: 25.6%),
gross profit therefore rose by 14.2% to HK$3,741,377,000
(2017: HK$3,277,061,000), while the total operating expenses
to revenue ratio decreased to 15.9% (2017: 16.8%). Therefore,
operating profit improved by 25.7% to HK$1,620,806,000
(2017: HK$1,289,317,000). Operating margin was 11.1% (2017:
10.1%), while net margin increased by 1.4 p.p. to 9.4% (2017:
8.0%). Profit attributable to equity holders increased by 34.7% to
HK$1,369,393,000 (2017: HK$1,016,838,000), which was higher
than expected. Basic earnings per share were HK$2.33 (2017:
HK$1.73).

MERB

Basic Earnings per Share
SREFZT

HK$2.33 &t

+34.7%

Proposed Final Dividend per Share
BikEEEREKRR

HK55 Cents &1l

Annual Dividend Payout Ratio

2HEIRB LT 47.2%

Overall Net Shop Additions
ERPRRES

Lukfook 7\ii& : +135

Mainland China F7 B At +132
Hong Kong, Macau & Overseas
BB RPIREIN: +3

3D-GOLD £EF 8 : +2
Mainland China A B A : +2

E

XERNBREEEER ERRBEUARTE
RART ~EEB(BEB)BRAF (IR
AR REWNBAR (GBI AEE])ESE
201853 ASIHIEFE ([HEFE])MIKA
# f113.8% % 14,578,409,0007% 7 (20174F :

12,807,277,000/8 70) - AR BB EF K E RN
25.7% (20174 : 25.6% ) M IEE K F - BB EF
I3 51 T 14.2%%3,741,377,0007% 7T (2017
£ :3,277,061,000/ 7T ) M 248 & F 14 Uk
AL R BTN & E15.9% (20174 : 16.8% ) °
I 48 55 F | FH25.7%%1,620,806,0005 7T
(20174 : 1,289,317,000/8 7T ) » 4% & % F R
A11.1% (20174 :10.1% ) - EF|EBIIEFH1 4
EE DB E.4% (20175 :8.0% ) < HEHEFH
A &A% B FF34.7% %= 1,369,393,000/8 7T
(20174 :1,016,838,000/8 7T ) ' o A TEHA
fREAREFI A£2.338 7T (20174F 1 1.73/87T) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
BEE MO

Overview

During the Year under review, the Group added a net total of
135 new Lukfook shops worldwide, including a net addition
of 132 shops in Mainland China, 1 self-operated shop in both
Hong Kong and San Francisco of the United States plus the first
licensed shop in Cambodia. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had
a global network of 1,642 shops (2017: 1,505 shops), including
1,631 Lukfook shops (2017: 1,496 shops) and 11 3D-GOLD self-
operated shops (2017: 9 shops) operated in Mainland China,
with business spanning across Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland
China, Singapore, Korea, Malaysia, Cambodia, the United States,
Canada and Australia.

&

Revenue by Business
WA (A& 2)

10,995
114.3%

Retailing
2E

75.4%

(75.1%) 653

4.5% 126.6%
(4.0%) - Licensing
LSS

20.1%

(20.9%) 2,930

19.6%

Wholesaling
He3x

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2017 are shown in brackets

The retail business was the Group’s primary source of revenue.
During the Year under review, its revenue rose by 14.3% year-on-
year to HK$10,995,093,000 (2017: HK$9,618,677,000) under the
improving overall retail sentiment, accounting for 75.4% (2017:
75.1%) of the Group’s total revenue. With increased sales mix of
gem-set jewellery products, segmental profit of the retail business
therefore increased by 24.2% to HK$857,092,000 (2017:
HK$690,021,000), accounting for 51.0% (2017: 48.6%) of the
total; and its segmental profit margin was 7.8% (2017: 7.2%).

Attributable to the increase in the number of licensed shops, the
wholesale business revenue rose by 9.6% over the corresponding
period last year to HK$2,930,114,000 (2017: HK$2,672,459,000),
accounting for 20.1% (2017: 20.9%) of the Group’s total revenue.
However, in order to enhance market competitiveness, the
wholesale price of gem-set jewellery products have been reduced.
In addition, the realised profit of the gem-set jewellery products
of inter-segmental wholesale transactions in Mainland China went
back to a more normal level. These two factors led to decrease
in gross margin of wholesale business, resulting in the decline
in its segmental profit by 12.8% to HK$382,608,000 (2017:
HK$438,891,000), accounting for 22.8% (2017: 30.9%) of the
total. Its segmental profit margin was 13.1% (2017: 16.4%).

8 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 H (

AND ANALYSIS

s
REBEFENRN  AEBR 2R FIEE135/H <
BIEE  REN R E A F L 8132/ NEE
MER=EMSERIHEEERERBER
T EMSEE - R2018FE3A31H AEE R
Ik H1,642/ 5 & (20174 £ 1,505/ ) + H
B 151,631 1& 5 i (20174 1,496 ) -
MEPERAMELNIIBESEEFLE (2017
Foof)  EBBRES R PRALM - H
by BB FBIRPN L RIBE CEH - NEKX
TR

& Segmental Profit by Business
D EREF (A E D)
857
51.0% 124.2%
(48.6%) Retailing
E2
383 a41
112.8% 22.8% 151.8%

(30.9%) Licensing

Wholesaling
il TR SRS

RN A0 7S E T

TEEBAREBETEZRARR - REREF
ER EEETERANNRE T TERA
1 FH#AN14.3% 2 10,995,093,000/% 7T (2017
F:9,618,677,0008 7t ) " (h AR &£ B &I A
75.4% (2017 : 75.1% ) - A YR B & #i E m 1Y
HERA ZEEBKND I EF EFA24.2%
£857,092,0005% 7T (20174 : 690,021,000
TT) 1L A51.0% (20174 : 48.6% ) * HH &
AR ET7.8% (2017F :7.2%) °

HEBEEBRAZT BN REIES B OB RE
[ H F F+9.6%%E2,930,114,0007% 7T (2017
F :2,672,459,000/8 L) (G AL E AW A W
20.1% (2017 :20.9% ) B KB EHHME R K
HBEERAMAETSHEF LM N N LEF
BERNMHKEEHER D BEMBEZFINEE
IR F) B | B R IEF K bt MR =
EENEMNETR S HESIEFTHK12.8%
382,608,000/ 7T (20174 : 438,891,000/
TT) "G L 222.8% (20174 1 30.9% ) * HH &
AR E131% (2017F 1 16.4% ) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB H RS

Licensing income, which accounted for 4.5% (2017: 4.0%) of the
Group’s total revenue, increased by 26.6% to HK$653,202,000
(2017: HK$516,141,000) due to an increase in the number of
licensed shops as well. Its segmental profit margin significantly
improved to 67.5% (2017: 56.3%) because of high fixed
cost proportion in its cost structure. It helped to offset the
impact of the reduction in wholesale gross margin of gem-set
jewellery products. Its segmental profit increased by 51.8% to
HK$440,915,000 (2017: HK$290,384,000), accounting for 26.2%
(2017: 20.5%) of the total.

& Sales' by Product
HE (UERED)

7,725
110.2%
Gold &
Platinum
HEERAE

55.5%
(57.1%)

6,200

e 117.4%
a: o G . t
(42.9%) gy

" Sales = Revenue - Licensing Income
2 Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Income

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2017 are shown in brackets

Gold products remained the most favourite item. Sales of gold
and platinum products increased by 10.2% to HK$7,725,533,000
(2017: HK$7,012,528,000), accounting for 55.5% (2017: 57.1%)
of the overall sales (Group revenue minus licensing income).
As gross margin of gold products stayed flat at around 15.0%
(2017: 15.2%), gross profit of gold and platinum products
therefore increased by 8.8% to HK$1,191,303,000 (2017:
HK$1,094,924,000), accounting for 36.2% (2017: 36.9%) of the
overall gross profit (consolidated gross profit of the Group minus
gross profit of licensing income). On the other hand, sales of
gem-set jewellery products rose by 17.4% to HK$6,199,674,000
(2017: HK$5,278,608,000), accounting for 44.5% (2017: 42.9%)
of the overall sales. Because of reduction in gross margin
in Mainland China’s wholesale business, gem-set jewellery
products’ gross margin decreased by 1.7 p.p. to 33.8% (2017:
35.5%), while its gross profit, as a result, only increased by 11.9%
to HK$2,096,130,000 (2017: HK$1,873,848,000), accounting for
63.8% (2017: 63.1%) of the overall gross profit.

mBEBKANEREESE /LM
+F26.6%ZE653,202,0005% Jr (20174 :
516,141,000 7T ) + {h 2 & [E B U A 594.5%
(20174 : 4.0% ) - AR ERAE BT ETEEA
tbEm s EoEaF = E i KRk E £67.5%
(20174 :56.3% ) ' BB HI W ERE & #1 E M b
BEFETERAFE - O EaFIRIE hN51.8%
Z440,915,00078 7T (20174 : 290,384,000/
T0) A EE A26.2% (20174 : 20.5% ) °

& Gross Profit?by Product
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(36.9%) 18.8%

Gold &
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EER#HE
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Gem-set
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TOHE = A - REEBRA
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iR A R0 7 F B

ECEMARYEBIER ERWNSER E
$HE T FH10.2%%27,725,533,000/% 7T (2017
F:7,012,528,000870) - (LR IHER (A&
BB E BB EB KA ) K955.5% (20174 :
571%) "R E S E M EFEHFFRN15.0%
£ (2017F :15.2% ) &= RIS EREF
A I 32 118.8% 2 1,191,303,000/8 7T (20174 :
1,094,924,0004 70) 1 # B EF (K&K E 4R
AEFREREEBRWAEFN) #936.2% (2017
F:369%) F—HE HKEEBMHERNHEE
B FH17.4%%6,199,674,0005 JT (20174 :
5,278,608,000/8 7T ) - 1t B B8 34 & RE M144.5%
(20174 : 42.9% ) - IR E & &0 & on F) £ F X A
ESfeslEIANpa kit =9 e | BN TN 7 B4
&l & 5 25 Z33.8% (20174 : 35.5% ) » H FE |
It R+ FH11.9%%2,096,130,0005% 7t (2017
F 1 1,873,848,000/8 7T ) + 1h B B2 EF#963.8%
(20174 :63.1%) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB H RS

During the Year under review, the overall same store sales growth*
of the Group, after three consecutive years of decline, turned to
a positive growth of +9.2% (2017: -18.3%). SSSG for the Hong
Kong and Macau market was +9.4% (2017: -19.5%) and that for
the Mainland China market was +4.6% (2017: -4.8%). SSSG for
gold and platinum products was +6.6% (2017: -24.6%) and that
for gem-set jewellery products was +13.3% (2017: -6.3%).

The Group has been striving to diversify its product mix to offer
customers with more choices. Since 2010, the Group has been
engaging in the mid- to high-end watch business. As at 31
March 2018, the Group was the authorised dealer of 24 watch
brands, including BALL and its BALL for BMW series, BALMAIN,
BULOVA, CERTINA, COINWATCH, DOXA, EMILE CHOURIET,
ENICAR, ERNEST BOREL, ETERNA, HAMILTON, H. MOSER
& CIE, LONGINES, LOUIS ERARD, LUDOVIC BALLOUARD,
MIDO, OMEGA, RADO, ROMAGO SWISS, TISSOT, URWERK,
VICTORINOX SWISS ARMY, WENGER and BIJOUMONTRE. For
the Year under review, the revenue of watch business decreased
by 14.8% to HK$179,988,000 (2017: HK$211,182,000) when
compared with last year, accounting for 1.2% (2017: 1.6%) of the
Group's total revenue.

Same store sales growth ("SSSG’) represented a comparison of sales of
the same Lukfook self-operated shop having full day operations in the
comparable periods and such data did not include sales of licensed shops,
and Mainland China’s e-commerce business.

REBFEAN AEBERER/EHEER"
HBEEE=FH NKELE A+9.2% (2017
F:-183%) BAERBRFIMBHNRIEHEE
B R AE+9.4% (20174 1 -19.5% ) » A E A
IS A B+4.6% (201756 -4.8%) - &S
FiAcEMMRB/EHEE R A1+6.6% (2017
Fr-246%) GLEEMHERNBEHEEEER
B 5+13.3% (20174 : -6.3% ) °

TEE-—EHEHERRZTILER AERIRMH
FZiEEQ2010F 8 AEBHE+F S IEE
RET F2018F3A31H AL E A24(EE
MR RIBCHE REeREERRE K
RMEGTRHT RN B2 ERE-FHN-
BIERZ B MOKBE - R RO B -
BEEOELRBE FAEE ORE HEK-
LUDOVIC BALLOUARD * & « BUKHI ~ B
I EARE Rl BT BK - EWmTEX
BB -REBEFTEN REEKREHHK
A EF T HK14.8%%179,988,0007 7t (2017
F:211,182,000/8 7T ) " E A& B B U A1.2%
(20175 :1.6%) °

R EER ([[FEHEER])BA—F 158
B AL BBA TR A S EMHERILER FHE
BT BRI R B A B F 7 55 498
EAE e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW
&

Revenue by Market
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Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2017 are shown in brackets
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas

Hong Kong

The Hong Kong market was the key source of revenue for the
Group. Visitors from Mainland China had been the major driver
for the retail business growth in Hong Kong for the past few
years. Despite the impact of the slowdown in economic growth in
Mainland China and the changes to the Individual Visit Scheme,
there was gradual improvement in consumption expenditure per
capita and spending power of consumers recently, contributed
by the local policy focus of promoting tourism. According to
the statistics on visitor arrivals to Hong Kong published by the
Hong Kong Tourism Board in January 2018, visitor arrivals
from Mainland China in 2017 rose by 3.9% vyear-on-year to
approximately 44.45 million. According to the visitor arrival
statistics published in April 2018, Mainland Chinese visitors from
January to March 2018 increased by 12.6% year-on-year to
approximately 12.18 million. In respect of tourist spending, the
value of sales of jewellery, watches and clocks, and valuable gifts
in 2017 increased by 5.2% when compared to 2016, according
to the figures on retail sales released by the Census and Statistics
Department of Hong Kong in May 2018. The sales value of
jewellery, watches and clocks, and valuable gifts from January to
March 2018 rose by 21.7% over the corresponding period last
year. It indicated the recovery of the retail market and a positive
market sentiment. Therefore, the Group’s retail revenue in the
Hong Kong market increased by 7.0% to HK$6,664,827,000
(2017: HK$6,227,060,000) during the Year under review. As at
31 March 2018, the Group operated a total of 48 self-operated
shops (2017: 47 shops) in Hong Kong.

F& R RBsI

&8

EEMSAAEENEBERANR  FERL
IREEBESF EREDEATEERER
ZEEB) S - AT FI A B P 48 TS R AR
MEANBEBRARZVE BRAMBNHEE
IRBEEEE - AV HBERHBEEE IR
WE BIEEBREEREBN2018F1 A AMH
A IR B ST BIERA T 2017 F A B R
IR FIR G 1B IN3.9% E 4144 A5 F E AR - T
R2018F4 A R 2 s BIRE St 8RBT
2018F1 A =3 A K a5 B By H Bl A b ik 5 4% &
FERLIEHIN2.6%E£12.18F B AKX ik EH
BHE BEBRTSER2018F5A 8 %
MEEEHEERHEFTER 2017TF2FNHKHE
Ei ERE A EEYA N EEEE2016F
B EFA52% : M2018F1 AZ3AMKEE -
EHREAEEMMEEBEREAFRLA L
F21.7% REMZEMSELER  [ART -
Eit AEERCEFEEEEMBENTEWR
A HN7.0%%6,664,827,000/ 7T (20174 :
6,227,060,0007% 7T ) ° R2018F3 310 * A%
EAEEBEEN/EF A48B B L5 (20174
47F8) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Macau

According to the tourism statistics published by the Statistics and
Census Service of the Macau Special Administrative Region on
30 April 2018, visitor arrivals to Macau in 2017 increased by 5.4%
over last year to 32.61 million; while the number of visitor arrivals
from January to March 2018 rose by 8.6% year-on-year. With the
better retail sentiment in Macau than in Hong Kong, the Group’s
revenue generated from the Macau market increased by 18.4%
to HK$1,833,983,000 (2017: HK$1,549,409,000) during the Year
under review. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a total of 10
self-operated shops (2017: 10 shops) in Macau.

Overseas

Adhering to its motto “Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the World”,
the Group has been seeking new opportunities around the world
in recent years. During the Year under review, the Group added 1
Lukfook self-operated shop in San Francisco of the United States
and the first Lukfook licensed shop in Cambodia. As at 31 March
2018, the Group operated a total of 12 overseas shops (2017:
10 shops), including self-operated shops of 1 in Singapore, 2 in
Malaysia, 4 in the United States, 2 in Canada and 1 in Australia,
as well as 1 licensed shop in both Korea and Cambodia.

Retail revenue from the Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
markets increased by 10.2% to HK$8,771,979,000 (2017:
HK$7,959,286,000), accounting for 60.2% (2017: 62.1%) of
the Group’s total revenue. Its segmental profit rose by 36.2%
to HK$697,739,000 (2017: HK$512,408,000) as a result of
the increase in sales mix of gem-set jewellery products and
the benefits of operating leverage, which accounted for 41.5%
(2017: 36.1%) of the total. Its segmental profit margin was 8.0%
(2017: 6.4%). Its wholesale business revenue slightly decreased
by 1.1% to HK$706,194,000 (2017: HK$713,900,000),
accounting for 4.8% (2017: 5.6%) of the Group’s total revenue.
Its segmental profit increased by 18.4% to HK$160,148,000
(2017: HK$135,229,000) because of the increase in centralised
purchases, accounting for 9.5% (2017: 9.5%) of the total, while
its segmental profit margin increased to 22.7% (2017: 18.9%).
Benefited from the new consultancy services income from
certain authorised suppliers, Hong Kong'’s licensing income
was HK$36,563,000, accounting for 0.3% of the Group’s
total revenue. Its segmental profit was HK$36,496,000, which
accounted for 2.2% of the total.

1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Overall speaking, total revenue from the Hong Kong, Macau
and overseas markets increased by 9.7% to HK$9,514,736,000
(2017: HK$8,673,186,000) during the Year under review,
accounting for 65.3% (2017: 67.7%) of the Group’s total revenue.
Its segmental profit increased by 38.1% to HK$894,383,000
(2017: HK$647,637,000), accounting for 53.2% (2017: 45.6%)
of the total, while its segmental profit margin was 9.4% (2017:
7.5%).

The SSSG for gold and platinum products in the Hong Kong,
Macau and overseas markets was +5.6% (2017: -26.1%), while
that for gem-set jewellery products improved to +14.6% (2017:
-6.8%).

& Mainland China
i E it
Revenue WA
2,223 159
43.9% 134.0% 110.3%
(40.1%) Retailing Retailing
z 25

616

119.5%
12.2% Licensing
(12.5%) (TS S

2,224 223
43.9% 113.5% 126.7%
47:40 Wholesaling Wholesaling
( @ # 3 #3

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2017 are shown in brackets

BEMS DESER 5 R LRGN
S B W A EFI.7%ZE9,514,736,000/5 JT
(20174 : 8,673,186,0005 7T ) » 1 74~ &= [H &
BE U AB5.3% (20174 :67.7% ) * M E 2 &
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Mainland China

During the Year under review, because of the improvement in
the retail environment and the increase in the number of self-
operated shops, retail revenue from the Mainland China market
grew substantially by 34.0% to HK$2,223,114,000 (2017:
HK$1,659,391,000), accounting for 15.2% (2017: 13.0%) of the
Group’s total revenue. As the gross margin of gold products
returned to a more normal level, its segmental profit decreased by
10.3% to HK$159,353,000 (2017: HK$177,613,000), accounting
for 9.5% (2017: 12.5%) of the total profit. Its segmental profit
margin was 7.2% (2017: 10.7%). The SSSG for gold and platinum
products in Mainland China was +6.8% (2017: -8.2%) and that for
gem-set jewellery products was -0.7% (2017: +4.7%).

Due to the increase in the number of new licensed shops, revenue
of the wholesale business in the Mainland China market rose
by 13.5% to HK$2,223,920,000 (2017: HK$1,958,559,000),
which accounted for 15.3% (2017: 15.3%) of the Group’s
total revenue. With the declined gross margin as a result of
reduction in wholesale price of gem-set jewellery products for
enhancing market competitiveness, plus its realised profit on inter-
segmental transactions going back to a more normal level, its
segmental profit decreased by 26.7% to HK$222,460,000 (2017:
HK$303,662,000), accounting for 13.2% (2017: 21.4%) of the
total. Its segmental profit margin was 10.0% (2017: 15.5%).

FERit
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5 R B7.2% (20174 :10.7% ) - F K
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Licensing income increased by 19.5% to HK$616,639,000 (2017:
HK$516,141,000) due to the increase in the number of licensed
shops as well, accounting for 4.2% (2017: 4.0%) of the Group’s
total revenue. Its segmental profit margin increased substantially
10 65.6% (2017: 56.3%) because of high fixed cost proportion in
its cost structure, offsetting the impact of wholesale gross margin
decline of gem-set jewellery products. The segmental profit of
licensing increased significantly by 39.3% to HK$404,419,000
(2017: HK$290,384,000), which accounted for 24.1% (2017:
20.5%) of the total.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a total of 1,561 shops
(2017: 1,429 shops) under the “Lukfook” brand name in Mainland
China, including 157 self-operated shops (2017: 133 shops)
and 1,404 licensed shops (2017: 1,296 shops). During the Year
under review, the Group reported a net increase of 108 Lukfook
licensed shops (2017: 36 shops) and 24 Lukfook self-operated
shops (2017: 28 shops) in Mainland China. 17 (2017: 23 shops)
of the new self-operated shops were opened by a joint venture
(in which the Group held a 51% equity interest) established with
a licensee. Together with 11 3D-GOLD self-operated shops, the
Group operated a total of 1,572 shops in Mainland China.

&
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FY2018 Mainland China E-Commerce Business Performance
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In light of the rapid development of e-commerce, revenue of
e-commerce business from Mainland China increased by 88.7%
to HK$343,875,000 (2017: HK$182,198,000) during the Year
under review, accounting for 15.5% (2017: 11.0%) of the retail
revenue in Mainland China and 3.1% (2017: 1.9%) of the Group’s
retail revenue. Sales of gold and platinum products accounted
for 77.3% (2017: 75.5%) of its sales mix while sales of gem-set
jewellery products accounted for 22.7% (2017: 24.5%).

Overall speaking, during the Year under review, revenue
from the Mainland China market increased by 22.5% to
HK$5,063,673,000 (2017: HK$4,134,091,000), accounting
for 34.7% (2017: 32.3%) of the Group’s total revenue. Its
segmental profit increased by 1.9% to HK$786,232,000 (2017:
HK$771,659,000), accounting for 46.8% (2017: 54.4%) of the
total; and its segmental profit margin was 15.5% (2017: 18.7%).

Financial Impact in relation to Investments and
Operating Activities in HKRH? & Its Subsidiaries

&

Profit/(Loss)
27,/ (E8)

FY2018

HK$M B &5 7T 2018B} &

50% Share of Profit/(Loss) of

Associate
i A TS0 % &, (518) Bk

Valuation Gain/(Loss) on
Convertible Bond
AR ESHESR (BE)

Wholesale Gross Profit

HEEEF

Interest Income on
Working Capital Loan
MBE S B R B RA

Interest Income on
Convertible Bond
AR E S F S

Total
B

# HKRH represents Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 2882) which conducts jewellery retail and franchise
businesses under the brand name of “3D-GOLD” in Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB H RS

The loss on investments and operating activities in HKRH and
its subsidiaries substantially reduced by 55.6% to approximately
HK$16,000,000 (2017: loss of HK$36,000,000) during the Year
under review.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounted to approximately HK$2,098,000,000 (2017:
approximately HK$1,862,000,000). The Group’s net gearing
ratio at the year-end was 0% (2017: 0%), which was calculated
by using the ratio of total bank borrowings and gold loans
of approximately HK$726,000,000 (2017: approximately
HK$437,000,000) less cash and bank balances against total
shareholders’ equity of approximately HK$10,035,000,000 (2017:
approximately HK$8,873,000,000). Net cash was approximately
HK$1,372,000,000 (2017: approximately HK$1,425,000,000).
The debt-to-equity ratio was 21.3% (2017: 19.1%), being the
ratio of total liabilities of approximately HK$2,135,000,000 (2017:
approximately HK$1,699,000,000) against total shareholders’
equity of approximately HK$10,035,000,000 (2017: approximately
HK$8,873,000,000). The Group’s income and expenditure
streams are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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Inventory Turnover Days by Product
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As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s inventory increased by 14.6%
to approximately HK$7,992,000,000 (2017: approximately
HK$6,973,000,000) due to an increase in the number of self-
operated shops. The average number of inventory turnover days
was 257 days (2017: 261 days) with the inventory turnover days
of gold products being 156 days (2017: 152 days) and that of
gem-set jewellery products being 405 days (2017: 436 days).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Capital Expenditure

During the Year under review, the Group’s capital expenditures
amounted to approximately HK$213,000,000 (2017:
approximately HK$168,000,000), including the costs of
properties, leasehold lands, land use rights, leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s total capital commitments
amounted to approximately HK$489,000,000 (2017:
approximately HK$13,000,000).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had outstanding financial
guarantees amounting to approximately HK$899,000,000 (2017:
approximately HK$764,000,000) issued in favour of several banks
in respect of banking facilities granted to an associate.

Human Capital Policy

As at 31 March 2018, the number of employees of the Group
was approximately 7,500 (2017: approximately 7,400). The
management reviews and examines the remuneration policies
on a regular basis to ensure that fair rewards and compensation
are provided to our employees. Remuneration packages are
structured by reference to comparable market rates while
bonuses and other rewards are linked to the performances of
the Group and the employees. This policy aims to motivate
employees with monetary incentives to work together to enhance
the Group’s business performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OUTLOOK
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PRODUCT FOCUS

SERER

Product Offering Enrichment
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==z ]}

Productivity
Enhancement

fREEED

During the Year under review, with the improved overall economic
environment and increased visitor arrivals in Hong Kong and
Macau, despite a higher base in the second half of the financial
year than the first half, the business performance in the second
half of the year was even better than expectation. Moreover,
stepping into the new financial year, since April 2018, the market
sentiment remained positive, especially for the Hong Kong and
Macau market with SSSG of more than +20%, and the same
store sales of gem-set jewellery products in the Mainland market
also restored to a growth track. However, under the influence of
US-China trade war and geopolitics, there are still quite many
uncertainties around. Therefore, the Group remains prudently
optimistic about its business development in the coming year
and expects to have continuing growth in its business. Moreover,
with the anticipated considerable growth of the middle-class
population in Mainland China, the Group also remains optimistic
about the mid- to long-term business prospects. The Group
will focus on product offering enrichment, market coverage
enlargement in Mainland China and market oriented strategies to
penetrate into the mass market, covering middle-class, wedding
as well as kids.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Product Focus

It was stated at the Fifth Plenary Session of the Eighteenth Central
Committee of the Communist Party of China that China would
maintain medium to high economic growth during the Thirteenth
Five-Year Plan period (2017-2020) and that China would double
its 2010 GDP and per capita income of urban and rural residents
by 2020 as planned to build China into a moderately prosperous
society in all aspects. Therefore, the per capita disposable income
of all national residents and urban residents are both increasing.
In addition, the recent tax reform of the individual income tax
will also help to enhance people’s spending power. All these
factors, together with the stable annual number of weddings in
Mainland China and the implementation of two-child policy, would
foster the long-term development of the mass luxury sector. The
demand for luxury products for kids will also increase gradually.
Accordingly, the Group will offer more fashionable yet affordable
products to target at the mass market covering middle-class
customers, wedding as well as kids.

China Focus

With improvement in the operating environment, the number of
net shop additions in Mainland China reached 134 during the
Year under review, while the target for net addition of shops in the
coming year is at least 120 shops. The Group is also committed
to further developing its e-commerce business and strengthening
cooperation with e-commerce platforms in Mainland China.
During the Year under review, the Group had a total of 10 online
sales platforms in Mainland China, including Tmall.com, JD.com
and VIP.com. In light of the enormous spending potential of
young consumers on online sales platforms, the Group will step
up its efforts to promote the sales of affordable luxury and good-
value-for-money jewellery products to expand its footprint in the
young consumer market. The Group targets to grow e-commerce
revenue by 30% in the coming year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB H RS

Branding Focus

By understanding customers’ spending habits, the Group will
adopt holistic approach to penetrate into the markets for the
middle-class, wedding couples and kids. It will also continue to
attract customers and encourage local consumption by visual
merchandising enhancement, cross-selling boosting and VIP
promotional activities, so as to improve sales and profits. Given
the importance of social media in product promotion, the Group
will continue to showcase and promote its products on mobile
applications and social media platforms such as Facebook and
WeChat, etc.

Productivity Enhancement

Apart from accelerating sales growth, the Group will also strive
to enhance its operational efficiency and control costs in every
operational aspect, including the improvement of service quality
control, enhancement of support to licensees, promotion
of continuous improvement culture and full automation of
operational processes in the hope of delivering better results to its
shareholders.
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In order to align with the branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, the
Group has been building a welcoming and warm-hearted brand
image, and strengthening customers’ emotional attachment to the
brand through outstanding marketing campaigns and excellent
customer service programmes.

Adhering to the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality
Services and Customer Orientation”, we act in the customers’
best interests in our operational management, and are meticulous
from product design, quality assurance to sales services. To tie
in with our “Six Heartfelt Services” culture, we are dedicated to
fulfiling customers’ need with a caring heart and offering sincere
quality services, aiming to provide the most enjoyable shopping
experience for customers.

Meanwhile, we also extend the concept of “love” to our
employees. We strive to promote a caring culture and create a
friendly and harmonious working atmosphere. We treat employees
as our family members and care for their physical and mental
wellbeing in order to enhance their sense of belonging and foster
a corporate culture of Lukfook Family.

To Customers
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Six Heartfelt
Services
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To Employees
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Lukfook Family
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Love is Beauty
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MARKET ORIENTED STRATEGY

Targeting the mid- to high-end markets in Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Macau and overseas, the Group has implemented
comprehensive marketing strategies, and launched diversified
product offerings with exquisite designs, together with
outstanding marketing campaigns, to seize the business
opportunities in the middle-class, wedding and kids markets.

MIDDLE-CLASS MARKET

To cope with the brand’s positioning of mass luxury sector, we
have endeavoured to further penetrate the middle-class market
through various channels. During the Year under review, the
Group held the “Lukfook Jewellery Raceday” featuring the theme
“Crown the Love”, and invited Miss Hong Kong Pageant title
winners to showcase a series of glamorous diamond jewellery
to the guests and audience, so as to raise our brand awareness
among the middle-class population.

In the light of the popularity of fashionable jewellery suitable for
daily wear among this group of customers, the Group stepped
up the marketing efforts on the “Love is Beauty” Collection of
diamond jewellery and the “Love Forever” Collection of couple
jewellery in collaboration with the Collection’s celebrity endorser
Mr. Lam-Fung. We also unveiled the “Dear Q" Collection endorsed
by Ms. Qiao Xin, a popular idol in Mainland China. Customers
can mix and match charms for their unique styling. Our innovative
“Goldstyle” Collection is crafted with exquisite techniques to
double the hardness of gold, and provides a selection of gold
jewellery featuring creative designs and style effects of K-gold to
attract the sophisticated, chic middle-class customers.

As pet-keeping gains increasing popularity among middle-class
families, pet-related expenditures are on the rise. This, coupled
with a growing middle-class population in Mainland China, is
expected to push the development of pet-related “Cuteness
Economy” to a new height. The Group organised the “Lukfook
Jewellery Dog Ambassador Contest” in partnership with the
Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to introduce the charity
accessories featuring the design of winning dogs, which turned
out to be well received by dog lovers.

Nowadays, marathon running has become one of the most
popular sports among the middle-class in pursuit of a healthy
lifestyle. Therefore, the Group sponsored the medals set with gold
and diamonds for the Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai and Wuhan
marathons to honour over 118,600 marathon finishers. This year
we continued to collaborate with the mobile sports application
Codoon to launch marketing programmes, with a view to
boosting brand awareness and seizing the business opportunities
from the middle-class market.
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WEDDING MARKET

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Civil Affairs
of the People’s Republic of China, there have been over 10
million pairs of newlyweds per year in the past 5 years. In order to
seize this valuable business opportunity of the wedding market,
the Group has participated in wedding expos in Hong Kong
and Mainland China, and held large-scale wedding shows with
high-end hotels and other wedding related partners. Besides,
the Group launched a wide range of Chinese and western
wedding products. In the traditional Chinese culture, people
like to purchase gold jewellery for gifts and wear. Accordingly,
the Group introduced the “Beloved” Collection of gold wedding
jewellery, which integrates the traditional Chinese wedding
culture into trendy gold jewellery design. Nowadays, diamond
jewellery, a symbol of promise of eternity, is also a popular choice
among wedding couples. To cater for this trend, the Group has
launched the Wedding Collection of diamond jewellery, and the
Platinum Bridal Collection in cooperation with Platinum Guild
International. Moreover, as nowadays young people prefer unique
wedding jewellery, the Group offers a series of uniquely designed
engagement rings and wedding rings featuring the concept of
“create your very own rings” for couples to select their favourite
pieces and create their rings of their choice. We also have a
wide array of wedding rings with complete range of sizes and
complimentary engraving services for wedding couples at our
shops, aiming to increase our share in the wedding market by
leveraging our diversified wedding products and caring services.

KIDS MARKET
In response to the implementation of the two-child policy in
Mainland China, the Group has introduced a variety of kids’
products, including the “Hugging Family” Collection and the
Rilakkuma™ Collection which have been
well received by both adults and kids.
To boost sales strategically, the
Group launched an array of jewellery
% accessories featuring the adorable
G&’ family members and Rilakkuma,
;& and the baby gift sefs that came with the
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BRANDING ACTIVITIES

To increase brand awareness more strategically and secure our
market share in Hong Kong and Mainland China, the Group
continued to strengthen the connection between love and
beauty in line with our branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, and
sponsored the diamond crown and precious jewellery pieces for
the “Miss Hong Kong Pageant” for twenty consecutive years.

Furthermore, the Group also capitalized on different promotional
channels, such as public relations activities, advertising and
various kinds of sponsorships, to enhance our brand awareness.
The Group also captured the rapid growth of online marketing by
placing advertisements on major social media platforms, portals,
video platforms and search engines, and promoted our products
via live broadcast platforms, influential we-media accounts,
Internet celebrities and other popular new media platforms. The
Group carried out themed promotions in response to various
festivals. To tie in with the star design concept of the new “Love
Forever” Collection, we invited our endorser Mr. Lam-Fung to
show up as a “Galaxy Knight” at the “Love Forever Fantastic Star
Journey” new product launch press conference on the Double
Seventh Festival last year, and remarkably increased the brand
awareness via the pop-up store. Besides, we gave out diamond
charms at the “Dear Q" Collection roadshow on Valentine’s Day,
successfully attracting customers and boosting sales.

Riding on the wave of e-sports and animation booms in recent
years, the Group has rolled out marketing campaigns jointly with
the mobile games “Honour of Kings”, “Audition” and the online
game “Tianxia IlI”, with a view to strengthening our penetration
into the millennial generation as their purchasing power is trending
upwards. The 2017 “King Pro League” recorded a total of 6.2
billion views on its spring and autumn seasons. Our brand was
designated as the official partner for the champion ring of the
two seasons. We seized the opportunity to introduce the “Heart
of Kings” Collection, and joined hands with fashion media to
invite singer Mr. Hu Xia, who participated in the programme
“Gather! Kings!”, and QGhappy, champion team of the “King Pro
League” to wear and showcase the products of this collection.
We also organised the “King Pro League” fall season roadshows
to distribute gold coins on-site, which attracted a large number
of e-sports enthusiasts, thus greatly enhancing our brand’s
penetration into the
market of younger
generation.
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PRODUCT DESIGN EmEEt

Producing the finest products with exquisite craftsmanship and ZUEEEBE R TARENERALEE
stylish designs is one of the core competencies of the Group. EFR—IHZLFHEE N BEFERAAIFENR
To enhance innovation capabilities and broaden design team’s — #&FH & 5t E BRI AR BF - ZF% EIENiS; ?‘3?.[%9\\
horizon, we arrange overseas trips for the team from time to time &R B TRRT M SANKEA =

to explore and apply different design concepts to jewellery. Our  FAFI£E H HY R 51 B B JTFW%EE?W ﬁiﬁ&l
outstanding design team has actively participated in various local ~ BRIRERGHHLE - &5 HIESE100E 5218 - #
and international jewellery design competitions, and won over 190  — FEFA SN @A MEFE R

awards up to now, further raising Lukfook’s brand image.

During the Year under review, the Group’s design pieces REIBFEN SEXRTIERIXEFHFE] -
“Pegasus”, “Follow the Heart” and “Tattoos” won awards in “The ~ [B&D o BE1E] R [RIF | A [ 2 BRI HEE
Fashionable 18K Group” at the “Chuk Kam Jewellery Design 20181 73 BIIE3JE [R5 K48 | FO283E - 1y [WHS
Competition 2018, while the design piece “WiFi’ Times” wonthe | B [NBIMH ] BE B E R ER B
award in the “Open Group”. In addition, our design piece “Linkup ~ $ ® &t F1 | 5 15 LA F%E?I BE| ARFTEER
Fusion” received the “Best of Show Award (Open Group)” in “The [FE10EBEHKERT L EI PO TRAFRAMAKX
19th Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition” under the theme — #2] ©

of “The Vibrant Hong Kong”.

BRANDING AWARDS on e P 88

During the Year under review, Lukfook’s continuous efforts in A EIEESE A 7N 1& £ &
brand building have been recognised with the following awards — FEE R FHIHES /) -
and accolades from the industry and market, which included: BEARTERELRS

N TRIBR = B

o “Retail Asia-Pacific Top 500 Awards” for six consecutive
years and “Top 10 Retailers in the Hong Kong Market” and o 3B /N AE [28 K
the highest honour “Asia-Pacific Best of the Best Retailers” [ & T E 50054 | -
awards WRBEE T ABER - Doe
ERE] UAREBRREN S
e  “Hong Kong Star Brand Award — Enterprise” for six [EARERKETER]MIEKSE Y
consecutive years &
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QUALITY ASSURANCE

The Group puts emphasis on quality control and authentication
to enhance consumers’ confidence, and is meticulous from
procurement to authentication. In 1996, China Gems Laboratory
Limited (“CGL”"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, was
established for the purpose of providing services including
authentication and grading of diamonds, authentication of jadeite
jade and coloured gemstones, and quality assessment for
jewellery. The laboratory is operated by a group of experienced
and certified gemologists specialising in authentication of
gemstones and jadeite jade.

In addition, the Group set up Victoria Gemological Institute Limited
principally engaged in jewellery authentication and professional
training. With branch offices in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
the institute provides services for the jewellery sector and
customers. The institute has passed the accreditation of the
Laboratory Accreditation Bureau (L-A-B) of the United States,
and is authorised to issue internationally recognised reports that
conform to ISO/IEC 17025 in diamond grading and fei cui (jadeite
jade) testing.

To further boost consumers’ confidence, the Group cooperated
with The International Institute of Diamond Grading and Research
(IDGR) to provide an additional report for any Hearts & Arrows
diamond sold at our shops in Hong Kong and Macau, so as
to give customers a more comprehensive understanding of the
diamond products purchased.

HERE

REB+DFTEREELERET B RABER
BRZ—mELRE BRBRETH 4T
BB F R 2 BB AR - P EKE
EEROLBRAR ([FREXREBETHLO]) 1R
HELET FTH - FREAECERETE NI
ELESTHERBF -ZF LA —HEMNEE
ARBRETNERRIERIETEMEE-

Rt 2N REBERESFDRE ST ¥
BEZRKEETETREXEEI WEBERT
BRVEEP LU REKEXERMARE
BERERE -ZREBHBEBABARA
f&Laboratory Accreditation Bureau (L-A-B)#) 52
A] - AJER % BRR AGRAIISO/IEC 170258 A 514k
WERER (FEEEHR) AImE-

BTHEBERTREZ—MHELRE  SEEHE
A A M 5E BT The International Institute of
Diamond Grading and Research (IDGR)& {E -
AERESEN/ VO N\STEAIREEN DR
s EEREHEMENEAEREREAARS
H R R

28 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S



A JiEa

BRANDING
Oh R 2R B

EXCELLENT SERVICE

Lukfook’s cultivation of a warm-hearted brand image would
not be successful without a commitment to service excellence.
Adhering to the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality
Services and Customer Orientation”, we act in the customers’
best interests in our operational management. In line with the
branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, the Group has introduced
the “Delivering the Beauty of Love with Six Heartfelt Services”
excellent customer service programme to fulfil customers’ needs
with a caring heart and offer quality, sincere services to customers
with a view to relaying the culture of Six Heartfelt Services to each
customer all over the world.

SHOPPING EXPERIENCE

To tie in with our fashionable and chic brand image, the Group
has introduced a brand-new shop design. Soft champagne
gold tone is applied to create a romantic ambience, and glass
elements are widely used at shops to create a more spacious
feeling and impressive displays, so as to make customers feel at
home.

The shops introduce the innovative space design to create
a corridor-style shopping area where customers can stroll to
appreciate and select jewellery. The shops also provide an
independent area where customers can enjoy one-to-one service
and tailored advice offered by our staff. Besides, the Group
has established the Member Zone at shops for our privileged
members to enjoy special offers, leisure space and caring
services, aiming to deliver unparalleled shopping experience to
customers.

SIS i Y = ‘-_ b o
\

=

s A Y
T
wmE \

BHERY
REZHNEERIBNN RS R  AEEY
ERFBREHAGERBRHERIE AE[E
LDEE - -RBAN UERE]OBE E&L
B EBEREREE REMIEREIW
AR TR L T NOEREERERE]
SHEERGE AL ERETREE &
ARBEREEGZRORS  REESOR
BXEEtRAEME (B

fRReie

ATRARR HRNMETSR  KEHELE2H
MBI R ARV B RS EH L ERER
P RIBERABIE TR - IRIT =R R RN
MR BEBUTABBERMERBYOEE -

IEHAANZRREERBABY RS -
BEARRBABE EEMfim TREBLIY
1R BEAELEZRE BEREREFE
MERENT ERASEEIHER FER
SEEXEHBMESR KEZREN L LR
B BRBBRERRELOEDRR-




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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This is the second environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
report prepared by Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “We”, “Lukfook”, the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”), meeting the “comply or explain”
provisions of appendix 27 of the rules governing the listing of
securities, Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”).
This report presents our sustainability performance in the financial
year 2018 (“FY2018”) which is from 1 April 2017 to 31 March
2018 and has been reviewed and approved by the board of
directors. It covers the operations of offices, factories, showrooms
and self-operated shops across Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China.

With cumulative brand awareness established over the years, we
seize the opportunities to consolidate our leading position in the
jewellery retail market. We understand our responsibility is not
limited to providing quality products and services to customers.
Therefore, we are very pleased to publish the ESG report which
provides information on environmental and social issues that
are relevant to the Group and details our efforts in sustainable
development.

We would like to hear your feedback on our ESG report. Please
feel free to post to Luk Fook Jewellery Centre, 239 Temple
Street, Jordan, Kowloon, Hong Kong with attention to Corporate
Communications Department or email us at ir@lukfook.com.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

We believe that the voices of our stakeholders are valuable to our
business and sustainable development. In order to understand
the concerns of our key stakeholders and to identify the material
topics of the Group, a stakeholder engagement activity was
conducted in 2017 via online questionnaire by a third party. The
questionnaire acted as a tool for us to communicate with our
stakeholders and obtain their opinions. A materiality assessment
was then conducted to provide us insights into the formulation of
our ESG reporting and upcoming corporate social responsibility
(“CSR”) strategies.

During the materiality process, we engaged both internal and
external stakeholders from Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
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These ESG topics were generalised from the key performance
indicators of the ESG reporting guide. Their valuable feedback
helps us identify the priority of material topics as shown below:

Materiality Matrix

ZERR - HENEAZERMERR LG
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E E ’I"&"%E Eﬁ Legend
Bkl

1 Air Emission FERHER

2 Greenhouse Gas ("GHG”) Emission /& Z= REEHEK

3 Hazardous Waste BEEEY
o 4 Non-hazardous Waste fEEREZEY)
B o 12 5 Energy Consumption BETRBAE
Ll 13 6 Water Consumption KIHFE
& 19 7 Packaging Consumption BEMEERE
?g 17 16 8 Impacts on Environment IR E
P
ﬁ 1 2 ¢ -9 3 _'14“I1 —10 18 9 Employment =%
P 15 20 10 Occupational Health and Safety BtEfEERZE
g 8 5 7 11 Training 531
I 12 Child Labour T
R 6 13 Forced Labour RIS T
©
‘g 14 Supply Chain Management e E IR
> 15 Customer Health and Safety BEREERTE
& 16 Customer Satisfaction BEREE
8 17 Intellectual Property AR
£ 18 Customer Privacy BELE
o
@ 19 Anti-corruption k&S

20 B % By 20 20 Community Investment HERE

Significance to Lukfook %1712 E & 1%

“Significance to Stakeholders” are shown on the vertical axis of
the materiality matrix, while “Significance to Lukfook” are shown
on the horizontal axis. Those topics considered to be of greatest
importance are shown in the top right hand quadrant of the
graph.

Based on the above analysis, we prioritize 7 topics which are
the most material to us: 19. Anti-corruption, 16. Customer
Satisfaction, 18. Customer Privacy, 17. Intellectual Property,
10. Occupational Health and Safety, 12. Child Labour and 11.
Training.

The result is affirmed by the senior management of the Group
and is considered significant to the sustainable development of
Lukfook. With the result in mind, we will continue to improve its
ESG performance and work on the direction to sustainability to
respond to the expectations of our stakeholders.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ VOICE

Our CSR initiatives were commended by our stakeholders,
including awards and sponsorships in large-scale events that
could build up a positive corporate image and reputation.

Despite environmental issues not being rated as material to
the Group in the assessment, many of our stakeholders paid
high attention to environmental issues. As our operation is
mainly confined to offices, retail shops and processing plants,
stakeholders showed their concern about wastewater treatment
from the processing plant, and thought that environmental
protection was everyone’s responsibility in the community.
Preserving the environment was vital to good health and state of
mind to each individual, which could eventually benefit the whole
society including Lukfook. Our stakeholders proposed that the
Group could consider paperless operation, workplace indoor
greening, energy efficiency and even environmentally friendly
decoration materials in shops.

Our staff reflected that they were aware of the community
programme such as: marathons and voluntary services. They
supported red packet and mooncake box recycling. Many
also said that they hoped to receive more training on product
knowledge and sales technique. Staff outside of Hong Kong
hoped that they could receive training certificates as recognition.
In addition, our staff also indicated that the Group could further
enhance the two-way communication channels for conveying
their suggestions more effectively.
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MATERIALITY ANALYSIS TABLE EENRSH—EBE
The table below shows the material issues to our business and &I E REBEREANET AR EE X
their impact within and outside of Lukfook. B LA 2 -
Level of Materiality Within Lukfook Outside Lukfook
EEEE Vi A EB ikl o
Environmental
BiR
Air Emission Low
BRI {& X 4
GHG Emission Low
EELL Py i3 X v
Hazardous Waste Low
HEEEY {& X 7
Non-hazardous Waste Low
EEEEY IR X v
Energy Consumption Low
SR F i3 X v
Water Consumption Low
IKH#E & X X
Packaging Consumption Medium
REDEN h v X
Impacts on Environment Low
HEEN Y E {& X 7
Social
14
Employment Low
B I X v
Occupational Health and Safety High
BERERZ2 B v v
Trainin High
Bl 5 v v
gl:‘ij LLabour H_%gjh v v
Forced Labour Medium
584 T h X v
Supply Chain Management Medium
HEEER = X v
Customer Health and Safety Low
EERERE2 {& X o
Customer Satisfaction High
BERERE B v v
Intellectual Property High
K = v v
Customer Privacy High
BERALE = v v
Anti-corruption High
REE 5 v v
Community Investment Medium
HERE & v v
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TO CUSTOMERS: SIX HEARTFELT SERVICES
Following the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality Services
and Customer Orientation”, we are committed to maintaining the
high standard in daily operation, and remaining meticulous from
supply chain management, quality assurance, to product and
service responsibility.

Supply Chain Management

Selection Process

A well-established procurement procedure and systematic
process is in place that all the new potential suppliers or
subcontractors have to be evaluated before they are qualified as
our on-list approved suppliers and subcontractors. In addition, the
Group has established strict tendering guidelines. All approved
suppliers and subcontractors have to fulfil the Group’s internal
approval processes and enter into the Supplier Agreement to
ensure that products and services provided are up-to-standard.
Ongoing and regular inspections and assessments are conducted
as regulatory monitoring.

Apart from quality and price, CSR performance is also an
important factor to be considered during the selection process in
order to manage the environmental and social risks of the supply
chain. Guideline for environmental procurement stipulates that
4R (reduce, reuse, recycle and renew) method must be applied
to the whole product life cycle. Under the same conditions, we
give preference to non-allergenic, energy efficient and durable
materials during the selection process.

Responsible Sourcing

All our diamond suppliers are required to fulfil the Kimberley
Process Certificate Scheme which ensures that the rough
diamonds supplied are not “conflict diamonds”. To ensure that
the sources of gold raw materials are legal, we select suppliers
with integrity which are recognised within the industry, such as
member of The Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society and
Shanghai Gold Exchange.
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Business Ethics

The principles of integrity, fairness and justice are always the
foundation of operation. The Group obtained formal management
policies to prevent bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
All of our suppliers and subcontractors are required to sign the
corruption prevention policy in accordance with the guidelines
laid down by the Hong Kong Independent Commission Against
Corruption (“ICAC”) which sets out relevant code of integrity,
mechanisms for declaration of interest and whistle-blowing to
prevent and curb conflict of interests and corruption issues.

A strict approval system is in place for transactions monitoring
and there are different kinds of internal control to ensure the
compliance by all stakeholders. Apart from employees, we also
expect that all our business partners including customers adhere
to the policy. During FY2018, we did not have any concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices and no non-compliance case
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that
have significant impact on the Group had been identified.

Quality Control and Assurance

The Group exercises tight quality control and is meticulous from
raw materials procurement, production to sales and after-sales
services.

For our procurement practice, to ensure a reliable supply of quality
diamonds and enhance customer confidence, the Group is a
sightholder of De Beers, the world’s largest diamond producer. At
the same time, our diamond passed the “Natural Diamond Quality
Assurance” Mark scheme accredited by the Diamond Federation
of Hong Kong, which assures that our diamond products sold are
natural diamonds.
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For our production process, the Group wholly owns a large-scale
jewellery processing plant in Nansha, Guangzhou, which enables
the Group to offer stable quality supply and carry out quality
control effectively. The production plant will also help the Group
to cope with its growing distribution network and provide stable
jewellery supply to its jewellery shops. Our jewellery processing
plant is warranted on ISO 9001:2015 quality management system
and ISO 14001:2004 environmental management system by an
external certification body.

In terms of sales services, a “Six Heartfelt Services” ambassador
was nominated in every retail shop to execute the spirit
thoroughly. “Six Heartfelt Service Voices” has been implemented
as an enhancement of the service programme. Video clips and
service standard are available on the intranet so our staff can
review anytime. The Group have been recognised with a wide
array of awards for management excellence and high-quality
products and service. These include:

° “Hong Kong Service Awards — Quality Living Category
(Jewellery and Gold)” for eleven consecutive years by “East
Week Magazine”;

o “Consumer Caring Company” by GS1 Hong Kong for six
consecutive years; and

o “Class A Certified Shop” (Retail store at Rua de S.
Domingos, Macau) by the Macao SAR Government
Consumer Council.

Concerning our after-sales services, we have a systematic
process for handling recycled products and quality issues.
Recycled products would be passed to our laboratories after
preliminary identification from retail shops for further verification,
test report would be issued if necessary. Quality issues would be
examined and followed up by relevant department.

e

Lusk Fook Roidings [intemaiional) Lid
ARENEEAELE

S

EEFE AEERERA —HUREMNTE
DEHAMEKENTIR REETELENER
WHREHERES  BEZEETIR  A%E
MMEe AN TR KM DB REKER
HRMEENREERHE - RAMKEMNT
JRIEIN DR BB T1SO 9001:2015MH &
I8 XG5 21SO 14001:20043R & 12 R R

WERKHE  SRZTEEERE (70 RS
R LEBATHERRSGRE - WHER 70
ARG 2% | EE) AR IRISE = - B T A] BERS
BRANBBEREBREAN T BRRFITEE K
B P E T B A G B RS B RR AR
B

o  EETFXKECRAT) BB [BBR
BRE-—EBLEEER (RE2TT) ]

s EBEAFREEERREBHETERA

o BRMBITHREBRMEEEZE S
B TAR (R &) 55 ) (RIRRFIR
BEENTER)

ERMRBEITH RMARLEEEMCWEEE
RN RSRE MRERETEEN TR
AREEREEFLE— Sk URNEHFE
BB T IR AR S - B B Bt AE B AP
Fite s LR -

Annual Report 2017/18 SE#§ 37



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB RS ARE

Product and Service Responsibility

Intellectual Properties

Intellectual properties committees were set up in Hong Kong
and Mainland China to handle tasks in respect of intellectual
properties, including trademark registration, design patent and
combating of infringement. The Group also actively monitors any
infringement by free-riding brands across the country to safeguard
customers from losses caused by misleading brand names.

Customer Privacy

The Group endeavours to respect and safeguard the
confidentiality of customer privacy, and to strictly observe the
requirements of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 4386)
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR). We
have formulated the policy to set out how the Group collects,
uses, discloses, and maintains customers’ personal data. We
have implemented reasonable measures to protect these data
in terms of monitoring facilities, electronic system and staff
management.

Advertisement and Labelling on Product and Service

We have a team of experts to take care of the advertisement and
labelling issues to ensure that only accurate product information
is provided. Our legal team and legal advisor interact actively with
relevant governmental departments to safeguard the compliance
on Code of Advertising Practice in overseas and Advertisements
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Provisions on the
administration of advertising language in Mainland China, as well
as other relevant laws and regulations. In Hong Kong, appropriate
training is provided to our frontline staff with monitoring measures
to govern the compliance of Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Cap.
362).
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Customer Satisfaction

Adhering to “Six Heartfelt Services” motto, it is our core values
to maintain high quality standards and to fulfil customers’
requirements. However, complaints are still received in some
cases, which we see as a driving force for our growth. Procedures
regarding customer complaints handling and product returns are
established to respond to our customers in a timely manner and
as an input of continual improvement. During FY2018, we confirm
that there was no product recall due to safety and health reasons.

As for striving for excellence, a customer satisfaction survey has
been carried out to collect feedback and as a channel to keep
abreast of market trend. Quarterly mystery shopper assessments
were conducted by an independent agency to assess Lukfook’s
quality of products and services.

During FY2018, we confirmed that no non-compliance case
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and method
of redress that have significant impact on the Group had been
identified.
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TO PUBLIC: LOVE IS BEAUTY

In response to the commitment towards CSR, continually
endeavours to contribute to the society by taking care of the Earth
and making use of our expertise in community engagement is our
strategy to sustainability.

Environmental Protection

As a luxury manufacturer, we crave for different resources
extracted from the planet and the community in which we serve.
It is, therefore, our responsibility to protect the environment by
reducing the impacts within our operations — from factories, retail
stores to offices. During FY2018, we confirmed that no non-
compliance case relating to air and GHG emissions, discharge
into water and land, and generation of hazardous waste and non-
hazardous waste that have significant impact on the Group had
been identified.

Factory

Certified with the international ISO 14001:2004 standard, an
environmental management system has been developed and
implemented in our jewellery processing plants. Our mission is
to minimise the pollution to the environment, make continuous
improvement, and comply with relevant environmental laws and
regulations. To achieve so, we have identified the opportunities
to reduce air emission, wastewater discharge, water use, waste
generation and disposal, and energy consumption by analysing
the environmental risks within our operations, and conducted
regular monitoring to ensure the issues were well managed.
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While air emissions are inevitably generated as part of the
manufacturing process, we place emphasis on limiting the
emissions from our operations and complying with relevant
laws and regulations. To achieve this, we have implemented
our emission control guidelines for cleaner production. For
instance, dust filtering system, filtering system with activated
carbon absorbent and exhaust scrubber system were installed
to treat air pollutants — mainly fugitive dust emissions and volatile
organic compounds — meeting the legal emission standard before
releasing to the atmosphere. We have also upgraded to laser
welding machines which can not only effectively reduce the air
emissions but also protect our workers’ health.

We produce a wide range of waste across the operations;
therefore, we have established comprehensive procedures
to manage waste — no matter whether they are recyclable,
non-recyclable or hazardous. Hazardous waste such as waste
solvents and lubricants generally requires more efforts and
clear guidance is provided for our workers to follow including
waste segregation, labelling, storage and transportation. All
the hazardous waste are collected by licensed contractors for
treatment. To promote waste reduction and recycling practices,
we encourage our employees to recycle the recyclable materials
and reuse useful parts of the waste such as jewellery pieces and
packaging as much as we can, helping to divert the waste from
landfills.

Water and energy are used in many of the manufacturing
processes. For water, we place emphasis on not only reducing
the consumption through installing water-saving faucets, but also
exploring ways to optimise its use through reclaiming wastewater
for different purposes such as greening or toilet flushing. For
energy consumption, various initiatives are implemented such as
replacing lighting with energy efficient LEDs and T8 light bulbs.
Maintenance is also regularly carried out to ensure the equipment
is in good condition to conserve resources.

Retail Store

Having more than 1,500 stores in different cities around the globe,
we realise that we have a great responsibility and opportunity to
make positive impacts to the environment by making more efforts.

External lighting is used in many ways such as decoration,
advertisement or promotion, and even after midnight when the
stores are closed. As such, we continue to support the “Charter
on External Lighting” initiated by the Hong Kong Environment
Bureau, reducing not only the electricity costs but also lowering
the energy use during off-hours. During FY2018, we were
rewarded with “Gold Award” in the “Charter on External Lighting
Award Scheme” by the Environment Bureau of the HKSAR in
recognition of our contribution to reduce energy consumption and
the reduction of nuisance from lighting.
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Office

Office operations, in general, do not pose significant impact on
the environment. Still, it is of high importance to encourage green
practices in the office and reduce our footprints by focusing on
the use of water, electricity and paper.
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Water e \We make sure there is no leakage of taps to conserve water.

X R B KEERKRIER  SE AKX

Electricty e \We encourage switching off the equipment such as computers when they are not in use.
EW) SRR IEE AR B E R -

Paper e \We encourage using electronic communication over paper.
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With our great efforts, our environmental performance was
recognised by several organisations in FY2018. For instance, we
won the “EcoPartner” and “5 Years+ EcoPioneer Companies” in
the “2016 BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards”
organised by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Bank
of China (Hong Kong), recognising our efforts in combatting
pollution and climate change. We were also awarded the “Hong
Kong — Guangdong Cleaner Production Partners (Manufacturing)”
in recognition of our dedication in both Hong Kong and China’s
environmental protection.
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Hong Kong - Guangdong
Cleaner Production Partner

We encourage wise use of toilet paper.

We opt for recycled paper for everyday printing.

We encourage using double-sided printing instead of single-sided printing.
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Environmental Performance

Our environmental performance related to our business operation
in offices, factories, showrooms and self-operated shops across
Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China during FY2018 is
indicated in the table below:

BER&ER

R201881 F - I F A RIS B A b 3
ER-ME RENBEENEBREEFHEDN

RRKRBAIITNTR:

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited

ANiEKE (BEER)FERLTH
Types of Resources Consumption Unit FY2018
WiRERARE Efr 2018Rt£E
Electricity ES kWh F E B 16,908,633.76
Mobile Fuels EIREL
— Diesel — 5 Litre 2 FF 90,395.07
— Unleaded petrol — U Litre ‘A F+ 64,692.32
Stationary Fuel Note! TE KRR
— Natural gas — KRR m3 7 J7 2K 343,611.00
Water K me 37 75 oK 209,798.00
Refrigerant Note2 )R P2 kg T 52 10.00
Paper 4R kg T 52 69,246.02
Packaging Materials BEM Tonne A 171.02
Wastewater Discharge Nete3 55 7K B s m3 7 J7 2K 171,385.00
Type of Waste Generation REYE LR R
- Non-hazardous waste Nete¢  — M EREZ i Tonne [ 45.32
— Hazardous waste Noe® —BEEEYN Tonne & 5.48
Types of Greenhouse Gas BERBHREL
Emissions
— Direct Emission (Scope 1) —EEWR(EE) tCO2e Wi —E 1Lt & & 1,062.68
— Indirect Emission (Scope 2)  — B HEpR (£3E)2) tCOe M —E LI E B 12,708.57
Total fmEt tCOze Wi — RLIRE & 13,771.25
Direct Energy Intensity BEREREE
— Mobile Fuels — B Litre/turnover (HKD’000) Nete & 0.016
Rt EEE (T Was
— Stationary Fuel —EE R mé/turnover (HKD’000) 0.035
SR EERE (TBIT)
Indirect Energy Intensity BZ LR E kWh/turnover (HKD’000) 1.70
TERE &%5E(THET)
Water Intensity KEE m3/turnover (HKD’000) 0.021
SRR (TET)
Wastewater Intensity EKEE m3/turnover (HKD’000) 0.017
SR EERE (BT
Packaging Materials Intensity ~ B &M B 2= Tonne/turnover (HKD’000) 0.000017
Mg, &R (BT
Hazardous Waste Intensity EEEENEE Tonne/turnover (HKD'000) 0.00000055
WE, & EEE (FAT)
Non-hazardous Waste Intensity EEZEEEYRE Tonne/turnover (HKD’000) 0.0000047
WE, & EEE (FH&T)
Carbon Intensity k==
- Direct Emission (Scope 1) — BB (EE1)  tCOe/turnover (HKD'000) 0.00011
WS tIREE L ERE
(F#&mT)
— Indirect Emission (Scope 2)  —E#EHEM (EE2)  tCOze/turnover (HKD'000) 0.0013

WS LIREEEER

(FE&T)

Annual Report 2017/18 E#R 43



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB RS ARE

Note 1:  Natural gas was consumed at our administration building, staff kitchen,

dormitory and moulding equipment in our jewellery processing plants only.

Note 2:  Refrigerant was consumed in our jewellery processing plants only.

Note 3:  The figure represented the amount of wastewater discharged from our

jewellery processing plants only. Wastewater generated from our retail
stores and offices in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China was properly
connected and discharged to the communal sewer drainage system.

Note 4:  The figure represented the amount of non-hazardous waste generated

from our jewellery processing plants only. The non-hazardous waste
generated from our self-operated shops and offices in Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland China was handled by the property management company.

Note 5:  The figure represented the amount of hazardous waste generated from our

jewellery processing plants only. No hazardous waste was generated from
our self-operated shops and offices in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China.

Note 6:  This turnover included the self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and

Mainland China only.

Since this is the first year where environmental key performance
indicator (KPI) data is reported, the above collected data is
benchmarked as the baseline. Through continuous collection of
further environmental KPI data, and the analysis and comparison
with the data of the baseline year in forthcoming year, we will
review and make continuous improvement on our environmental
performance and existing management approaches.

Corporate Citizen

It is always our top priority to fulfil our corporate citizenship
and strive to create long-term values for the communities in
which we operate. As a socially responsible corporation, we
are actively participating in community investment programmes
through donation and volunteering in four main areas: protecting
the environment, caring for community wellness and health,
supporting local arts and culture, and empowering the youth. In
addition, our Lukfook Volunteer Team has been established not
only to build cohesion and a sense of belonging in the Group,
but also to raise employee awareness by encouraging them to
participate in voluntary activities and make contribution to the
communities.
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In FY2018, we supported a wide range of charitable activities and
some of them are highlighted as below:

Environmental Conservation

Climate change is a big challenge that needs to be tackled.
During the Year under review, we partnered with the non-
governmental organisations (“NGOs”), which include The
Conservancy Association, Greeners Action and Green Power,
to promote “bring your own shopping bag” at our retail stores
and improve local waste reduction issue. All the levy we received
on plastic shopping bags was donated to the abovementioned
charity groups. At the same time, we have carried out a number
of programmes at the Group, such as the used red packets
recycling, to raise employees’ environmental awareness.

Community Wellness and Health

Making positive impacts to the community is important to us.
During FY2018, we uphold the spirit of giving back to the society
by playing a part in a series of activities. Our volunteer team has
been supporting Food Angel by preparing hot meal boxes in the
kitchen to provide food assistance to the people in need. We also
visited the Chan Hing Social Service Centre and celebrated the
Mid-autumn festival with the elderly there, and shared our love
and festival joy along with mooncakes and fruits.

The Group took part in the “Walks for Millions” held by The
Community Chest of Hong Kong once again, and encouraged the
participation of employees and their families to help the needy in
our community.

In FY2018, the Group once again donated HK$1,000,000 to
support the development of medical and community services
provided by Tung Wah Group of Hospitals.

In Mainland China, we sponsored “Free Lunch
for Children” organised by China Social Welfare
Foundation for four consecutive years, offering
nutritious free meals for the underprivileged school
children.

Arts and Culture

We believe that arts and
culture are intangibly precious
in our communities. We
supported various events such
as traditional Bak Mei martial
arts, Cantonese opera and
Bun Carnival for the artistic
and cultural development in
Hong Kong.
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Youth Empowerment

To empower the young people, we have been partnering with
different organisations to nurture our future leaders in pursuit
of their personal development. For instance, we provided
sponsorship on the Vocational Training Council (“VTC”) Design
Education Fund to foster excellence in creativity, design and
innovation amongst young people and to enrich their exposure to
international cultures. We also sponsored the VTC Outstanding
Industrial Attachment Scholarships 2018 to reward students
with outstanding performance in their industrial attachment
programmes. Furthermore, we provided support for the talented
young chess players in the Hong Kong Youth Chinese Chess
Competition 2017.

The Group attained a number of awards as recognitions of
its continued efforts in fulfiling CSR. Below are some of the
highlights:

° Recognised at “The 8th Hong Kong Corporate Citizenship
Program” — Enterprise Category

o Received the “Ordering Oxfam Rice (Organization
Category)” Bronze Award in the “Oxfam Rice Event 2017”

o Named a “5 Years Plus Caring Company” by the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service.
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TO EMPLOYEES: LUKFOOK FAMILY

We strive to promote a caring culture and create a friendly and
harmonious working atmosphere to extend the concept of “love”
to our employees. We treat employees as our family members
and care for their physical and mental well-being in order to
enhance their sense of belonging and foster a corporate culture of
the Lukfook Family.

Labour Standard

The Group has zero tolerance towards child labour or forced
labour and strictly follows major human rights declaration. We
have procedures, which were established in accordance with
relevant national and local laws, regulations and international
standard, to ensure that our recruitment process as well as daily
operation were in line with the standard. During FY2018, we did
not identify any issue with child labour and forced or compulsory
labour, indicating positive results from our efforts in practice.

Equal Opportunity Employer

We are an equal opportunity employer committed to fair and
impartial treatment of all our staff. As an equal opportunity
employer, diversity in the workplace and in our recruiting practices
is crucial for us. We do not tolerate any discrimination based on
race, religion, disability, family status, sex, marital status, age,
national origin, or other considerations deemed inappropriate by
local laws.

Remuneration packages are based on job responsibilities,
performance and contributions to business results as well as
the employees’ professional and managerial competency. Staff
undergo annual appraisals and are rewarded appropriately
according to their performance and contributions to the Group’s
development, as outlined in our staff handbook.
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Employment Standard

Staff handbooks are distributed to all new staff members when
they join the Group to ensure that they understand their rights
and obligations. In addition to hard copy, the content of staff
handbook is also available on the intranet for staff access.

The Group provides staff with competitive remuneration and
benefits, including paid leave, paternity leave, maternity leave
and marriage leave, medical insurance and retirement plans, staff
discount as well as performance-based incentives and bonuses.
Meal allowance, monetary bonuses and other merit payments are
provided to retail staff. Remuneration policies are reviewed and
approved by the management regularly to ensure fair rewards
and compensation for employees. Remuneration packages are
structured to be comparable to the market while bonuses and
other merit payments are linked to the performances of the Group
and the employees.

We were honoured as “Good MPF Employer Award 2016-17”,
and were presented the “e-Contribution Award” and “Support
for MPF Management Award” by the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) Schemes Authority to acknowledge our efforts for placing
a high value on our employees’ retirement needs.

Anti-corruption

Appropriate measures were set up to maintain the integrity of
our staff all the time. All newly employed staff are required to sign
the corruption prevention undertaking and comply with the code
of conduct and discipline as set out in our staff handbook and
relevant ordinances with respect to prevention of acceptance of
advantages between suppliers and staff. In addition, refreshing
training held by the ICAC was arranged regularly for new and
existing staff to reaffirm the importance of integrity.

Grievance Mechanism

Grievance mechanism was established for the Group to enhance
the competitiveness and management policies. Grievance and
suggestions can be directly delivered to the Group via emall,
telephone or face-to-face interview. Whistle-blowing channel is
addressed in staff handbook; grievances raised would be treated
confidentially to protect the whistle-blower.
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Work-life Balance

We offer different kinds of leisure and sports activities such as:
yoga class, Japanese class, charitable mah-jong competition
and marathon to energise the working atmosphere as well as
achieve a work-life balance. We have achieved the “Happiness-
at-work” Label jointly organised by the Promoting Happiness
Index Foundation and the Hong Kong Productivity Council for four
consecutive years.

Development and Training

The Group encourages continuous learning in our employees and
puts emphasis on their holistic development; we highly regard
nurturing talents as one for our key strategies. The Group has
established a comprehensive training system and assessment
criteria from theory, sales technique, and product knowledge
to personal character. For director and management level staff,
continuous professional training is provided on topics such
as: leadership, corporate governance and updated laws and
regulations. Internal, external and electronic learning are provided
for employees in different departments to sharpen their skills and
competencies. Orientation and on-the-job training is provided for
new joiners. Apart from the Hong Kong head office and the online
training platform, four regional training centres are established
in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Wuhan, respectively, for
providing internal training programmes. Subsidies are provided to
eligible employees for studying industry related programmes.

The Group has co-organised training programmes with external
organisations, for instance: jade product knowledge training
course with the Hong Kong Institute of Gemmology; China GTC
diamond and jade inspector certificate with Guangdong Province
Jewellery and precious metals testing centre.

As the fruits of the Group’s tireless efforts in offering good
training opportunities to enhance the professionalism of our staff
to provide every customer with sincere service and superior
shopping experience, a Group’s staff won the Bronze Award in
“Outstanding Quality Tourism Services (QTS) Merchant Service
Staff Award 2017” (Jewellery & Watches Category) organised by
the Hong Kong Tourism Board, in recognition of his outstanding
performance in customer service. With the representative from
the Group being ranked as award winner after rounds of keen
competitions, it fully affirmed the Group’s efforts in enhancing
service quality. The Group has been accredited in the “QTS
Scheme” for sixteen consecutive years and also received “15-year
QTS Merchant Recognition” in 2016, affirming wide recognition
of the Group’s outstanding achievements in product quality and
customer service.
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Qualifications Framework

The Group actively supported the “Qualifications Framework
(QF)” held by the Education Bureau of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region by encouraging and sponsoring employees
to participate in professional training. Our training department
registered the “Certificate Programme in Quality Customer
Service and Jewellery Knowledge (QF Level 2)” and “Certificate
Programme in Advanced Jewellery Knowledge (QF Level 3)” so
that employees can be qualified and benchmarked through this
hierarchy.

Outreach Training

Qutreach training was the highlight of this year. The training
combined adventure activities, experiential learning with group
and individual counselling to enhance the self-belief of staff.
Managerial staff in Hong Kong and Mainland China were invited to
join. Positive feedback was provided by our managers that they
could improve their leadership and communication skills after the
training, mutual trust and tacit understanding were also built. To
conclude, this is an effective tool for us to build an outstanding
team.

The Group has obtained “Manpower Developer” by the
Employees Retraining Board in 2017 for the outstanding
performance in fostering new talents in the jewellery industry.

Occupational Health and Safety

Lukfook believes that occupational health and safety is not only
one of our core principles, but also our commitment to every
employee. Safety and health management are incorporated into
our operation by complying with relevant safety regulations and
standards. During FY2018, we confirmed that non-compliance
case relating to providing safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards, and the number
and ratio of work fatality for the Group were both zero.
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Office and Retail Store

The Group endeavours to provide a comfortable and safe working
environment. Our occupational health and safety code, for
example, on electricity, manual handling and working with display
screen equipment, is regularly reviewed and updated on our
intranet to enhance the awareness of staff and prevent accidents
from happening.

Factory

Risk assessment on occupational hazards and disease was
conducted for our factories in Mainland China by an external
competent organisation to ensure that all workplace hazards
were identified and under monitoring. An occupational hygiene
management system was established so that relevant measures
such as: occupational health check for related employees, regular
health and safety inspections in workplace, personal protective
equipment and training were executed to ensure the physical
well-being of our employees.

MOERTEE
AEBENEHRFELLZENTHERE  LE
Hias MENBBEREBED  AFRIER
ERBETRERBEIIESNRERRERLE
SR UREEIREERALBRELEL LS
o

IR

AEEZEINBABEENORE  HuRF
WA TRETTRE BT KB E R G i
REBRMETIESMBEYL TIAEZE - AEH
RUBFHEEERS BUHERMERER:
EREERENBEERERE  TIEEMEY
BENZ2RE EARERELIFI - AR
RIEER S BB -

Annual Report 2017/18 E#R 51



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REtE

s S

B /A i&%

HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
EEXPABR HERELREHESIN—RESE

A. Environment

A B

A1 Emissions

A1 B

A2 Use of Resources

A2 BRER

A3 The Environment and
Natural Resources
A3 BIERAAER

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation
of hazardous waste and non-
hazardous waste

BRERRERBHR  RAKRL

WEET  BEREEERENNEE

£

@ BX: &

b) BFTHETABEAZENIE
WEERBOINER

Policies on efficient use of resources
including energy, water and other raw
materials

AUERER (BEER KREM
[RARE) B9 BUR

Policies on minimizing the issuer’'s
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources
BEEITABRE RRABIREK
BAZEMPR

FEEXHFRRE

%5l

Policy/Procedure

BE/BF

Air Emission Management Guideline
BERFEME RS

Solid Waste Management Guideline
ElRRE Y B4 5|

Wastewater Emission Management
Guideline

KB E R 5|

Green Office Guideline

A= YN

Environmental Procurement Guideline
RREBI{ERES

Office and Workshop General
Operation Guideline
WAERTE—REIEIES
Green practices on the use of
resource are implemented. We are
in the process of setting up the
environmental policies in retail stores
BB RERNRRIEEE LT
BMRERESEENRREE

The Group’s operations do not have
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources
AEBEEHRERANERY &
BEREATE
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Reference Section

BEEH

To Public: Love is Beauty -
Environmental Protection
HAR: BRE — RERE

To Public: Love is Beauty -
Environmental Protection
HAR: BRE — RERE

Not Applicable
TiEm
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
EEXPABR HERELREHESIN—RESE

B. Social
B.it®

B1 Employment
B1 &%

B2 Health and Safety
B2 RREZ 2

B3 Development and Training

B3 & K5

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare

BRE R EE BEREF T

BE R FERE Sl Rk

BUARE M8 RABME

(@) BUK: R

b) BTHETABEAZENIE
WEERROINER

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have
a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards

ﬁﬁhfﬁ%l?%%&f BES

BRBEMEEN:

(@) BK: K

b) BFHETABEAZEMA
WEERRBINER

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities
BHRTHES BT IIERE MM
BB BR - f L5 R B

FEEXHAER HERELHEES

#5l

Policy/Procedure

BE/BF

Staff Handbook
& 85

Occupational Health and Safety
Guideline for Office and Retail Store

PRAERTEENBERRRZ2
13l
Training KPI

P B ERUE R

Reference Section

BEEH

To Employees: Lukfook Family
- Employment Standard, Work-
life Balance, Equal Opportunity
Employer

HET "BARE — ERFER
X TERAFNTE TS5
eEE

To Employees: Lukfook Family
- Occupational Health and
Safety

HET RABRARE — BER
RRZ®

To Employees: Lukfook Family
- Development and Training
HET "RBRARE — ¥&R
23
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
EEXPMBR HERESRERSIN—RESE

B4 Labour Standard
B4 4 T %8|

B5 Supply Chain Management
B5 fit s E =

B6 Product Responsibility
B6 EmE ff

B7 Anti-corruption
B7 k&S

B8 Community Investment

B8 HEIEE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child or
forced labour

BAEMEET SRS TH:

(@) BUK: R

b) BFHETABEAZEZMA
BEERROINER

Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of supply chain
BERMHEEEIRG Rt @A BRBER

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods

of redress
BRMREHERMREORRER
2 BE EHREBEEARER
FER
@ BX: &

b) BFTHETABERTEMIE
RERRANNER

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering

BAMIEHE PR B RERE

ok

(@) HE: R

) BFHETABEAZEZMA
WEERRBINER

Policies on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration communities’
interests

ARNHRZERTRETALE

EMERENEREEXBEDS
E BALEE M S AR

FEEXHFRRE

%5l

Policy/Procedure

BE/BF

Staff Handbook
& B F

Corruption Prevention Policy
RERFB R

Engineering and Operation of Goods
Approval Process
IRREENRELRE
Financial Authorization and

Signing Approval Procedure
RHERERERBEIT ZELRTE

Customer Complaint Handling
Procedure
BERFREER

Staff Handbook

EEFM

Corruption Prevention Policy
RRAXHHE

We are in the process of setting up
the community investment policies

MREHELRREBE
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Reference Section

BESH

To Employees: Lukfook Family
- Labour Standard
HET : NBAKRE —
&l

HIE

To Customers: Six Heartfelt
Services - Supply Chain

Management
HER : SORB — HEEE
i

To Customers: Six Heartfelt
Services - Product and Service
Responsibility

HER: SLERE —ERRR
BEE

To Employees: Lukfook Family
- Anti-corruption, Grievance
Mechanism
HET:ABARE — RE
75 B

To Public: Love is Beauty —
Corporate Citizen
HAR: BRE— LEAR
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
AND BOARD COMMITTEES
EFERESEERENENR

* Executive Director $117# %
# Non-executive Director JE#/TE %
A Independent Non-executive Director 37 3EE11T& =
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) recognises that sound and effective
corporate governance practices and procedures, with an
emphasis on integrity, transparency, accountability and
independence, are essential to enhance the shareholders’ value
and safeguard the shareholders’ interest. The Company is
committed to maintaining a good corporate governance standard
and endeavours to ensure that its businesses are conducted in
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Shareholders

R®R

External Auditor
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
code provisions and, where applicable, the recommended best
practices of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) through the year ended 31 March 2018, except for
the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual, so that there is a clear division
of responsibilities for the management of the Board and the
day-to-day management of the Group’s business to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

In view of the increasing trend of business deriving from the
Mainland China market, it is believed that Mr. WONG Wai Sheung
being the Chairman and Chief Executive of the Company will
further enhance the business development of the Group in the
Mainland China market due to the norms in the Mainland China
market on “status parity” when future business negotiations are
conducted in Mainland China. Besides, members of the Board
also include qualified professionals and other prominent and
experienced individuals from our community. The Board considers
that the existing Board composition, with the support of Board
Committees and two Deputy Chairmen, can ensure a balance
of power and authority. The Board will nevertheless review this
structure from time to time and will consider the segregation of
the two roles at the appropriate time.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is aware of any
information that would reasonably indicate that the Company is
not, or was not for any part of the year ended 31 March 2018, in
compliance with the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of
all directors, it is confirmed that all directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

() Board Composition
The Board currently comprises six executive directors,
four non-executive directors and five independent non-
executive directors. They include persons with a wealth of
practical experiences in the jewellery industry, accountancy
profession, general trading, securities industry, banking
industry and legal profession. There is a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate for the requirements of the
Company’s business. The composition of our Board
complies with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. The current composition of the Board is set out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping

Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairmar)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

The biographical details of the directors are set out in the
section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 90 to 101 of this Annual Report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EEE W
(i) Attendance Records at the Board, Committees (i) EXETER ZRTTERABREXRT
and General Meetings ZHEid 8%
The attendance records of the individual directors at AR EEREZ2018F3A31 H L FEHE
the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, IREESER BREEETRE RE
Remuneration Committee and general meetings for the year ZESgR THEEEERMREARE
ended 31 March 2018 are set out as follows: Z B ERREEE T
No. of Meetings Attended/Held
HE/ BTEERH
Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Directors = EXE EUEAE REZRE FHERE RRAFEXE
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & &F & %4 (FEF 4/4 N/A T i@ 171 2/2 1/1
Chief Executive) (Note 1) TBAE) (Hi1)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen Bl vt 4/4 N/A A 11 N/A N P il
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 2) (BIZE) (Hi2)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung InBat 44 NATER N/A T i@ 2/2 11
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy HRFLT 4/4 N/A TNEA N/A & A N/A R EA 11
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping BEkLT 4/4 N/A 138 N/A N8 £ N/A 138 A 1/1
Dr. CHAN So Kuen BxBEELT 4/4 N/A i F N/A i N/A TN F il
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny HERAE 4/4 N/A B N/A 7NE A N/A RE A 11
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 3) (BIEE) (H##3)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BERIL 4/4 N/A 138 N/A N8 £ N/A 138 A 1/1
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP HRRATHT 44 NATER  NATER  NATER 1
Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP ZEEBBS MHAF 4+ 4/4 N/A 7N N/A 1 N/A i 0/1
Independent Non-executive BiUkpfTES
Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander HEREE 4/4 2/2 17 2/2 11
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP £ #2GBSAF 4+ 4/4 2/2 1 2/2 11
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin EXREE 4/4 2/2 11 2/2 A
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP EREATaT 3/4 1/2 0/1 1/2 il
Mr. HUI King Wai TR 4/4 2/2 1 2/2 il
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

60

Attendance Records at the Board, Committees
and General Meetings (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was re-elected as the Chairman of the
Company with effect from 28 August 2017.

2. Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman of the

Company with effect from 28 August 2017.
3. Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman
of the Company with effect from 28 August 2017.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of
the Company within a framework of prudent and effective
controls which enables risks to be assessed and managed.
The Board controls the business but delegates day-to-day
responsibilities to the executive management. The Board
sets the Company’s strategic aims, values and standards
and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and
others are understood and met.

The Company has a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision. The Board gives clear
directions to management as to the matters that must be
approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf
of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Board Responsibilities and Delegation (Continued)
All the directors of the Company have full and timely access
to all relevant information and have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that all proper Board procedures,
applicable rules and regulations are followed. All the
directors including the independent non-executive directors
may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense in carrying out
their functions, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
regularly.

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Board has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen,
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina
and Mr. HUI King Wai, an annual confirmation of his or her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and, having taken into account the factors as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules in assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors, the Company
considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander has been serving as an
independent non-executive director of the Company for
more than 9 years. His re-appointment was subject to
the shareholders’ approval. The Nomination Committee
considered that this long service did not interfere with
his exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the
duties and responsibilities of an independent non-executive
director to maintain an independent view of the Group’s
affairs, in particular when his past performance was taken
into account. The Nomination Committee regarded him as
independent and believed he would continue to contribute
effectively to the Board because of his familiarity with
the Group’s businesses and affairs, and in this spirit he
was recommended to the Board for approval. The Board
concurred with the opinion of the Nomination Committee
and recommended the reappointment of Mr. TAI Kwok
Leung, Alexander at the AGM held on 28 August 2017. The
shareholders approved the re-appointment at the AGM.

EEE W@

(iii)

(iv)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

62

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors (Continued)

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2018 and up
to the date of this Annual Report, the Board had at
all times met the requirements under Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one of
them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Directors’ Relationship

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or connected
relationship between members of the Board.

Re-election of Directors

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ Ongoing Development

All directors have the opportunities to receive professional
training programmes arranged by the Company during
their terms of appointment covering the topics of corporate
governance, updates on the Listing Rules and other
regulatory developments at the expense of the Company.
Directors were encouraged by the Company to participate
in the relevant continuous professional training to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has also arranged for consultants to provide training
programmes. The average training hours that the directors
received were not less than 10 hours.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
(vii) Directors’ Ongoing Development (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company
arranged a seminar covering updates on Accounting
Standards and Cybersecurity. Directors’ training records
during the Year under review are summarised as follows:

¢ 3 4¢ )
(vi) EEMFERRE (18)

HE2018F3A31H IHFE » A A A gLt
TR E RRER S EAME
MBPAREZ 2 - PEIEFEN  EZHE
OEREaian T

Training on regulatory development,
directors profession or duties,
or other relevant topics

FRETRER EFFERRER
Directors EF HfhE R R R A B Al
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung HEBLE v
(Chairman & Chief Executive) (EEFTHBAEZ)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen FmEta v
(Deputy Chairman) EHEY )
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung Frksa L v
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy EHFXT v
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping EEk L+ v
Dr. CHAN So Kuen fR=1818 L= v
Non-executive Directors FRTES
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny AR A 4
(Deputy Chairman) (51F /)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BBEREZT v
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP FFRRAP R4+ v
Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP ZE 1EBBS - MHA SE 4R+ v
Independent Non-executive Directors HILIEHITESE
Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander BERLTAE v
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP S GBSA T+ v
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin KR AE 4
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP ELER T v
Mr. HUI King Wai FFREEL ST v
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Chairman leads the Board in the determination of strategies
and in the achievement of objectives and ensures that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings and
receive adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chief
Executive is delegated with the authority and responsible for
running the Company’s business, implementing the Company’s
strategies in achieving business objectives. Both the Chairman
and the Chief Executive positions are currently held by Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung, an executive director. The Board believes that the
current governance structure, with a combined Chairman and
Chief Executive and a vast majority of non-executive directors,
provides an effective balance of power and authority for the
management of the Company in the best interest of the Company
at the present stage.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the non-executive directors are appointed for a term of two
years, and the appointments are renewable from time to time,
subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, including
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing the respective aspects of the Group’s
affairs.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense
in appropriate circumstances.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1 February 1999
with written terms of reference accessible on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander,
with four other members namely Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen,
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and
Mr. HUI King Wai. All Committee members are independent
non-executive directors, a higher majority than that required
by the Listing Rules. In compliance with Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, majority of the members possess appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

During the Year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to discuss and review, inter alia, the interim and
annual financial statements, the submission and publication
of the interim and annual reports, the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report, the corporate governance
and compliance status of the Code and the internal audit
plan and functions of the Group.

The Company believes that a clear appreciation of the
separate roles of the management, the external auditors
and Audit Committee members is crucial to the effective
functioning of an audit committee. The Board is responsible
for selecting appropriate accounting policies and the
preparation of the financial statements. The external
auditors are responsible for auditing and attesting to the
Group’s financial statements and evaluating the Group’s
system of internal controls, to the extent that they
consider necessary to support their audit report. The Audit
Committee is responsible for overseeing the entire process.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i) Audit Committee (Continued)
The major functions and duties of the Audit Committee
mainly include:

reviewing the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements and the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board for approval;

reviewing the financial reporting obligations and
considering any matters raised by the Group’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or external auditor;

reviewing and monitoring the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor, and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards;

approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor and making recommendations
on the appointment, re-appointment or removal of
external auditor;

reviewing the internal audit programme and ensuring
that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and effective, and considering any major findings of
internal control matters;

reviewing the financial control, internal control and
risk management systems of the Group and ensuring
that the management has discharged its duty to
have effective risk management and internal control
systems, in particular, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions; and

reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and the Company’s
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

As at 31 March 2018, the arrangements for employees and
stakeholders of the Group to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, risk management,
internal control or other matters and the whistleblowing
procedures are in place.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(ii)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 1 April
2012 with written terms of reference accessible on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. MAK Wing Sum,
Alvin, being an independent non-executive director, with six
other members namely Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE
Moon Chuen, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu
Kwan, Stephen, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI
King Wai, with majority of whom being the independent
non-executive directors. The Chairman of this Committee
is an independent non-executive director and five out of
seven Committee members are independent non-executive
directors, a higher majority than that required by the Code.

During the Year under review, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors, review and make
recommendation to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and to review the retirement and
rotation plan of the directors.
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(i)

68

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The principal role and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee mainly include giving full consideration to
succession planning for directors and senior management,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors. In order to achieve a
balanced and appropriately qualified Board, the Nomination
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition, including the skills, knowledge,
diversity and experience, of the Board, and advising
the Board as to any changes that may be required. The
Nomination Committee has the authority given by the
Board to seek external professional advice in the selection
and recommendation for directorship, if necessary, to fulfil
the requirements for professional knowledge and industry
experience of any proposed candidates.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. As such, the Company continued to adopt
board diversity policy during the Year under review. In
achieving a truly diverse Board, candidates with different
talents, skills, knowledge, length of service and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, age,
gender and other qualities may be selected as members
of the Board. Selection of candidates is based on a range
of diversity criteria. The ultimate decision is based on merit
and contribution which would be brought by the candidates
to the Board if he/she was selected as a director. The
Nomination Committee is of the view that the current
composition of the Board has achieved the objectives set
out in the above board diversity policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(iii)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 7
April 2005 with written terms of reference posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. IP Shu Kwan,
Stephen, being an independent non-executive director, with
six other members namely, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms.
WONG Hau Yeung, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr.
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr.
HUI King Wai, with majority of whom being the independent
non-executive directors. The Chairman of this Committee
is an independent non-executive director and five out of
seven Committee members are independent non-executive
directors, a higher majority than that required by the Listing
Rules.

The principal role and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee mainly include making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy, structure and
packages for all remuneration of directors and senior
management; reviewing and approving performance-
based remuneration and the terms of service contracts
of the directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the compensation payable in connection with
any loss or termination of office or appointment of directors
and senior management, overseeing any major changes
in employee benefits structures throughout the Company
or the Group; and reviewing the on-going appropriateness
of the remuneration policy. No director or member of the
senior management determined his/her own remuneration
package.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during
the Year under review to review the remuneration policies
and recommend for the Board approval of the annual salary
increments for the calendar year 2018, the discretionary
year-end bonus for 2017 and the performance bonus for all
non-sales employees working at the Head Office.

Details of directors’ emoluments, five highest paid
individuals and the remuneration of the members of the
senior management by band during the Year under review
are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements on pages
190 to 194 of this Annual Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Board Diversity

The Board is composed of members from a diverse background.
The Company excels in gender equality as female Directors
account for two-fifth of the whole Board. The chief financial
officer, an executive director and three independent non-
executive directors are qualified accountants. There is also an
independent non-executive director who is a qualified solicitor.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee was the Secretary
for Economic Development and Labour of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Seven Directors
have experience sitting on the boards of other companies listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The Directors have
extensive experiences in the retail jewellery business, finance and
accounting, taxation, business strategy, securities and investment,
public relations, communications and marketing, branding, and
exposure or experience in various countries including China, etc.
They are members, or committee or panel members of various
industry bodies, public service or government bodies or charities.
The Directors bring a wealth of diverse experience to the Board,
which is conducive to the growth of the Company over the years.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by the external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants, were as
follows:

ZREN N &
EF'EWI\%V%IEWE,E\U&%L =R ES e

SETED) RREER MIEEF RG2S 17
mr

2018

HK$'000

FHE T

Audit services Ei AR 5,487

Non-audit services IEFE R

— Review service —EB R 560

— Tax related service — W% MR AR 75 1,141

Total #Et 7,188
The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to financial ~ MNEZ RN SHRE B2 BE S0 IE L

reporting are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of each financial period, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of the
financial period and of the result and cash flows of the Group for
the year. In the Company’s interim and annual reports which are
issued within the time limits stipulated by the Listing Rules, the
Board presents a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment
of the Company’s performance, position and prospects. The
published financial statements adopt, and consistently apply,
suitable accounting policies complying with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The Board ensures that the Company maintains sound and
effective internal control to safeguard the shareholders’ interest
and the Company’s assets. The Audit Committee, with the
assistance of the Internal Audit Team, regularly reviews the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system. The Head
of the Internal Audit Team directly reports to the Audit Committee.

The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines for
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal
control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship
with the Company’s external auditors. The Audit Committee
established by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules has
clear terms of reference.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

In order to achieve enhanced corporate governance of the
Company, the Board has undertaken and delegated to the Audit
Committee to constantly review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and the directors,
and the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report. During the Year under review,
the Audit Committee performed the duties relating to corporate
governance matters as aforementioned.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year under review, the company secretary undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update the skills and
knowledge, which exceeded the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is responsible for the Company’s systems of risk
management and internal control and for reviewing their
effectiveness annually through the Audit Committee.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee has received the risk management and
internal control evaluation reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Team. The reports summarised information relating to the work
carried out in the following areas:

° the results of selective testing of internal control procedures,
assets, and financial records of the Company;

° a general evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems installed by the Company; and

° an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the
Year under review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and discussed
with the management.

The Audit Committee recognised that an evaluation of the
risk management system and an examination of the internal
control system have been adequately executed by the Internal
Audit Team during the Year under review. The Audit Committee
acknowledged that the management has been progressively
implementing adequate and effective risk management and
internal control systems in order to ensure the effective functioning
of the Company’s operations.

Risk Management Committee

As our commitment to establishing and improving the risk
management system, ensuring timely identification and
management of risks for the achievement of corporate objectives,
the Risk Management Committee was set up in 2016, comprising
the Chairman and Chief Executive, four executive Directors
(including Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung,
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy and Dr. CHAN So Kuen) and a senior
executive of the Group. The duties of the Risk Management
Committee include, but are not limited to: (i) review the
Company’s compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules regarding risk management requirements; (i)
coordinate staff training, including risk management principles,
assessment methodology and its implementation; and (jii) assign
personnel to support departments to perform risk assessment
for newly established business or projects, if necessary. This
committee reports directly to the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Risk Management Framework

The Company’s risk management framework provides a
systematic and disciplined approach to risk management
process, which is embedded in the system of internal controls as
an integral part of corporate governance. The risk management
framework helps sustain business success, creates value
for stakeholders and supports the Board in discharging its
corporate governance responsibilities by proactively identifying,
addressing and managing key risks within the Group. The
risk management framework is aligned with the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission (‘COSQO”)
integrated framework for effective internal controls, which
comprises 17 principles under 5 components, including Control
Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities, Information
and Communication and Monitoring Activities. Departments
& Management as risk owners take direct risk management
responsibilities and reports to the Risk Management Committee.

A summary of the risk management framework of the Company is
shown as below:

Risk Management Framework
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

Risk Management Framework (Continued)

Board of Directors

° Setting the basic tone and culture of risk management
across the Group;

° Approving the criteria of risk assessment;

° Approving major decisions affecting the Group’s risk profile
Or exposure;

° Approving changes to key elements of the risk management
procedures;

° Approving the Group’s risk management policy; and
° Monitoring significant risks

Audit Committee
o Reviewing the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

° Ensuring that effective systems of risk management and
internal control are established by the management

Risk Management Committee
° Recommending the Group’s risk tolerant level and criteria;

° Approving standard risk management templates including
forms and tools;

° Approving risk registers;

o Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the Code as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules regarding risk
management requirements;

° Appointing risk owners;

° Appointing staff to support departments to conduct risk
assessments on new ventures and activities;

° Conducting review on procedures and policies of risk
management;

° Reporting, if any, significant risks to Audit Committee in a
timely manner; and

° Coordinating staff training
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)
Risk Management Framework (Continued)
Departments & Management

Departments and management are responsible for the
identification and assessment of risks within their areas of

responsibility:

Objective Setting and Categorisation
° Strategies;

° Operation;
° Financial reporting; and
o Compliance

Risk ldentification
° The Group provides examples of risk factors; and

o Risks should be relevant to strategies and objectives

Risk Analysis
° Considering existing control measures;

o Using a consistent scoring criteria; and
° Assessing the residual risks

Risk Treatment
° Choosing a risk treatment strategy;

o Establishing a treatment plan; and

° Appointing risk owners

Effectiveness Monitoring and Reporting
° Monitoring and reporting risks periodically; and

° Setting up an emergent risk reporting mechanism
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Review Processes of the Effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The management and the Risk Management Committee review
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Internal Audit Team also conducts independent
audit of the effectiveness of these systems. Separate reports are
submitted to the Audit Committee for its review and appraisal.
A final report will be submitted to the Board for accessing the
effectiveness of the systems.

If any material internal control defects are found, the Audit
Committee will discuss them with the management. The Internal
Audit Team will follow up and/or re-classified as “severe” risk in
the risk management system for further formulating measures to
resolve or prevent such defects.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit is an independent function undertaken by the
Internal Audit Team reporting administratively to the Company’s
management and reporting functionally to the Audit Committee.
The Internal Audit Team is authorised to obtain all information
necessary to accomplish internal audit work.

The Board has conducted an annual review to ensure the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

A risk-based audit approach has been adopted by the Internal
Audit Team. Internal control reviews are conducted regularly to
closely monitor business or operation changes. Regular audit
tests are carried out to ensure key controls are in operation. The
Internal Audit Team also conducts other projects and investigating
work as required.
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INTERNAL AUDIT (Continued)

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with
respective department heads to have actions agreed and
subsequently followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory
control is maintained.

In each semi-annual work plan, manning levels of the Internal
Audit Team are agreed with the Audit Committee. A summary of
the internal audit activities and audit results are also submitted to
the Audit Committee twice a year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to submit a written requisition requiring an
SGM to be called by the Board. The written requisition (i) must
state the purposes of the SGM; and (i) must be signed by
the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene an SGM, the
requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them may convene an SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after expiration of
three months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. An
SGM convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in any SGM to be
convened by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, either any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, or not less
than 100 shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (i)
give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (ii)
circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company (contact details are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information”) with
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one
week before the meeting in case of any other requisition.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose for
election as a director have been posted on the website of the
Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains an ongoing dialogue with shareholders
and in particular, endeavours to provide transparency and uses
the annual general meetings and investors’ conferences, to
communicate with shareholders and invites their participation in
certain marketing events. Besides, the Company’s official website
serves as a handy communication channel for the shareholders.
Press releases and announcements about the Company’s
business affairs are made from time to time.

The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for voting by
poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures compliance with
the requirements regarding voting by poll contained in the Listing
Rules and the Company’s Bye-laws.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s
business address in Hong Kong at Luk Fook Jewellery
Centre, No. 239 Temple Street, Jordan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
Shareholders may also make proposals at the general meetings.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year under review.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EREHRE

The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (“the Year
under review”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
(the “Company”) is investment holding. The subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the sourcing, designing, wholesaling,
trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of gold and platinum
jewellery and gem-set jewellery products.

An analysis of the performance of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year under review,
the material factors underlying its results and financial position and
material attributable factors of the development and likely future
developments of the Group’s business, are provided throughout
this Annual Report, particularly in the following separate sections:

(@) Review of the Group’s business — “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 3 to 6 and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 7 to 22;

(b)  The principal risks and uncertainties the Group is facing —
“Report of the Directors” on pages 81 to 110;

(c)  Future development in the Group’s business — “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 3 to 6 and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 7 to 22;

(d) Analysis using financial key performance indicators —
“Financial Highlights” on page 1 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 22;

(e) Information about the Group’s Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) policies and performance — ESG
Report on pages 30 to 54 and “Report of the Directors” on
pages 81 to 110;
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

) Discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations — “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 55 to 80 and “Report of the Directors” on pages 81
to 110; and

(@ An account of the Group’s key relationships with its
employees, customers and suppliers and others — “ESG
Report” on pages 30 to 54 and “Report of the Directors” on
pages 81 to 110.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the risk
management practices of the Group are sufficient to mitigate
the risks present in our businesses and operations as efficiently
and effectively as possible. The Board delegates some of such
responsibilities to various departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business and
prospects may be affected by the following identified risks and
uncertainties. The Group adopts risk management policies,
measures and monitoring systems to pre-empt and contain
exposures associated with the identified risks.

Economic Risks

Global Economic Condition

Possible economic slowdown or prolonged downturn of the
global or Mainland China’s economy may affect the retail market
sentiment as a whole.

Tourist Destinations
The increase in popularity of other tourist destinations weakens
the spending of Mainland tourists in Hong Kong and Macau.

Operational Risks

Rent

As a retailer, rent accounts for a considerable portion of the
Group’s expenses. Rental increment on retail shops directly
affects the profit of the Group. The Group strikes a good balance
between shop expansion and profit increment. The Group strives
to lower rent via negotiations with landlords, close branches with
low profitability and search for suitable locations in other areas, for
new shops.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Operational Risks (Continued)

Prices of Raw Materials

Fluctuations in prices of raw materials may adversely affect our
profitability. We strive to improve our purchasing procedures in
order to maintain reasonable raw materials costs. On the other
hand, the Group has a gold hedging ratio of around 20% which
mitigate the impact on the profit due to the drop in gold prices.

Fierce Competition

There is strong competition from national and local competitors
in jewellery and watch industry. The Group has formulated a set
of branding strategies to increase brand image and awareness.
Details of such strategies are set out in “Branding” on pages 23
to 29.

Inventory Turnover
Owing to the impact of volatile macroeconomic environment in
Asia especially Mainland China, our inventory turnover bears the
risk of slowing down.

Management of Licensed Shops

Licensed shops play an important role in raising the brand
awareness of the Group. Maintaining a good brand image and
reputation is a win-win situation for both the Group and the
licensed shops. Therefore, the Group uses best endeavours to
ensure their consistency with the Group’s image and operation
standard. We maintain a close working relationship with our
licensed shops as well as provide one-stop support to them, such
as shop-opening training, the provision of operation manuals and
regular operation review meetings.

We also closely monitored the licensed shops through a stringent
control system which consists of 6 areas of control, including
Operational Control; Product Quality Control; Distribution Network
Control; Pricing Control; Brand Image Control; and Service Quality
Control. Details of such system are set out on page 84.
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Control System on Licensed Shops

mEEEERR

Operational Control B EE®

e Whistle-blowing System and Reward Scheme
B ARG R ER T E

e Sales and Inventory System Access
HERTFERGE

e DVR System

Product Quality Control KR EEE

e 100% diamond products in Mainland market
offered by Lukfook
A T 55 # A 2= m 100% R 7S A He

e Authorized suppliers on other products

HAth E am FR 46 TE 1B 7 R

Distribution Network Control E &£ fIKEEE

e  Prior approval on retail locations
BEMKTERUE

Pricing Control {B#E &

e Standardised retail price for products through
centralised labeling process
FBRG—RERIE NE—ERTEE

Brand Image Control @R EE

e Authorised renovation contractors
HEEREABR
e Prior approval on all advertising & promotion

BREBEMMARSNER

Service Quality Control R R EEE

e Mystery Shopper System on service
quality control
MR EAEEREmE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWME

Operational Compliance Audit Team
EECHMEES A

Annual Contract Renewal Basis
BEBLRS

Cash On Delivery Basis

BB SR

Certificate issued by NGTC/GTC for

quality assurance
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Sightholder of De Beers — steady quality rough
diamond supply

De Beerst X)L &7 - IR EBE A 2 &

Centralised control on discount policy
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Standardised operational materials
(e.g. uniform, packaging) in all shops
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Centralised Staff Training
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e Regional training centres [& 12 £ 31| 4 /0
e E-| earning programmes 48 _+ 2582
e On-site training & 3% 3l
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Regulatory Risks

Change in Laws and Regulations

The changes in laws and regulations such as the Competition
Ordinance (Cap. 619 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
adjustment to the policy of Individual Visit Scheme could
adversely affect our businesses. Our management keeps a close
eye on the change in such laws and regulations and adjusts the
Group’s operating strategies accordingly, in order to maintain the
Group’s market competitiveness.

Intellectual Property

We recognise the importance of building a good reputation and
protecting our intellectual property. Any unauthorised use of our
trademarks in counterfeit products could harm our brand image
and reputation, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In view of this, the Group’s legal department has set up
committees in both Hong Kong and Nansha of Mainland China
to handle tasks in respect of intellectual properties (such as
trademarks, design patents and fighting against infringement).

The Group has successfully registered the “Lukfook” trademark in
the regions where Lukfook has a presence (such as Hong Kong,
Macau, Mainland China, Singapore, Korea, Malaysia, Cambodia,
the United States, Canada and Australia). Our legal department
has reached a consensus with our product development
department, marketing department and design department
that any new product, collection, display prop and fitting out
design should be forwarded as soon as practicable to the legal
department for applying for design patent/copyright in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau so as to ensure the maximum
protection for the Group.

The Group’s legal department and business department
constantly monitor any infringement by free-riding brands across
Mainland China, and cooperate with the law enforcement
agencies to fight against infringement. The Group always
encourages colleagues to monitor any infringement during their
business trips and report the infringement to the legal department,
and endeavours to fight against infringement of the Group’s
intellectual properties.

Financial Risks
Details of financial risks are set out in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the non-compliance with such
requirements could lead to the risk of termination of operating
licences. The Group has been allocating systems and human
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships
with regulators effectively through effective communications.
During the Year under review, as far as the Group is aware, it
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group places great importance on environmental protection
and endeavours to promote sustainable development. It
incorporates relevant environmental strategies in every aspect of
its business, and implements initiatives in areas such as energy
saving and waste management in manufacturing, administration
and daily retail operations to mitigate the impact on the
environment.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a fair
and safe work environment, promotes staff diversity, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The
Group also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate training
and resources to the employees so that they can keep abreast
of the latest development of the market and the industry and,
at the same time, improve their performance and facilitate their
self-fulfillment in their positions.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Relationships with Key Stakeholders (Continued)

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationship with customers and providing products which
satisfy their needs and requirements. The Group enhances the
relationship by continuous interaction with customers to gain
insight into the changing market demand for different products
so that the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also
established procedures in handling customers’ feedbacks and
complaints to ensure that customers’ opinions are dealt with in
prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains stable business relationship with its
suppliers and service providers. In order to have a better
and close monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s
management regularly conducts performance reviews targeting
the Group’s major suppliers and service providers, and
communicates with them for rectification and improvements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the Year under review are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 120.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.35
per ordinary share and a special dividend of HK$0.20 per
ordinary share, totalling HK$0.55 per ordinary share. A total of
HK$322,909,000 was paid on 27 December 2017.

The directors proposed a final dividend of HK$0.55 per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$0.55 per
share) to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 21 August 2018. Taking into
account of the interim and special dividends paid, the total
dividend for the year would amount to HK$1.10 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$645,818,000 for the year (2017: HK$1.10
per ordinary share, totalling HK$645,818,000). Subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM”) of the Company to be held on 15 August 2018,
the final dividend will be paid on or around 30 August 2018.
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DONATIONS
Donations made by the Group during the Year under
review amounted to approximately HK$1,303,000 (2017:
HK$1,805,000).

SHARES ISSUED
Details of the shares issued by the Company during the Year
under review are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the Year under
review or subsisted at the end of the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2018,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$1,049,558,000 (2017: HK$998,771,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last
five financial years ended 31 March are as follows:
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FHET FET FET
Results E 1
Revenue WA 14,578,409 12,807,277 14,031,302 15,922,708 19,214,930
Profit attributable to equity KRB FEA
holders of the Company JE4E %% F 1,369,393 1,016,838 958,692 1,614,805 1,864,928
Assets and liabilities BERAR
Total assets BEE 12,214,878 10,679,250 10,629,499 11,511,237 9,586,156
Total liabilities FER=R 2,135,141 1,699,310 1,860,580 2,910,730 1,887,001
Shareholders’ funds WHES 10,034,769 8,873,350 8,673,796 8,536,363 7,640,769
PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF BA -HeEsXEOSES

SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year
under review.
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DIRECTORS
The directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2018 and up to the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping

Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM of the Company.
Accordingly, Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping,
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, Mr. HUI Chiu Chung and Mr. IP Shu
Kwan, Stephen, shall retire from office by rotation at the AGM. All
the retiring directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM. Details of the proposed directors to be re-
elected are set out in the circular sent together with this Annual
Report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 67, is the founder, Chairman,
Chief Executive and Executive Director of the Group. He is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. WONG has over 51 years of experience in the
jewellery industry and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. He is the Honorary
Life President of The Kowloon Gold Silver and Jewel Merchant's
Staff Association, the Honorary Permanent Chairman of Hong
Kong Jade Association, the Chairman of Supervisory Committee
of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver
Ornament Merchants Association, the Honorary Chairman of
Macau Goldsmith’s Guild, the Honorary Chairman of the First
General Committee and Vice President of Guangdong Golden
Jewelry and Jade Industry’s Association, the Honorary Vice
President of the Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China,
the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Small and Medium
Enterprises Association, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong
Gemstone Manufacturers’ Association, Founding Member and
Vice President of Shenzhen Gold & Silver Jewelry Creative
Industry Association, Honorary Consultant of H.K. Gold &
Silver Ornament Workers & Merchants General Union and the
Consultant of the 6th Term General Committee of Hong Kong
Brand Development Council. Mr. WONG is the father of Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Deputy Chairman and Non-executive
Director of the Company and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy,
Executive Director and Deputy Business Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 67, is the co-founder of the Group.
Presently, he is the Deputy Chairman, Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager of the Group. He is also a member
of the Nomination Committee. Mr. TSE has over 45 years of
experience in jewellery retailing business and is responsible for the
merchandising and production functions of the Group. Mr. TSE
is an Executive Committee Member of the Diamond Federation
of Hong Kong, China Ltd., a Vice President of The Chinese Gold
& Silver Exchange Society, the Vice Chairman of The Kowloon
Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association, a Life Honorary Chairman of Hong
Kong Tsuen Wan Industries and Commerce Association Limited,
the President of The Tsuen Wan Festival Lightings Organizing
Committee, a Member of the Kwun Tong District Junior Police
Call (JPC) Honorary President Council, a Vice Chairman of Macau
Goldsmith’s Guild, a Director of Hong Kong, Guangzhou, Foshan
and Zhaoqing Friendship Association, an Honorary President
of Tsuen Wan Committee for Celebration of Reunification of
Hong Kong with China, an Honorary President of Tsuen Wan
Preparatory Community of National Day, a Vice President
of Zhaoging Overseas Friendship Association, an Honorary
Consultant of Shatin Friends Society, an Executive Committee
Member and Vice Director of Finance of Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths’ Association, a Vice Chairperson of Tsuen Wan
District Fire Safety Ambassador Honorary Presidents’” Association,
an Honorary President of H.K. Gold & Silver Ornament Workers
& Merchants General Union, an Honorary President of The
Residents Association of Tsuen Wan Hoi Bun District, an Honorary
President of Hong Kong New Territories District Adviser Alumni
Association, a 12th Term Executive Director of Guangzhou Panyu
Jewelry Manufacturers Association, an Honorary Consultant of
Hong Kong Precious Metals Traders Association Limited, an
Honorary Consultant of Tsuen Wan Kwai Ching District Woman’s
Association, a Vice President of Tsuen Wan District People
Joint Celebration Committee and an Honorary President of The
Federation of Tsuen Wan District Sports & Recreation Association.
Moreover, Mr. TSE was awarded the “Chief Executive’s
Commendation for Community Service” by the Government of the
Hong Kong SAR.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, aged 45, is the Executive Director
and Deputy General Manager of the Group and a member of
the Remuneration Committee. She is also a Director of China
Gold Silver Group Company Limited (“CGS”), an associate of the
Company which conducts jewellery retail and franchise business
under the brand name of “3D-GOLD” in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China. Ms. WONG initially joined the Group in 1994
and served various departments for about 7 years until 2002.
She rejoined the Group in 2004. Currently, she is responsible
for the Group’s operations and development of the retail and
licensing businesses. In addition, she is also responsible for the
human resources, administration and training functions of the
Group. She holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from University of Southern Queensland. Ms. WONG is a
Member of Guangzhou Panyu District Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Standing Director
of Gemmological Association of Fujian, a Member and Convenor
of The Recognition of Prior Learning Subcommittee under The
Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee, the Honorary
Life President of Hong Kong Pun Yue Industrial and Commercial
Fellowship Association, the 6th Term Standing Director of
Guangzhou Panyu Overseas Friendship Association, the 1st Term
Committee Member of Hong Kong Federation of Guangzhou
Associations Women’s Committee, the 4th Term Director of
Guangzhou Panyu Overseas Exchange Association and the
Chairman of Panyu Hong Kong Charity Fund Limited. She has
over 24 years of experience in the jewellery industry.
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ESgWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, aged 37, is the Executive Director
and Deputy Business Director of the Group. She joined the
Group in 2006 and assists in formulating and implementing the
Group’s overall business strategies. She is also responsible
for the Group’s corporate branding, marketing, corporate
communications, product design functions and e-commerce
operations. Ms. WONG holds a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce
from the University of Toronto, Canada and a Master’'s Degree
of Science in China Business Studies from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is also a Certified Public Accountant
of the United States of America. Prior to joining the Group, Ms.
WONG worked for an international professional accounting firm
in Hong Kong, where she performed auditing and accounting
assignments for a variety of business organizations including
listed companies. She received the GIA Diamond Graduate title
in 2007. She is a Co-opted Member of the Marketing Activities
Committee of the Quality Tourism Services Association, a
Member of Jewellery Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council and a Member of Young Diamantaire
Group of Diamond Federation of Hong Kong. Ms. WONG is the
daughter of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief
Executive and Executive Director and the sister of Mr. WONG Ho
Lung, Danny, Deputy Chairman and Non-executive Director of the
Company.

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping, aged 48, is the Executive Director and
Deputy Product Development Director of the Group. She has over
30 years of experience in the jewellery industry. She joined the
Group in 1990 and is responsible for the product development
function of the Group. Ms. CHUNG frequently visits jewellery
exhibitions worldwide for product exploration and sourcing the
finest jewellery and jewellery parts for the Group. In 2001, Ms.
CHUNG won the Best of Show Award for her design “Flashing” in
the 2nd Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition. She received
the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2004. Ms. CHUNG is an
Executive Committee Member and Vice Director of General Affairs
of Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association, a Director
of the 5th Congress of Gemmological Association of Fujian, a
Director & Vice Director of Public Relations of The Kowloon Gold
Silver And Jewel Merchants’ Staff Association and a Fellow of
the Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector
Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. CHAN So Kuen, aged 58, has been appointed as the
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group
since September 2012 and an Executive Director of the Group
since 21 August 2015. Dr. CHAN graduated from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and Oklahoma City University
(the United States of America), with a Doctorate Degree and
a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration, respectively.
She is also a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Dr. CHAN had been the Director of Finance
& Company Secretary and the Deputy Chairman of the Board
of Directors & Chief Executive Officer of Bossini International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0592) for approximately 3 and
4 years respectively during the period from 2003 to 2010. Dr.
CHAN has substantial financial and management experiences in
vast varieties of businesses for more than 32 years. Dr. CHAN
is currently responsible for the overall financial management,
corporate finance, information technology, investor relations and
company secretarial matters of the Group.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 41, is the Deputy Chairman
and Non-executive Director of the Group. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of CGS. He joined the Group
as an Operations Manager in 2002. Mr. Danny WONG is an
active participant in the community and is currently a Member
of Sihui Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, a Permanent President of Sze Wui and
Kwong Ning Clansman’s Association (Hong Kong) Limited, the
President of Sihui Dasha Town Clansman’s Association (Hong
Kong), an Executive Committee Member of Diamond Federation
of Hong Kong, China Limited, a Supervisory Committee
Member of Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association, a
Supervisory Committee Member of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious
Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association,
a Member of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong and a
Member of The Association of the Hong Kong Members of
Guangdong’s Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Committees Limited. In December 2008, Mr. Danny WONG
received the GIA Diamond Graduate title. He is the son of Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief Executive and
Executive Director and the elder brother of Ms. WONG Lan Sze,
Nancy, an Executive Director and Deputy Business Director of the
Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, aged 51, is the co-founder of
the Group. Ms. YEUNG has over 30 years of experience in public
relations. Ms. YEUNG was the winner of Miss Hong Kong and
Miss International of Goodwill in 1987, and also the 4th Runner-
up of Miss Universe and Queen of Asia in 1988. Ms. YEUNG was
the President of the Wai Yin Association for the year 1995-1996.
She received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2005.

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP, aged 71, joined the Group in 1997. He
was re-designated from an Independent Non-executive Director
to a Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 October 2011,
owing to changes in factors concerning his independence. Mr.
HUI has 47 years of experience in the securities and investment
industry. Mr. HUI had for years been serving as a Council Member
and Vice Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, a member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission, a Director of the Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited, a member of the Listing
Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an
appointed member of the Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal,
a member of Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, a
member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts of
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission and also an
appointed member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Investigation Panel A. Mr. HUI was appointed by the
Government of the HKSAR as a Justice of the Peace in 2004 and
was also a member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference from 2006 to
2017. He had also been a member of Government “Appointees”
(independent member) of Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry
Council of Hong Kong. Mr. HUI also serves as Independent Non-
executive Director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited
(Stock Code: 0908), Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1212), Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation
Limited (Stock Code: 0535), China South City Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1668), SINOPEC Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 2386), Agile Property Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 3383) and FSE Engineering Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
0331) whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He was an Independent Non-executive Director
of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0711)
and Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited (Stock Code:
0388) until his resignation effective from 1 February 2015 and his
retirement effective from 29 April 2015 respectively.
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EETWME

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP, aged 61, has been appointed
as a Non-executive Director of the Company since 1 October
2011. Mr. LI holds a Diploma of Architectural Design from
Humber College of Toronto, Canada in 1981 and a Bachelor’s
of Architecture from New York Institute of Technology in 1984.
Mr. LI was awarded the Certificate of Registration Authorized
Person (List of Architects) in 1989 and the Certificate of
Registered Inspector in 2012, by the Government of the HKSAR
respectively. In professional qualification aspect, Mr. Ll is a Fellow
of Hong Kong Institute of Architects and a Member of Architect
Registration Board. He also got the PRC Class 1 Registered
Architect Qualification. Mr. LI has extensive architecture
experience and is a Director of Li & Siu Associates Ltd. and
A. Li & Associates Architects Ltd. In addition, he is a Director
of Keen Mind Kindergarten. Mr. LI was appointed as a District
Council Member of Sham Shui Po District from 2000 to 2007 and
awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation For Community
Service and Medal of Honor. He was also appointed by the
Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the Peace in 2008 and
was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in 2017. Mr. LI has
been appointed to various positions over the years including:
Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Office (East Liaison Team),
Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Fire Safety Committee,
Chairman of Sham Shui Po Council for the Promotion of Cultural
and Recreation Service Limited, Chairman of Sham Shui Po
District Fight Crime Committee, Honorary President of Sham Shui
Po District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Kowloon
City District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Yau Tsim
District Junior Police Call, Chairman of Yau Yat Chuen Residents
Association Ltd., President of Police Dragon Boat Club and
Chartered President of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong.
Mr. Li is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Sheung
Yue Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1633) which is listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWME

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TAlI Kwok Leung, Alexander, aged 60, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 24
July 2008 and is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. TAI graduated from Victoria
University of Wellington in New Zealand with a degree in
Bachelor of Commerce and Administration in 1982 and became
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in 1983. Mr. TAI has extensive accountancy,
corporate finance and investment experience in Hong Kong
and overseas. Mr. TAl is a partner of VMS Securities Limited, a
licensed corporation under the SFO to conduct Type 1 (dealing
in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities. Mr. TAl is an Independent Non-executive Director of
Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited (Stock Code: 0914),
Jiayuan International Group Limited (Stock Code: 2768) and G
& M Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6038) which are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
He is also a current member of the Shandong Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
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EETWME

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP, aged 66, has been
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
1 October 2011 and is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. IP graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with a degree of Social Sciences
in 1973. He subsequently pursued further studies in Oxford
University and Harvard Business School. Mr. IP joined the Hong
Kong Government in November 1973 as an Administrative
Officer and had served various government departments. Mr.
IP was promoted to the rank of Director of Bureau in April
1997. He worked in the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “Government of the HKSAR”") as a
Principal Official from July 1997 to June 2007. Senior positions
held by Mr. IP in the past included Commissioner of Insurance,
Commissioner for Labour, Secretary for Economic Services and
Secretary for Financial Services. Mr. IP took up the position of
Secretary for Economic Development and Labour on 1 July 2002.
His portfolio in respect of economic development covered air
and sea transport, logistics development, tourism, energy, postal
services, meteorological services, competition and consumer
protection. He was also responsible for labour policies including
matters relating to employment services, labour relations and
employees’ rights. In his capacity as Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour, Mr. IP was a member of the Hong
Kong Airport Authority Board, the Mandatory Provident Fund
Authority Board, the Hong Kong International Theme Parks
Company Board as well as the Chairman of the Logistics
Development Council, Port Development Board, Maritime Industry
Council and Aviation Development Advisory Committee. Mr. IP
retired from the Government of the HKSAR in July 2007. Mr. IP
received the Gold Bauhinia Star award from the Government of
the HKSAR in 2001, and is an unofficial Justice of the Peace.
Mr. IP is also an Independent Non-executive Director of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1313), Lai Sun
Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 0488), Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1888) and Nameson
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1982) which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, aged 65, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 31 December 2012
and is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto with
a Bachelor of Commerce degree in 1976. He is a member of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. After working in Citibank
for over 26 years, Mr. MAK retired on 1 May 2012. He last served
as the Head of Markets and Banking for Citibbank Hong Kong,
being the country business manager for corporate and investment
banking business. Mr. MAK had also held various other senior
positions in Citibank including Head of Global Banking responsible
for managing all the coverage bankers. Prior to that, he also
managed the bank’s Hong Kong corporate finance business,
regional asset management business and was the Chief Financial
Officer of North Asia. Before joining Citibank in 1985, Mr. MAK
was an audit group manager at Coopers & Lybrand (now known
as PricewaterhouseCoopers). He worked for Coopers & Lybrand
for 8 years, 5 of which was in Toronto, Canada.

Mr. MAK is an Independent Non-executive Director of |.T
Limited (Stock Code: 0999), Lai Fung Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1125), Hong Kong Television Network Limited (Stock
Code: 1137), Goldpac Group Limited (Stock Code: 3315) and
Crystal International Group Limited (Stock Code: 2232) which
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. MAK was admitted as a member of Hong
Kong Housing Society in May 2015 and is currently a member
of its Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Special
Committee on Investment.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWME

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP, aged 69, is an Independent
Non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Ms. WONG joined the Company on 20 August 2013.
Ms. WONG had been with PricewaterhouseCoopers for over 36
years specializing in the Mainland China tax and business advisory
services. Since 1978, she was responsible for the development
of the firm’s business in the Mainland China. Ms. WONG joined
Tricor Services Limited as a director from 2004 to 2006 after her
retirement as a partner from PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2004.
Ms. WONG is currently a member of the Dental Council of Hong
Kong. She is also a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

Ms. WONG is also an Independent Non-executive Director of
Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited (Stock Code:
0050), Kerry Properties Limited (Stock Code: 0683) and Kerry
Logistics Network Limited (Stock Code: 0636), which are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. HUI King Wai, aged 68, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company with effect from 21 August 2015. He
is a solicitor practising in Hong Kong. Mr. HUI is currently an Of
Counsel of Locke Lord LLP. Mr. HUI was admitted the solicitor
practising of the Supreme Court of England and Wales and of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1981 and 1982 respectively. Mr.
HUI was a Non-executive Director of the Group during the period
from 1999 to 2013.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. WONG Wai Tong, aged 57, is the Business Director of the
Group. He initially joined the Group in 1998 and served various
departments for over 10 years until 2013. Mr. WONG rejoined
the Group in 2014. He has over 41 years of manufacturing
and purchasing experience in jewellery and gold industry. Mr.
WONG is responsible for the Group’s merchandising and
assembly functions of diamonds and gemstones. He holds the
titles of a Diamond Grader of National Gemstone Testing Center
and a Certified Diamond Grader of HRD Antwerp Institute of
Gemmology. He is the 2nd Term Member of the Guangzhou
Nansha District Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, the Vice Chairman of Hong
Kong Guangzhou Nansha Association, the 6th Term Executive
Director of Guangzhou Overseas Friendship Association, the
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of Guangzhou Panyu
Jewelry Manufacturers Association, the 4th Term Executive
Director of Guangzhou Panyu Overseas Friendship Association,
the 3rd Term Director of Guangzhou Panyu District Overseas
Exchange Association, a Director of Guangzhou Diamond
Exchange, the 12th Term Director of Guangzhou Panyu District
Chamber of Commerce (Chamber) and the 3rd Term Director of
Guangzhou Nansha District Chamber of Commerce (Chamber).
Mr. WONG is the brother of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s
Chairman, Chief Executive and Executive Director.

Ms. WONG So Kuen, aged 56, is the Deputy Financial Controller
of the Group. Ms. WONG joined the Group in 1997. She is mainly
responsible for accounting, finance and tax planning matters of
the Group. Ms. WONG often travels to Mainland China in search
of information on national tax policies and privileges in order to
develop relevant tax plans for the Group. She has over 32 years of
experience in financial and accounting for commercial firms.
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EETWME

RETIREMENT SCHEME
Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set
out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
AGM have service contracts with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which are not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The fees and other emoluments of directors are determined
by reference to industry norm and market conditions, with
discretionary bonus on performance awarded to executive
directors.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 37 to the financial statements, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its subsidiaries
or its holding company was a party, and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year
under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year under review.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWME

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2018, save as disclosed below, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which
(@) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (b) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange:

%iﬁﬁ’éﬁ&kﬁﬁé%#z&ﬁ&

MR2018F3H31H R N XIFFTEE I RARIE
BERESTHA BBEE R AR F) 5 (T 2] 47 B
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SR ZIEFTI B SKOREBFBHAE LS
FrERAR ([BRFT])FEH EMBRA ([T
A FISR10ATS, ( ETBITAERETES
RHHMEESFR) ([ZESFR]) BNE A QA
MU 2 ez ROR B

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the ZH2ATFIRGREMBRBZIFE:
Company:
Number of Ordinary Shares
FERSE
Beneficiary Controlled Beneficial Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of Trust Interest Shares
EEps f§73 L-PN (3] SRfEE BFEREA EoBE (GRHEESL
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 5,166,561 454,000 240,868,176 1,511,050 247,999,787 (L) 42.24%
BERELE note () note (b) note (d)
fi5E() Fit (o) Pz ()
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 433,344 240,868,176 241,301,520 (L) 41.10%
FmEiE note (c)
Fii5E(c)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung 10,000 10,000 (L) 0.00%
InBat
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy 485,000 1,511,050 1,996,050 (L) 0.34%
B e note (d)
M EE(d)
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping 267,865 267,865 (L) 0.05%
BRIk
Dr. CHAN So Kuen 80,000 5,000 85,000 (L) 0.01%
BB note (e)
HitEe
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny 360,000 1,511,050 1,871,050 (1) 0.32%
EERLE note (d)
Pz ()
Mr. LI Hon Hung 837,437 837,437 (L) 0.14%
TEEEE
(L) Long position £ &
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ESgWE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company: (Continued)

Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, held 454,000 shares of the
Company.

Note (b)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was a discretionary beneficiary of the WONG'’s Family Trust
(the “Trust”). The Trust was the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of
Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith Company Limited which controlled over
one-third of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited. Accordingly, Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung, together with others, collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over
one-half of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited and was deemed to be
interested in 234,185,672 shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

In addition, the directors of Dragon King Investment Ltd. are accustomed to act in
accordance with the directions of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and the others, and thus
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was deemed to be interested in 6,682,504 shares held by
Dragon King Investment Ltd. in the Company. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, together with
others, collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over 30% of the voting power of
Dragon King Investment Ltd..

Note (c)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, together with others, collectively controlled (directly
or indirectly) over one-half of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited.
Accordingly, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was deemed to be interested in 234,185,672
shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

In addition, the directors of Dragon King Investment Ltd. are accustomed to act in
accordance with the directions of Mr. TSE Moon Chuen and the others, and thus Mr.
TSE Moon Chuen was deemed to be interested in 6,682,504 shares held by Dragon
King Investment Ltd. in the Company. Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, together with others,
collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over 30% of the voting power of Dragon
King Investment Ltd..

Note (d)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy and Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny, were discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust. The Trust was
the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery
& Goldsmith Company Limited which in turn was the beneficial owner of 1,511,050
shares of the Company.

Note (e)

Dr. CHAN So Kuen'’s spouse, Mr. LO Kwing Chi, held 5,000 shares of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EREHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2018, save as disclosed below, no
person, other than a director or chief executive of the Company,
had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed to the

BFF

BEELE

FERRREORERKRMGZER

M2018F3H31H ' B TN X FEEIN BEART]
SITBA B EEMIEARA

BETRABZ ALTRARA RS &

HEROT BEREESRBEE
F2ME3D EE

5 DI FEXVED

XARAR B EE 2 gk

Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of &
the SFO.
Number of Total
Name of Shareholder Shares Capacity Interest % of Shares
BEEE B8R Bin&E v EEEE ERIFRLL
Mr. CHAN Wai 3,799,022 (1) Beneficial Owner 244,667,198 (L) 41.67%
BRiEEE ERfAA
240,868,176 ()  Controlled Corporation
(note (a)) REHEE
(Pt (a))
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 6,370,229 (1) Beneficial Owner 249,825,029 (1) 42.55%
(Deceased on 14 July 2011) EaBEEA
FRimLE 243454800 ()  Controlled Corporation
(#2011 F7 A14 HE) (notes (), (o) REHEE
and (c))
(I5x@) (b)
%)
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 234,185,672 (L) Beneficial Owner 234,185,672 (L) 39.89%
NE(BR)ARA ERfAA
Silchester International Investors LLP 64,878,600 (L) Investment Manager 64,878,600 (L) 11.06%
RELE
Silchester International Investors 29,486,600 (L) Investment Manager 29,486,600 (L) 5.02%

International Value Equity Trust

() Long position #7 &

REKE
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ESgWE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Note (a)

Mr. CHAN Wai and the administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan, together with others,
collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over one-half of the voting power of Luk
Fook (Control) Limited and were deemed to be interested in 234,185,672 shares
held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

In addition, the directors of Dragon King Investment Ltd. are accustomed to act in
accordance with the directions of Mr. CHAN Wai, the administrator of Mr. Lee Shu
Kwan and the others, and thus Mr. CHAN Wai, the administrator of Mr. Lee Shu
Kwan and the others were deemed to be interested in the 6,682,504 shares held by
Dragon King Investment Ltd. in the Company. Mr. CHAN Wai and the administrator
of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan, together with others, collectively controlled (directly or
indirectly) over 30% of the voting power of Dragon King Investment Ltd..

Note (b)

The administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share capital
of Wah Hang Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 630,624 shares of the
Company.

Note (c)

The administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 51% of the entire issued share capital
of Wah Hang Kimon Holdings Limited which in turn held 1,956,000 shares of the
Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the Year under review as disclosed in Note 37 to the financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS FROM RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year under review was the Company, its
subsidiaries, its associated companies, its fellow subsidiaries, or
its parent company or its other associated corporation a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors and the chief executive
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.22 OF
THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of financial
assistance to an affiliated company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries by the Group exceeded 8% of the assets ratios as
defined in Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. Details of advances
(including guarantee given by the Group) which were non-trading
in nature, made by the Group to the affiliated company and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries were as follows:

BiE L HRAFE1322(FEHZHE

MR2018F3A31H  AEEM — KB B R R &
HeBWB ARG MBEBEBRRB LT
FRAIE14.07ANEFT AT EELL R 28% o A
EERAZBBERATIREL2ENBARREZIE
ZHHEBR(BREAEEREZER) ZFFE
I

Extent of
Corporate
Relationship Corporate Guarantee
Name of Company with the Group Advances Guarantee Utilised
BERALH
NERE BEFEEZRE 2% DEHER EHRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
3D-GOLD Jewellery (HK) Limited Associated company - 775,000 767,000
SEERE (BB)BRAA A= /NC]
3D-GOLD Enterprises Development Associated company - 123,630 -
(Shenzhen) Company Limited
SEEEEERE RV ARRAA /NS
China Gold Silver Group Company Associated company 143,190 - -
Limited
FEEIRERBR AR /NG|

Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, a pro-forma
combined balance sheet of these affiliated companies with
financial assistance from the Group and the Group’s attributable
interest in these affiiated companies as at 31 March 2018 (the
latest practical date) are presented as follows:

B ETRBIE18.2205 XS ES AL BT
BB RARICEEAHEERBEREEAS
E7A2018F3H31H (& AI1THHE) B(5ZE
BBAR 2 EmEmmnT

Pro-forma Group’s

combined attributable

balance sheet interest

wEaH . 301

Interest held SR BEARSE E{EER
50%

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Non-current assets ERENEE 579,414 289,707
Current assets MENEE 2,430,861 1,215,431
Current liabilities mENAE (1,865,827) (932,914)
Loans from shareholders A& E R (286,380) (143,190)
Net assets FEE 858,068 429,034
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ESgWE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year under review and up to the date of this report,
the Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted
under the relevant statutes for the benefit of the Directors
(including former Directors) of the Company or its associated
companies. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided for
in the Company’s Articles of Association and in the directors and
officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of
potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that
may be brought against such Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
During the Year under review, the percentages of sales for the
year attributable to the Group’s major customers are as follows:

AT £ 1R 3T

REEFEARBERAREAHALL ARF
BEBZERNA BANARFREAHRE
RAEE (BREAES) RREANRBEKRX -
BERFREGRXHREHN AR AAHEZA
A MERAKEREENSRITHRAEREE
METRRA BRARERRESTNETMER
REEMHERFRMELAEERMIELREE-

FEER
REBFERN RAEBXBEPMEFAHEE
BMZBEDIT:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHET

The largest customer BREF 2.9% 3.0%
Five largest customers combined AEHEARBP &R 5.6% 5.5%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the major customers
noted above.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchases for the Year under review
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

EEF WEIBRALREEFHARES
DTV A EARR - B EitE
BEF 2

FTEMES
REBEFER AEBEEBHEMAMGEERE
ZESLEWT:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

THT FHET

The largest supplier BEAMER 23.9% 33.3%
Five largest suppliers combined AEEARNEEYEET 67.5% 64.0%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the major suppliers noted
above.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings of the
Group as at 31 March 2018 are set out in Notes 32 and 33 to the
financial statements.
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ESgWE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company for the AGM will be
closed from 10 August 2018 to 15 August 2018, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attendance at the AGM to
be held on 15 August 2018, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 9 August 2018.

The register of members of the Company for the final dividend will
also be closed on 21 August 2018 and no transfer of shares will
be registered on that day. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 20 August 2018.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the directors are reviewed and determined by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. No director, or any of his or her associates involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

The Company had 10.4% interest in Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Co. Ltd. (‘HKRH”) as at 31 March 2018. HKRH is listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2018, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung and Mr. WONG
Ho Lung, Danny who were directors of the Company, were
also directors of China Gold Silver Group Company Limited, a
subsidiary of HKRH. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and Mr. TSE Moon
Chuen who were directors of the Company held certain shares in
HKRH, were also considered as having an interest in HKRH under
Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (Continued)

The retail and franchising operations for selling gold and jewellery
products carried on by HKRH and its subsidiaries (“HKRH
Group”) constitute competing businesses of the Group. As the
Company and HKRH were separate listed entities and run by
separate and independent management teams, the directors of
the Company believed that the Company was capable of carrying
on its business independently of the HKRH Group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the independent
non-executive directors and the Audit Committee of the Company
would on a regular basis review the business and operational
results of the Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s
development of retail, wholesale and licensing operations for
selling gold and jewellery products are and continue to be run on
the basis that they are independent of, and at arm’s length from,
the business of the HKRH Group.

Save as disclosed as aforesaid and in this report, none of the
directors of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in any business which
competed or might compete with the business in which the
Group is engaged.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders by reason of their holdings of the
Company’s securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors as at the date of this Annual
Report, the public float of shares in the Company has remained
above the minimum percentage required by the Stock Exchange
throughout the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Group for the Year under review
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

By order of the Board,
WONG Wai Sheung
Chairman & Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 BEN RS

=
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LUK FOOK
HOLDINGS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 120 to 228, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2018;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 BEN RS

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Key audit matter identified in our audit relates to existence and
valuation of inventories.

Key Audit Matter
FRE®EER

Existence and valuation of inventories

FRZFEMREEE

Refer to note 3.10, 5(@) and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.
B2 A M B wEME3.10 - 5@ 524

The carrying value of inventories of the Group is HK$7,992 million
as at 31 March 2018. The Group’s inventories mainly comprised
of gold, platinum and gem-set jewellery products in the stores,
manufacturing facilities and distribution centres. Valuation of
inventories is at lower of cost and net realisable value. Significant
portion of inventory cost includes cost of precious metals and
gems which are subject to the risk of changes in market value.
The assessment of net realisable value of inventories is based
on estimates and judgements by management in respect
of, amongst others, the economic condition, forecast sales
performance, marketability of products and the forecast market
price of precious metals and gems used to make the jewellery
products. Furthermore, there is a higher inherent risk of theft
and pilferage given the high intrinsic value and portable nature of
individual inventory item.

201853 A31H - & & E1F &8 AR E (E /R7,992,000,000/8
e BREEGEFEZEAREEH £EREESHPLNESD-
HEMKREEHER - FENDRKAERATERFEME 2R
REME - FERABALD RESBRIREXA - MZFHA
EXMEZPER FENFERFEREEESR (BT EE)
KERR  FREIHE R ERMEHEARREREGHER
FTARESE RIKRENTEHT B AT R A BT HETTR A - shoh
ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@%%%ﬂ@%%%vAﬁﬁE@%WEﬁ
R g o

EFHER(H)
BAEETT A NBRETFA/FEZR
EHREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EMEANMAEERBEAE=R

Our audit procedures to test the physical
existence of inventories mainly consist of
evaluating and testing the relevant internal
control procedures, in particular, we:
HIFEETEDRAR BRANEFEFEE
BEME AR EGRENAEIERIRET LEZ
21

(i) attended a selection of daily cycle
physical counts in stores throughout
the year to observe the daily count
procedures performed in retail outlets;

) 2EAEBRUM2NEHRNEBREYR
HEiR UBRTEENTGHEREE

(i) inspected the respective daily physical
cycle counts reports for reconciliation of
daily ending inventories to the record in
the inventory system;

(i) BHEBANTEEMREBERSE UK

BHEXGRREFEATERRCEHE
TTHER:

@iy inspected the in-house and external
gemological appraisal or laboratory
reports on the authenticity of gold,
platinum and gem-set jewellery products.

(i) WMERNIRINEE=FEBE=EL HER
REEHERETCHNARBETHAERR

==

Furthermore, we attended the annual physical
inventory counts at year end date and
performed “two-way” sample count procedures
in a selected sample of stores, manufacturing
facilities and distribution centres of the Group.
We compared our sample count results with
the counts performed by the Group and the
records in the inventory system.

N BRMELNFEBNEFFEEDS
BowY EXEEES FERERDHEFO
HEEIT (€A ] Ko ERT - B2 S
BEMNERR SEEETHHEREFERR
HECERIESLL
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Key Audit Matter
REEmIER

The above, in combination with the inventories contributing to a
significant portion of total assets of the Group, made us conclude
that existence and valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
of our audit.

HRA LR Mz FEBK EXEREENEARLS A
b BB EE 2 FEEREBEIHERMEAROBRE
FIE-

EEEER (]8)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EMnEMMERRBENFR

We also selected samples of gem-set jewellery,
comprising items of different nature, aging
profiles and price for gemmological appraisal
carried out by independent gemmologist
engaged by the Group to verify their
authenticity and assess their conditions and
valuations. We have evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the gemmologist
and obtained an understanding of the scope of
work and the terms of engagement.

B EEDNAEG SRR (MEERRE
TENER SR EER) B EEEZRED
BYBEAZFTETHREN G UREEEENR
MAHEEARR R EE - BPIEHEAERNA
Be B BB ELE R TEEE
PSEF AT

In evaluating management’s assessment of net
realisable value and provision of inventories, we:
R B IR B Y1 & Al B3R R E MR P (ERT
fhE B2 - 2

(i) compared the net realisable values of
gold and platinum inventories calculated
based on the current market price of
precious metals with their purchase or
production costs;

) BREBETEFENESREAS
FEFERFEREBEREENRE
ITEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 BEN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Key Audit Matter

MEEEHER

EEEER (]8)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EMnEMMERRBENFR

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

obtained an understanding of
management’s processes for the
identification of slow moving gem-
set jewellery products and assessed
the basis adopted by management
for determining the inventory provision
with reference to, amongst others, the
market price movement of the materials,
the aging profile and the historical sales
pattern and the subsequent selling prices
of these products.
BRERERMFIHINE & fhEmay
PR W2E (AT BE)ZFEMN
MEITTESZS  EREUTHERAUR
ZRERE HEEBRANGTEREET
EEMUAFEE -

compared the results of independent
gemmological appraisal report of
selected samples above to the cost
of gem-set jewellery in evaluating the
sufficiency of inventory provision made by
management.

R EREEFERBRATER -
B EXTE ERANE I RE T E
WEGRERERAETHR

Based on the procedures performed, we found
that the physical existence of inventories, as
well as the estimates and judgement made by
management in respect of the net realisable
value of inventories, are supportable by the
available evidence.

ERRTHREF BZAEREENEDEEL
NREBERFERA#IFEEL G R
A RSH BRI Fe
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 BEN RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND

AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 BEN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

BEMBEH RS MBERRREHRE

BAMER REGAMBERREBRES TR
FE BP0 HRRF 3 8 AR T 28 R A B K 85 AR BR At BR
BSARERE LHABSREMERNZEER
o MR A FIE1981F (R RDE) H90M%
ZEm ET (FRER)RERMNER Kt
ZONRIREREEA B & BT ERARE
AR EEAEMALTE EREAEEAMEE-
EERFERGKTINRE BETRREBRR
(BREER) ETNET EX —EAH#ER
PR T 72 5 48 BE 35 3R - A RRIR AL 7] DA iy BRFF =
SRR S RS EFRH M EBHEALK
AR ERERAMBBRREREREZER
B EMRAELNLERE - RIB BRI
AR AFE K -

ERE (BABFTER) ETEFNBRE
BFER T EXAE  Ri5 T HERMRE
ZAIIR:

=a
o

o BBIMFHERNRIFXERMEBEERA
MBRERFEEABERBANER - 525
KRMITET T AESZERRE - AN
MR MEZENEERE ERRABR
R ETE - R HRRF AT BE S I BB R
ERER R 0% BN A ER
Z & FIRRE R IRERFEMERMER
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yuen Kwok Kin Andrew.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

— /\ — N\ /
— Z
NI =R
For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE201843A31H L FE

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i0g=a THET FHET
Revenue LN 6 14,578,409 12,807,277
Cost of sales & K AR 8 (10,837,032) (9,530,216)
Gross profit EH 3,741,377 3,277,061
Other income H A A 7 183,364 175,594
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEMA (2,150,937) (1,994,310)
Administrative expenses TERE M (166,581) (155,253)
Other gains/(losses), net ,Eum Wz, (E18)  FE 9 13,583 (13,775)
Operating profit ___~___________ ek N - S, 1,620,806 1,289,317 _
Finance income B AU 28,922 23,982
Finance costs 5 E A (6,392) 9,011)
Finance income, net BB FR LI 22530 14971
Share of results of associates BEBEQARRE 19 (29897) (54273
Profit before income tax B PRAS 250 A& 1,613,439 1,250,015
Income tax expenses Frigfif = 11 (243,125) (223,047)
Profit for the year FWm A 1,370,314 1,026,968
Profit attributable to: FEAT & :
Equity holders of the Company AAaE=FEAA 1,369,393 1,016,838
Non-controlling interests FEVE R A 921 10,130
1,370,314 1,026,968
Earnings per share for profit FARRAERFTEA 12
attributable to equity holders of FE(R &R 2 SREF
the Company during the year
Basic HAR HK$2.33# 5T HK$1.737% 7T
Diluted #E 12 HK$2.33#t  HK$1.73/8 7T

The notes on pages 127 to 228 are an integral part of these F127E228 B MMt At ER AT HIREN —
consolidated financial statements. B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE201843A31H L FE

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 THET FHET
Profit for the year fR@sa e 1,370,314 1,026,968
Other comprehensive income: H2mEmEA -
Items that will not be reclassified to HETSEHEE
profit or loss B ayIE 5
Remeasurements of employee EERNEEHNENE 31
benefit obligations 16,646 1,349
Items that may be reclassified to Rt @B 7 2
profit or loss Bz hyE B
Currency translation differences: PE N =58
— Group —AREHE 396,943 (158,405)
— Associates B /NG 12,478 (15,246)
Revaluation of available-for-sale AHEESREEN 22
financial assets BEY (1,615) (1,077)
Other comprehensive income
for the year FRAMEEEA ebioey ____(173.379)
Total comprehensive income
for the year FAZEBIWA 1,794,766 853,589
Attributable to: THIATREL
— Equity holders of the Company I WNGIL: £S5 DN 1,789,668 845,372
— Non-controlling interests — IR s 5,098 8,217
1,794,766 853,589
The notes on pages 127 to 228 are an integral part of these ZE127E228 B MM AL SHF A M IEREN —
consolidated financial statements. oo
Annual Report 2017/18 £8§ 121



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
/\‘/T\/\ é? \TE

As at 31 March 2018
2018463 A31H

As at 31 March

®W3A31H
2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M3 FTET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment VI BB ikt 16 547,659 564,270
Land use rights TR 17 273,019 247,781
Investment properties WEMHE 18 35,810 35,020
Interests in associates REEERR 2= 19 67,593 85,012
Loan to an associate ERT—REERA 20 94,927 90,830
Derivative financial instrument TESMTA 21 50,782 48,979
Available-for-sale financial assets At EemEE 22 6,075 7,690
Trading licence R SR 1,080 1,080
Rental deposits and prepayment Hetks MIEMNEKRE 23 212,167 121,204
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTREE 30 47,114 45,954
1,336,226 1,247,820
Current assets N E
Inventories "B 24 7,991,727 6,972,770
Trade receivables 2 S EUERIE 25 359,796 217,258
Deposits, prepayments and e FBEREBER 23
other receivables H fth fE U AR TR 364,765 323,323
Derivative financial instrument PTESRTA 21 - 9
Amount due from an associate FE UL — KBt & N BIBRIE 19 13,173 33,340
Loan to an associate BERTF—REZE QA 20 43,190 20,000
Income tax recoverable AT U B AT ISR 8,134 2,956
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHH 26 2,097,867 1,861,774
10,878,652 9,431,430
Total assets wEE 12,214,878 10,679,250
EQUITY a2
Capital and reserves attributable to Z2AFERFHA
the equity holders of BEEXRGH
the Company
Share capital fi& 7 28(a) 58,710 58,710
Share premium f& 17 %@ B 28(b) 2,494,040 2,494,040
Reserves 1 29 7,482,019 6,320,600
10,034,769 8,873,350
Non-controlling interests JEITE AR M 44,968 106,590
Total equity W 10,079,737 8,979,940
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
R BAEERE

As at 31 March

»3A31H
2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
M3 FET FET
LIABILITIES a8
Non-current liabilities ERBIAR
Deferred income tax liabilities REMSHRatE 30 100,714 81,670
Employee benefit obligations BE®AEME 31 8,237 23,754
108,951 105,424
Current liabilities mBEE
Trade payables, other payables B S EMNRIE KM EN 27
and accruals ARIB K AT FUE 1,125,453 1,004,664
Amount due to an associate B —REE AR ERIB 19 3,555 1,995
Bank borrowings RITER 32 415,000 -
Gold loans B5oEE 33 311,283 437,151
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTIS R & & 170,899 150,076
_____________________________________________________________ 2,026,190 1,593,886
Total liabilites | Lt . 21351410 1,699,310 _
Total equity and liabilities BeErRAafAEE 12,214,878 10,679,250

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the #RAMKEHRTIHES2H2018F6827 B4t
Board of Directors on 27 June 2018 and were signed on its EIW&AR NI ESREREE-
behalf.

Wong Wai Sheung Chan So Kuen
HER FR%&18
Director Director

EE EFE

The notes on pages 127 to 228 are an integral part of these  ZFH127F228 BT AL H4r A8 MEHRER—
consolidated financial statements. 245 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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N

EHE2018F3A31HILFE

== \ / —
B BE

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARAERRE AN

Non-
Share Share controlling Total
capital premium  Reserves Subtotal interests equity
R RORE i NEE OFEIERER  BRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note 29)
(Fi3E 29)
For the year ended BE2017HF
31 March 2017 3A31ALEE
At 1 April 2016 M2016F4 718 58,710 2,494,040 6,121,046 8,673,796 95,123 8,768,919
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year __ ________ srwh S 71016838 1016838 _ 10,130 1026,968
Other comprehensive income Hft2EIEA
Remeasurements of employee EEBMEEH
benefit obligations EHFTE - - 1,349 1,349 - 1,349
Currency translation differences fE N =% - - (171,788)  (171,738) (1,913)  (173,651)
Revaluation of available-for-sale ~ AJ it E S RIE EH
financial assets BEZ - - (1,077) (1,077) - (1,077)
Total other comprehensive Hti2 @A A
income - ~ (171466)  (171,466) (1913)  (173,379)
Total comprehensive income 2 A - - 845372 845,372 8,217 853,589
Transactions with owners HEFAZZS
Dividends paid EBE - - (645818) (645,818) - (645818)
Capital injection from )= YNTE S g - pa
non-controlling interest of
sy .. T T T s a0 820
At 31 March 2017 M201743A31H 58,710 2,494,040 6,320,600 8,873,350 106,590 8,979,940
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREHE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE201843A31H L FE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FOERBSTARK
Non-
Share Share controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Subtotal interests equity

kx  RGRE % ME RIS HSHRER
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000
FiEr FiEr TR T FiEn FiEn

(Note 29)
(Bt aE 29)
For the year ended g E2018%F
31 March 2018 3A31ALEE
At 1 April 2017 MN2017F4 /18 58,710 2,494,040 6,320,600 8,873,350 106,590 8,979,940
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit fortheyear __________ srwh = o) bRy et B LT |
Other comprehensive income Hft2EIEA
Remeasurements of employee EEBMEEH
benefit obligations EHFTE - - 16,646 16,646 - 16,646
Currency translation differences fE N =% - - 405244 405,244 4,177 409,421

Revaluation of available-for-sale At HEL R EEH

financial assets BEZ - - (1,615) (1,615) - (1,615)
Total other comprehensive HthiZ2E#aA

income - - 420,275 420,275 4177 424,452
Total comprehensive income 2 A - - 1,789,668 1,789,668 5,098 1,794,766
Transactions with owners HEFAZZS
Dividends paid BRE - - (645,818) (645,818) - (645,818)
Acquisition of additional equity BIEERER

interest in a subsidiary from WEE B A A

a non-controliing interest BOMNR AR = - - 17,569 17,569 (66,720) (49,151)
At 31 March 2018 72018F3A31H 58,710 2,494,040 7,482,019 10,034,769 44,968 10,079,737

The notes on pages 127 to 228 are an integral part of these  F 127228 B MKt AL SR AP HIHRERN —
consolidated financial statements. oo
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE201843A31H L FE

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 TFHET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities ~ &EEB 2R e RE
Net cash generated from operations ~ #EEA~ 2R & F5 34 679,433 034,926
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEERNEH (62,573) (61,580)
Overseas income taxes paid BEAIEINTISEL (147,023) (152,982)
Net cash generated from EEEEL Y
operating activities BeF5E 469,837 720,364
Cash flows from investing activities REEH HRERE
Purchases of property, BEEYE WENREE 16
plant and equipment (81,160) (94,778)
Prepayment for purchase of BEEYE WENREE
property, plant and equipment, VAR + 4 5 FAAE 2
and land use rights JEANE e (131,543) (10,016)
Purchases of land use right EE AR 17 = (61,704)
Purchases of investment properties BEREDE 18 = (11,735)
Decrease/(increase) in short-term BIEAR BB = A &Y
bank deposits, with maturities over RHISRITIER
3 months B () 134,760 (261,978)
Interest received B W B 19,624 18,507
Capital injection from non-controling ~ Bi{/& A _J FEIERERTE
interests of subsidiaries - 3,250
Loan advanced to an associate B TSR EIER (23,190) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE - BERZE
property, plant and equipment FriS 3R 787 -
Net cash used in investing activites ~ & EEATH 2
W FHE (80,722) (408,454)
Cash flows from financing activities BREZH RERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE RS RIA 738,000 -
Proceeds from gold loans with NIRSEENEREEM
cash settlement SRIE 140,448 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITER (323,000) (400,000)
Repayment of gold loans EEESEE = (76,541)
Interest on bank borrowings and BITERRESBENE
gold loans (6,392) (9,011)
Dividends paid ERRE (645,818) (645,818)
Acquisition of non-controlling Ui B B BB A B A9 29
interests of a subsidiary eI AR A 2 (49,151) -
Net cash used in financing activites ~ B E /EEATA 2R 558 (145,913) (1,131,370)
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand B4 RIBEZEW 2
cash equivalents g, CRfid) #88 243,202 (819,460)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 4 B1H 23R & &
ReFEY 1,529,206 2,361,595
Exchange differences PE R ZE% 127,651 (12,929)
Cash and cash equivalents M3A31IEZHR e &
at 31 March ReEEY 26 1,900,059 1,529,206

The notes on pages 127 to 228 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 September 1996 as a
company with limited liability under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the sourcing, designing,
wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of
gold and platinum jewellery, and gem-set jewellery products.

The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 6 May 1997.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated, and
have been approved for issue by the board of directors on
27 June 2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the period
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirement of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention except that certain financial assets,
gold loan, and financial liabilities are carried at fair
value, as explained in Note 4.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EhkiE ek

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@ New amendments to existing standards that are
effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2017 and are relevant to the
Group’s operations:

o Amendment to HKAS 7, “Disclosure
initiative”. This amendment requires
entities to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes.

° Amendment to HKAS 12, “Recognition of
deferred tax assets for unrealised losses”.
This amendment clarifies how to account
for deferred tax assets related to debt
instruments measured at fair value.

o Amendment from annual improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle, on HKFRS
12, “Disclosure of interests in other
entities”.

Except for the amendments to HKAS 7 which results
in additional disclosure of changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, the adoption of the above
amendments to standards did not have material
impact on the consolidated financial statements or
results in any significant changes to the Group’s
significant accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

m

()

Certain new standards and amendments to
existing standards relevant to the Group have
been published that are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2018 or later periods, which the
Group has not early adopted, are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of investment
property!"

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual improvements 2014-
2016 cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
measurement of
share-based payment
transactions”

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance contracts”

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments™
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers!”
Amendments to Clarifications to HKFRS 15
HKFRS 15
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EhkiE ek

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REBERFERHBREE

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HREEE (&)
(o) Certain new standards and amendments to (o) AE&EEKAENR2018F4H1H

existing standards relevant to the Group have
been published that are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2018 or later periods, which the
Group has not early adopted, are as follows:
(Continued)

HK (IFRIC) 22 Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration(”
Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term interests in an

associate or joint ventures®

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual improvements 2015-
2017 cycle®

HKFRS 9 (Amendment) Prepayment features with

negative compensation®

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HK (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over income tax
treatments®

HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts®

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  Sale or contribution of assets
(Amendments) between an investor and its

associate or joint venture®

M Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January U]

2018

@ Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January @
2019

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ®
2021

@ To be announced by HKICPA @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr e M B R M et

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

@i

Certain new standards and amendments to
existing standards relevant to the Group have
been published that are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2018 or later periods, which the
Group has not early adopted, are as follows:
(Continued)

A number of new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 April 2018
and have not been early adopted in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. None
of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, except those new standards set out
below:

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” addresses the
classification, measurement and derecognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge accounting and
a new impairment model for financial assets.

Impact

The equity investment that is currently classified
as available-for-sale will satisfy the conditions
for classification as fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and the debt
instruments currently classified as loans and
receivables meet the conditions for classification
at amortised cost under HKFRS 9. For the
derivative financial instruments, it will also be
classified at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”). Hence, there will be no significant
change to the accounting for these assets.
Accordingly, the Group does not expect the
new guidance to affect the classification
and measurement of these financial assets.
However, gains or losses realised on the sale of
financial assets classified at FVOCI will no longer
be transferred to profit or loss, but instead
reclassified below the line from the FVOCI
reserve 1o retained earnings.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr e M B R M et

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

132

()

@

Certain new standards and amendments to
existing standards relevant to the Group have
been published that are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2018 or later periods, which the
Group has not early adopted, are as follows:
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(Continued)

Impact (Continued)

There will be no significant impact on the
Group’s accounting for its financial liabilities.
Gold loans which involved cash settlement
will be qualified for designation at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) under HKFRS
9. Thus, there will be no significant change in
the classification of these financial liabilities.
However, under HKFRS 9, the fair value
changes of these financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL that is attributable to changes on
own credit risk will be recognised in other
comprehensive income. Based on management
assessment undertaken to date, the change
in fair values attributed to change in credit risk
is not expected to be material and the Group
does not expect any significant changes in
measurement of these financial liabilities.

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based
on expected credit losses (‘ECL”) rather than
only incurred credit losses as is the case under
HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified
at amortised cost, debt instruments measured
at FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS 15,
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”,
lease receivables, loan commitments and
certain financial guarantee contracts. Based on
the assessments undertaken to date, the Group
does not expect significant increase or decrease
in the loss allowance for trade debtors.

)

@i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
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@

(i)

Certain new standards and amendments to
existing standards relevant to the Group have
been published that are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2018 or later periods, which the
Group has not early adopted, are as follows:
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 9 is mandatory for financial years
starting on or after 1 January 2018. The new
standard is not expected to be applied by the
Group until the financial year ending 31 March
2019.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for
the recognition of revenue. This will replace
HKAS 18 which covers contracts for goods
and services and HKAS 11 which covers
construction contracts and the related literature.
The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good
or service transfers to a customer. The standard
permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption.
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(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

/T\

134

(b)

(i)

Certain new standards and amendments to
existing standards relevant to the Group have
been published that are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2018 or later periods, which the
Group has not early adopted, are as follows:
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (Continued)

Impact
When applying HKFRS 15, revenue shall be
recognised by applying following steps:

° identify the contract with customer;

o identify the performance obligations in the
contract;

° determine the transaction price;

o allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contracts;

o recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group are principally engaged in the
sourcing, designing, wholesaling, trademark
licensing and retailing of a variety of gold and
platinum jewellery, and gem-set jewellery
products.

)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr e M B R M et

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

()

(i)

Certain new standards and amendments to
existing standards relevant to the Group have
been published that are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2018 or later periods, which the
Group has not early adopted, are as follows:
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (Continued)

Impact (Continueq)

Management has assessed the effects of
applying the new standard on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and, based
on the assessment undertaken to date,
management has identified the following areas
that are likely to be affected by the adoption of
HKFRS 15:

° Rights of return — HKFRS 15 requires
separate presentation on the balance
sheet of the right to recover the goods
from the customer and the refund
obligation. At this stage, the Group’s
estimates that the financial impact of
applying new HKFRS 15 is not expected
to be material.

o Customer loyalty program — The Group
has set up a customer loyalty program
and customers could earn reward points
via their purchases. Under the program,
customers could utilise these reward
points to redeem gifts and coupons over
a specific period. In applying HKFRS 15,
a portion of the transaction price shall be
deferred and be recognised only when
the customers redeem their points or
due to the expiration of these reward
points. Currently, the Group recognise its
obligation based on the estimated future
costs for the redemption of reward points.
The Group does not expect the financial
impact of implementing the new HKFRS
15 to be material.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

136

(b)

(i)

Certain new standards and amendments to
existing standards relevant to the Group have
been published that are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2018 or later periods, which the
Group has not early adopted, are as follows:
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (Continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
starting on or after 1 January 2018. The new
standard is not expected to be applied by the
Group until the financial year ending 31 March
2019.

The Group intends to adopt the standard
using the modified retrospective approach
which means that the cumulative impact of
the adoption (if any) will be recognised in
retained earnings as of 1 April 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr e M B R M et

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

(iii)

Certain new standards and amendments to
existing standards relevant to the Group have
been published that are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2018 or later periods, which the
Group has not early adopted, are as follows:
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised on
the balance sheet, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases. The accounting for
lessors will not significantly change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group’s operating leases.
As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$961,297,000 (Note 35(b)). However, the
Group has not yet determined to what extent
these commitments will result in the recognition
of an asset and a liability for future payments
and how this will affect the Group'’s profit and
classification of cash flows.

Date of adoption by the Group

The new standard is mandatory for financial
years commencing on or after 1 January 2019.
At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

/\‘/T\

138

3.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

(i) fair values of the assets transferred

(i) liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business

(i) equity interests issued by the Group

(iv)  fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

(v)  fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr e M B R M et

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3
POLICIES (Continued)
3.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)
(@) Business combinations (Continued) (a)

FESHBRERE (])
31 afFRAIRESEHEE (#)

Rt (W)

The excess of the:

(i) consideration transferred,

(i)  amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and

(i) acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in consolidated income
statement.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
consolidated income statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)
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(b)

()

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
in the consolidated income statement, and
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NSRSyl D

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
3.9.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)
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(d)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests
to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because of
a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in
carrying amount recognised in consolidated
income statement. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to consolidated income
statement or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRS.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to consolidated income statement
where appropriate.

3 FESHBREE(E)

31 aftRARESEHEE (1))

(d)

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

HAREcED

REEG TG I R LB
HISEIE R R FRAEAS
BRESRHAAETHORS %
i3 Far B ko eRdivg St
IR R IR E 2 AR F R
VAR BRI 10 Y /88 2 B AR
et o JFIRfR A an B B
EREMRERREZRNE
{T%%EEAZ!S/AT%’&EAFEE%

=P RE Y B RER

EARKERKXETGIE K

EH R ERE ﬂﬁﬁTﬁ%
BEERE ABRSR I E R
@R E AR ERERZEM
REBERBRANALEERG
= MEMEZSNGEER
RER - BHBARYIER &
NE-GEPEREMEEL
REBERNE X ZAALEAR
IR BRE B - Bb o1 - SERTAS B
2 EWARREZE B
S EEENAEEEE
EHERHEEEXAGBZAR
AR EBREF LA HME
EWATER 2 & BAHRIEE R
BB RS ERIFTETRR,f
ﬁiﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁéﬁéﬁﬁﬁ

EREEREABENFNOE
BRI - R

RERTERRE - AEFTR
Hh2EBRARNERN S EE
B—ELLPIE D EFHIEEL
GiEmE (MEA) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

3.3

3.4

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. The chief operating
decision-makers, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, have been identified collectively
as the executive directors and senior management
who make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and Group’s presentation
currency.
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BB

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
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(b)

()

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised within ‘Other
gains/(losses), net’ in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘Finance income, net’.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in consolidated income statement
within ‘Other gains/(losses) — net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
consolidated income statement. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interests in associates that
do not result in the Group losing significant
influence) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to consolidated income statement.

3.5 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

146

POLICIES (Continued)
3.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Leasehold land interests classified as finance lease
and other property, plant and equipment commence
amortisation/depreciation from the time when the
assets becomes available for their intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:
Leasehold land interests Shorter of remaining lease term of
classified as finance leases ~ 16-51 years or useful life

Buildings 50 years or over the unexpired
lease period of leasehold land,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the unexpired lease
period, whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures and 5 years
computer equipment

Plant and machinery 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 3.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing net proceeds with carrying amount of the
relevant assets and are included in the consolidated
income statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.6

3.7

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, (if
any). Cost represents consideration paid for the rights
to use the land on which various plants and buildings
are generally situated for a period from 19 to 50 years.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied
by the Group.

Investment property is measured at cost, including
related transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line
method to write off the cost of the investment
properties over their estimated useful lives of 30 to 50
years. Where the carrying amount of an investment
property is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

148

3.7

3.8

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probably that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment. At
the date of reclassification, its cost and accumulated
depreciation are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and become its cost and accumulated
depreciation for accounting purposes. If an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, it is reclassified as
investment property. At the date of reclassification, its
cost and accumulated depreciation are transferred
to investment property and become its cost and
accumulated depreciation for accounting purposes.

Trading licence

Trading licence with indefinite useful life represents
a membership in Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange
Society and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

3.10 Inventories

Inventories, comprise raw materials and finished
goods, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. The cost of finished goods comprises
raw materials, direct labour and other direct costs.
[t excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

3.11 Financial assets

3.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories, loans and receivables,
financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of the Group’s
financial assets at initial recognition.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued)

3.11.1 Classification (Continued)
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Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

The Group classifies financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss if they are
acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term, ie are held for
trading. They are presented as current
assets if they are expected to be sold
within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period; otherwise they are
presented as non-current assets. The
Group has not elected to designate any
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for those with maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period. These are classified
as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise ‘Loan to
an associate’, ‘Trade other receivables’,
‘Cash and bank balances’, ‘Deposits and
other receivables’ and ‘Amount due from
an associate’ in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr e M B R M et

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3
POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued)
3.11.2 Recognition and measurement
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3.11 &MEE (&)
S22 RERHE

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date — the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other
gains/(losses), net’ in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part
of ‘Other income’ when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and
nonmonetary securities classified as available
for sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the consolidated income statement as ‘Other
gains/(losses), net’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr e M B R M et

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued)

3.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

152

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of “other income”. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of ‘Other income’ when
the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

3.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

3.13 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract.

As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
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(b)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. For debt securities,
the Group uses the criteria referred to in (a)
above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in consolidated
income statement — is removed from equity
and recognised in consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in consolidated
income statement, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr e M B R M et

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3
POLICIES (Continued)
3.14 Derivative financial instruments which do

FESHBRERE (])
S FRFERRFHASHERZ

not qualify for hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair values. The
method of recognising the resulting gains or losses
depends on whether the derivative is designated
and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged. Since the derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group do
not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in fair value
of any derivative financial instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.

3.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

3.15

3.16
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

156

POLICIES (Continued)
3.17 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

3.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are carried initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr e M B R M et

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FE®iBREE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.18 Borrowings (Continued) 3.18 B (&)

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

3.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr e M B R M et

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
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(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is
unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the
ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr e M B R M et

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continueq)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates only
to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

3.20 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
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(c)

Pension obligations

Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) which is registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held in a separately administered fund. The
MPF Scheme is generally funded by payments
from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
the employer’s voluntary contribution forfeited
from the MPF Scheme by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in
Mainland China, the Group contributes to state-
sponsored retirement schemes for its relevant
employees in Mainland China. The state-
sponsored retirement schemes are responsible
for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-
sponsored retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred and are fully and immediately vested in
the employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e R M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)

Defined benefit obligation -
payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump
sum long service amounts payable on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the
amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. The obligation is calculated
using the projected unit credit method by a
qualified actuary, discounted to its present
value, and the fair value of any related plan
assets is deducted. The discount rate is the
yield at balance sheet date on Exchange Fund
Notes that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s obligations. All
remeasurement gains/losses of defined benefit
plans are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Past service costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits become
vested.

long service
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.21 Revenue and income recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
sales returns and discounts, after eliminated sales
within the Group.

/\‘/T\
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(a)

(b)

Sales of goods — wholesale

Sales of goods are recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to the
customers, retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associates
with ownership nor control over the goods sold,
and there is no unfulfiled obligation that could
affect the acceptance of the products. Delivery
does not occur until the products have been
delivered to the specified location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customers, and either the customers
has accepted the products in accordance with
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognised when a group
entity sells a product to the customer. Retalil
sales are usually in cash or by credit card. It is
the Group’s policy to sell its jewellery products
to the end customers with a right of return
within one year at a certain discount on the
original selling price. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for such returns at
the time of sale.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.21 Revenue and income recognition (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

U]

(9)

Royalty and service income

Royalty and service income in respect of the use
of the Group’s trademarks is recognised on an
accrual basis in accordance with the substance
of the relevant agreements.

Consultancy fee income

Consultancy fee income in respect of
technical support and consultancy services
are recognised in the period the services are
provided.

Interest income from bank deposits
Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease period.

Commission income
Commission income is recognised in the period
when the referral services are provided.

3.22 Operating leases (as a lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease. When a component of the lease payment
which is not fixed but is based on future amount of
a factor, other than with the passage of time, such
as percentage of sales or concessionaire fees, the
amount is recognised as expenses as it arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks, commodity price risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to manage certain risk
exposures. The use of financial derivatives to hedge
certain risk exposures is governed by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the transactions settled in HKS$. The
Group also has retail and wholesale operations
in Mainland China, Macau, Canada, the United
States, Australia, Malaysia and Singapore.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets
or liabilities are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect
to Renminbi (“RMB”) and US dollar (“US$").
Certain assets of the Group are denominated
in US dollar but the foreign exchange risk is
considered not significant as Hong Kong dollar
exchange rate is pegged to US dollar.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk
by performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposures. The Group also
use foreign exchange derivative contracts to
manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised
asset or liabilities denominated in a currency that
is not the group companies’ functional currency,
primarily with respect to RMB, if necessary.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and
transactions arising from its operations primarily
do not expose the Group to material foreign
exchange risk. The Group’s assets and liabilities
are primarily denominated in the respective
group companies’ functional currency.

At 31 March 2018, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against HKS$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit would
have been approximately HK$19,237,000
(2017: HK$315,000) higher/lower respectively,
mainly arised from the translation of net
receivable balances.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for
the convertible bonds subscribed and loans
to an associate which were issued at fixed
rates and interest free respectively, and expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group’s interest rate risk also arises from gold
loans and bank borrowings. Gold loans at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate
risk. Bank borrowings at variables interest rates
exposes the Group to cash flow interest-rate
risk. The Group does not enter into derivatives
to address these risks.

4 MERRETE(HE)
(a) MBEMRER ()

(i)

(ii)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)
(ii)

(iii)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

At 31 March 2018, if interest rates on
borrowings had increased/decreased by
25 basis points with all other variables held
constant, the impact on post-tax profit for the
year would not be significant, thus management
considers the cash flow interest-rate risk related
to borrowings would not be significant also.

Commodity price risk

The Group mainly engaged in the sales of gold
ornaments. The gold markets are influenced by
global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. A significant decline in the prices of
gold could adversely affect the Group’s financial
performance. The Group manages commodity
price risks mainly by hedging gold price
fluctuations through certain derivative financial
instrument-trading of gold contracts, gold
loans contracts, gold future contracts and gold
forward contracts. Should the gold price go up,
the Group would charge a loss representing the
increase in gold price compared to the contract
price, and largely net against the increase in
turnover of gold products as a result of gold
price increase.

The gold contracts are settled on daily basis
and the differences between the contract price
and market price are immediately recognised
in the consolidated income statement. As
at 31 March 2018, the notional value of the
outstanding gold contracts amounted to
HK$181,186,000 (2017: HK$168,192,000).

4 MERREHE (&)

(a)
(ii)

(iii)
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

Commodity price risk (Continued)

The gold loans (Note 33) are settled at maturity
which usually mature in 1 to 6 months from
date of inception and the fair value changes
are immediately recognised in the consolidated
income statement. As at 31 March 2018, gold
loan contracts of 510 kilograms (2017: 1,410
kilograms) amounted to HK$170,591,000
(2017: HK$437,151,000) are outstanding and
involved physical settlement. As at 31 March
2018, the notional value of the outstanding gold
loan contract amounting to HK$140,692,000
(2017: Nil) involved cash settlement.

The gold future and gold forward contracts are
settled at maturity which usually mature in 1 to
2 months from date of inception and the fair
value changes are immediately recognised in the
consolidated income statement. As at 31 March
2018, all the gold future contracts and gold
forward contracts are settled.

As at 31 March 2018, if the market price of gold
had increased or decreased by 5%, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2018, due to
changes in fair values of gold contracts, would
have been approximately HK$7,565,000 (2017:
HK$7,022,000) lower or higher respectively.

As at 31 March 2018, if the market price of gold
had increased or decreased by 5%, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2018, due to
changes in fair values of gold loans, would have
been approximately HK$13,125,000 (2017:
HK$18,578,000), lower or higher respectively.

4 MERRETE(HE)
(a) MBEMRER ()

(iii)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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(a)
(iv)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk. The carrying amounts of loans to
an associate, amount due from an associate,
trade and other receivables, deposits and
bank balances included in the consolidated
balance sheet and the principal amount of the
subscribed convertible bond represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets and contingent
liabilities.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products on credit terms are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers. The Group’s concessionaire
sales through department stores are generally
collectible within 30 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit terms
within 90 days. Normally the Group does not
require collaterals from trade debtors. The
existing debtors have no significant defaults
in the past. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and the
directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables, if any, has
been made.

The Group does not have a significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties.

The deposits, trade and other receivables,
subscribed convertible bond, amount due from
an associate and loans to an associate are from
counterparties with good credit history. There is
no history of defaults from these counterparties.

4 MERREHE (&)
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

V)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, substantially
all the bank balances as detailed in Note 26
are held in major financial institutions located
in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which
management believes are of high credit quality.
The Group has a policy to limit the amount of
credit exposure to any financial institution and
management does not expect any losses arising
from non-performance by these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances
and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements
have been for additions of and upgrades on
property, plant and equipment, payment on
debts, purchases and operating expenses. The
Group finances its working capital requirements
through a combination of internal resources and
bank borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure it maintains sufficient cash and bank
balances and has available funding through
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet its working capital requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. In the opinion of directors of the
Company, the fair values of financial guarantees
are not significant at initial recognition as the
directors consider the possibilities of default by
the associate is remote.

4 MERRETE(HE)
(a) MBEMRER ()

(iv)

V)
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 HBEREER(1E)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MBEERRER (&)
(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) (v) REESEE (&)
Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows P A T — KA EBHE 27w
HE
More than More than
1 year 2 years Total
Within but less butless  undiscounted
1 year than 2 years than5years  cash outflows
BiE-% BERE AUERRE
—ER EIRAE BEYREE mHER
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THET THT
As at 31 March 2018 #2018%3A31A
Trade payables and ZIRNRER
other payables B 8RR 888,927 - - 888,927
Amount due to an associate JER—REEARRE 3,555 - - 3,555
Gold loans with cash settlement B4 X EHEZLLEE 141,029 - - 141,029
Bank borrowings RITER 415,626 - - 415,626
1,449,137 - - 1,449,137
Financial guarantee contracts MBERAL (M)
(Note) 898,630 - - 898,630
As at 31 March 2017 #201743A31A
Trade payables and BHEAEER
other payables EtpEfiRE 811,958 - - 811,958
Amount due to an associate R —REERARERE 1,995 - - 1,995
813,953 - - 813,953
Financial guarantee contracts BIBEREH (W)
(Note) 764,044 - . 764,044
Note: B3 -
The amount included in the above financial guarantee EBZZZD fRE B TS R M FES6FT IR - I
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contracts represent the outstanding financial guarantee
issued to several banks in respect of bank facilities granted

to an associate of the Group as disclosed in Note 36 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 MERBEE(HE)

(b) Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including cash and bank balances, trade receivables,
other receivables, deposits, amount due from an
associate and loan to an associate and the Group’s
financial liabilities, including trade and other payables,
amount due to an associate, gold loans and bank
borrowings approximate their fair values due to their
maturities.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as gold loans) are based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
traded in active markets are estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried
at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

(b)
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) @4 MMIESEBEE (1§)

(b) Fair value estimation (Continued) (b) 2AREME (#])
The following table present the Group’s financial TEREZ3 AL EMN2018F3A31H
assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair BRARBEFENEREELEHE
values at 31 March 2018. & o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1® £ E=R it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FTET TERT THET
As at 31 March 2018 20185 3A31H
Assets BE
— Derivative financial instruments  —#74£ & &L A
— Convertible bond — AR ES - 50,782 - 50,782
— Available-for-sale financial —-AELEESREE
assets 6,075 - - 6,075
Total assets BEE 6,075 50,782 - 56,857
Liabilities =4
— Gold loans with cash -BeREEREE
settlement 140,692 - - 140,692
The following table present the Group’s liabilities that TREFAEEN2018F3H31H
are measured at fair values at 31 March 2018. BARBEFENEE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B—k B® F=8® #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET FERT THET
Liabilities a&E
— Gold loans with physical - BEYREESEE
settlement 170,591 - - 170,591
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 HBMERBEER(IE)
(b) Fair value estimation (Continued) (b) DAREMEE (1)

The following table present the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair values at 31 March
2017,

TREANAEERKR2017F3A31H
BARBEHENSREE-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—% FE_MR E=H FCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET FHET
As at 31 March 2017 201793 A31H
Assets BE
— Derivative financial instruments  —#74£ & &L A
— CGS Share Option —h B & R ME - - 9 9
— Convertible bond - #REES - 48,979 - 48,979
— Available-for-sale financial —-AERESREE
assets 7,690 - - 7,690
Total assets BEE 7,690 48,979 9 56,678
The following table present the Group’s liabilities that TREVAEENR2017F3AH31H
are measured at fair values at 31 March 2017. BEARERENARE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—H F-M| BE=ZHR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Liabilities a&E
— Gold loans with physical - BYREELEE
settlement 437,151 - - 437,151
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and REENK RN EBEE 2 B
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date BELBEANEBERBEALL
of the event or change in circumstances that caused BEEREAFMEL -

the transfer.

There were no transfer between levels 1, 2 and 3

H £20174 FK2018FE3A31H IFF

during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2018. ER-$F— FHEE=HEW
AT (TR o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payments to shareholders, issue of new shares or
obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of
gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net
(cash)/debt divided by total capital. Net (cash)/debt
is calculated as total borrowings (including bank
borrowings and gold loans) less cash and bank
balances. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net
(cash)/debt.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure
as at 31 March 2018:

4 MBERBRER (&)

(c)

BxEBER
AEEEREANBRARERSE
BRAEEENRE S M ABRIRE

1 [l ¥k - 7% HE 4t F) 25 16 B3 & fe 7
mIA RRFFIZIE R B AZRB AR
BARRA

AEBERBEARRRE YWRABLH
RIFHEEIEL HE - BRFFHH
BEARRE AEEAFEIMT
BREVBLE - BITH R E S
RITER

REBTNBGEEELXERHEE
R-BBEEELERNF (Re)/
BERABERTE F (Re)
BHEENEFRERE (BRERITER

REEE) RS RIRITESRE
HEEH -BERTI (HEE] (4R
BEEBRERAT)INE (BRE),/
BEFGERS

A& ER2018F3A31H 2 B AL
BT :

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FHET
Bank borrowings (Note 32) HRITEF (MIE32) 415,000 -
Gold loans (Note 33) H&EE (M:33) 311,283 437,151
Less: Cash and bank balances IR e MIRTTA &R
(Note 26) (MI5E26) (2,097,867) (1,861,774)
Net cash FIRE (1,371,584) (1,424,623)
Total equity R 10,079,737 8,979,940
Total capital FER=N 8,708,153 7,555,317
Gearing ratio BEEELR N/ARE A N/AT i F
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 MERBEE(HE)

(c) Capital risk management (Continued)
As at 31 March 2018, the Group maintained a
net cash position of HK$1,371,584,000 (2017:
HK$1,424,623,000).

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital
base to support the operations and development of its
business in the long term.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are set out below.

(a) Inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

(c) BEXERBEERE (#))
R2018F3A31H  NEEFKHF
1,371,584,000/% jt (20174 :
1,424,623,0007% 7T ) /9 % IR & ik

AEENRERERRENEARE
BARHEEREBERRERR
B #

o 82 & 5t {l 5T R FER

AR BLPA TE R R S FTER A 2 (T Ko I -
TiBE KR EEMEAR (BFRETR
ERERREHER 2 AT THIE
HetHh S EEREER H4€
HAHERGERBE - TXEWmAEAR
REY T -WRFEEELRAGBZER
@/J’EMEkuﬂﬁzﬁﬁr&fﬁj“

(a) # Fi=3
GEMNIERFEAAEERTH
HEFEENRMFT T IR A RIEE
L 18 B - L E AT TIIRIBIR
R kA ESANERUIEEER
FBTERmMEL YTRBERES
O RoBE I B 5 T R B IR /1T
HEBRHENTEmMEEREZE -
EEENSEEBEM TS
B
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of investments in associates
and non-financial assets

Investments in associates and non-financial assets
including property, plant and equipment and land use
rights, are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell.
These calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of asset can be supported
by its recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and
(iiy the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as
a result affect the Group’s reported financial condition
and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the
consolidated income statement.

5 mMETwsHhERAER (&)

(b)

RBEQFZREBRFEME
EriR{E

IR F BN S BB RN L
REIZRENFEREE (BREY
% WE MRS R T E ) BRE
B A] B SR U] - B 78 4 5T ORUAE
TH&@%{%ﬁﬁﬁTﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁj&k
AV ﬁﬂﬁj’éﬁk$ﬁﬁ#E I FET
S8 AT R AhET

Povrad
=]
7‘"/

ErEEREREREEREHE
LHRBNE: () RREHREREA
B & EE Al se SR LB =4 (i)
H Ao gegg (BIQ SR ER H &K
R BER M FH B X E
ﬂ%’éﬁéﬁﬁ’%%ﬂ@%ﬁﬁfﬁimiiﬁﬁ
FEMNENBRSE)IOXRKEE
AREE : K(i) HEeRSTARMABH
HEIERR BRUESRIRE
FERREAESE N KR - FIRE
P& RETERMENRR (B
BRI R RETERFTAME R
RBR)EFLE Al HRER
BFABREFETREATZE 1
i 72 8 75 5 B Py 2 3 60 B A0 &2
KRERB -MBARREBBAARK
fﬁémg%ﬂﬁﬁéﬁ?ﬂ """"" @J
Al e RS B R RPHIBRRE
FASC
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and other jurisdictions. Judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions
and calculations during the ordinary course of
business for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such as differences will impact the income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised
when management considers it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred income tax liabilities relating to undistributed
profit of those subsidiaries in Mainland China are
recognised based on the undistributed profit of those
subsidiaries in Mainland China generated since 1
January 2008 which is expected to be distributed
in the foreseeable future. When the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred income tax
assets and liabilities and taxation charges in the period
in which such estimate is changed.

5 MEgwst R (&)

(c)

Annual Report 2017/18 E#i

BDRA B & 5E Ffr 15 1R
REBEHREL TEAMRE
fll A RE R B PTS T - f&xj
FREENASREER BELH
B-EREXBTER ?*%ﬁﬁ
RERENR S R HE - Wit FE
HRREWBERE IR R E
WERE AERE=ReYEETER
PSR IR A P S T OB AT 1S R
B

”$ﬁﬁ%£&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%2

FEMSHEE RKERBERAR
IR ] B IR FE SR A i A1 AT AR IR
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers (‘CODM”) have been
identified as the executive directors and senior management
collectively. The CODM review the Group’s internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. The
operating segments are reported in accordance with the
internal reporting reviewed by the CODM.

CODM consider the business by nature of business
activities and assess the performance of the following
operating segments:

Retailing — Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
i Retailing — Mainland China
ii. ~ Wholesaling — Hong Kong
iv.  Wholesaling — Mainland China
V. Licensing

CODM assess the performance of the operating segments
based on segment results. Finance income and costs,
corporate income and expenses and share of results of
associates are not included in the results for each operating
segment that is reviewed by the CODM. Other information
provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude interests in
associates, certain land and buildings, investment
properties, deferred income tax assets and corporate
assets, all of which are managed on a central basis.
Liabilities of reportable segments exclude deferred income
tax liabilities, current income tax liabilities, bank borrowings,
gold loans and corporate liabilities, all of which are managed
on a central basis.

Sales to external customers are stated after elimination
of inter-segment sales. Sales between segments are
carried out at mutually agreed terms. The revenue from
external parties, assets and liabilities, reported to the
CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement and balance sheet.

SBRE
HTEELRREEEARBEREERR
BEERRE ([RREERARE]) &
BEERRERBEHNAREZ AR
SRHERERARDEER - AEERE
%é ERRE BN 2 N & E RE

t‘/
D
W

REEERRERER T EENTE

BERRLFGETINSEEDHBZRR
B
. TE-FE EPINREIN

i. ZTE-—FHAH

i.  #HEBE-FF
iv.  HEEE - E A
V.  mERER

RREERREREDMEGENEEE
DERE - B EERE %%%Z%%é
DEFRBA R BB HRARER Q7]
WA R FISIA R BB AR5 - (A&
BEERRE RN ZHEMENMRME
BN EREAMBE R B

N

N

AE2ROBEETBEREE QA2
S AETLHWEEBT REWVE ELMH
BREEURARERE  2RMIRETE
BRI 2HN BB TREREMEHE
B BHAEHAGR RTEX mEE
ERprRBE 2MHRETERE-

HINEFHED K IH D B HE - 2 7B
HELBE T RETT - AR EER
REMEMIIIREPBANREER
BEMEMETZRGABERRNME
ERER B
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEBEHE(#E)
Year ended 31 March 2018
BE018F3AALER

Retailing -
Hong Kong, Retailing - Wholesaling - Reportable
Macau and Mainland ~ Wholesaling - Mainland Inter-segment segments
overseas China Hong Kong China Licensing elimination Total
ZE-F#. 2E- #&- HE- DEY
AR &5 hEMH -] HER BMEE  SDMHES g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TEL TET TET TEL THT

Revenue KA

Sales to external customers HHRFHE 8,771,979 2,023,114 65,050 2,223,920 - - 13,284,063
Sales of scrap gold and platinum ~ HEES RBSER - - 641,144 - - - 641,144
8,771,979 2,223,114 706,194 2,223,920 - - 13,925,207
Inter-segment sales PHEEE 133,162 262 2,429,032 476,822 - (3,039,278) -
Sales of merchandises HERM 8,905,141 2,223,376 3,135,226 2,700,742 - (3,039,278) 13,925,207
Royalty and senvice income R RRBERA - - - - 591,951 - 591,951
Consultancy fee income BERBHA - - - - 61,251 - 61,251
Total et 8,905,141 2,223,376 3,135,226 2,700,742 653,202 (3,039,278) 14,578,409
Results of reportable segments  AI2HHMEHE 697,739 159,353 160,148 222,460 440,915 - 1,680,615

A reconciliation of results of
reportable segments to profit ERNHEER

for the year is as follows: FREFHENT

Results of reportable segments 2R EEE 1,680,615
Unallocated income RABBA 53,707
Unallocated expenses RAREZ (113,516)
Operating profit HBERN 1,620,806
Finance income BTBWA 28,922
Finance costs HEER (6,392)
Share of results of associates EEBENREE (29,897)
Profit before income tax FEr@RaRT 1,613,439
Income tax expenses FERER (243,125)
Profit for the year ERRT 1,370,314
Non-controling interests FERER (921)
Profit attributable to equity FARREREA

holders of the Company R 1,369,393
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEBEHE(HE)
Year ended 31 March 2018
HBE2018FIAMALEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Retailing - Wholesaling -
Macau and Mainland ~ Wholesaling - Mainland
overseas China  Hong Kong China Licensing  Unallocated Total
PE-FiE. BE- #E-
AP R B hEAY  HR-FE E Rt BMRE AP it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FET TET TET FET

Depreciation of property, nE- BERIENE
plant and equipment (52,906) (23,060) 4,170) (11,281) (5,790) (19849)  (117,056)
Amortisation of land use rights i fERERE - - - (435) (8,923) (319) (9,677)
Depreciation of investment properties &% & - - - = = (1,177) (1,177)
Additions of non-current assets ERYEERE 39,094 29,112 842 4,172 4,050 135,433 212,703
As at 31 March 2018
1#201853RA31H
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Retailing - Wholesaling -
Macau and Mainland Wholesaling - Mainland
overseas China  Hong Kong China Licensing  Unallocated Total
ZE-F#. 2E- Ha-
RAMR &5 hEANE  HR-FE hE A REES PR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FHT THT THT FHET THT
Segment assets AUEE 5050651 1,963,530 766,839 2,976,945 485,622 11,043,587
Interests in associates N NI £ 67,593 67,593
Land and buidings T REF 267,844 267,844
Investment properties REME 35,810 35,810
Deferred income tax assets EEEHEE 47,114 47,114
Income tax recoverable AREFEH 8,134 8,134
Other unallocated assets HRABEE 544,796 544,796
Total assets HEE 12,214,878
Segment liabilities SHEE (247,842) (46,198) (180,403) (196,307) (381,331) (1,052,081)
Deferred income tax liabilties ELAMEHAR (100,714) (100,714)
Current income tax liabilties HEBMEHRAR (170,899) (170,899)
Bank borrowings RITER (415,000) (415,000)
Gold loans E¢fEE (311,283) (311,283)
Other unallocated liabilities RN RARE (85,164) (85,164)

Total liabilities HAR (2,135,141)
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEEHE(E)
Year ended 31 March 2017
HR017E3AS1ALEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Retailing - Wholesaling - Reportable
Macau and Mainland  Wholesaling - Mainland Inter-segment segments
overseas China Hong Kong China Licensing elimination Total
TE-F4 TE- BE- PES:
RFIRESN REAE BE-FR FERY mEER  HUEEH P
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#n Fitn Fin Fitn Fitn Fin Fitn
Revenue KA
Sales to external customers HHNEPHE 7,959,286 1,659,391 117,712 1,958,559 - - 11,694,048
Sales of scrap gold and platinum ~ HEES RBSER - - 596,188 - - - 596,188
7,959,286 1,659,391 713,900 1,958,559 - - 12,291,136
Inter-segment sales PHEEE 196,922 81,502 2,011,307 432,471 - (2,722,202) -
Sales of merchandises HERM 8,156,208 1,740,893 2,725,207 2,391,030 - (2,722,202) 12,291,136
Royalty and service income R RRBERA - - - - 502,332 - 502,332
Consultancy fee income BRERA - - - - 13,809 - 13,809
Total @t 8,156,208 1,740,893 2,725,207 2,391,030 516,141 (2,722,202) 12,807,277
Results of reportable segments 2R MR 512,408 177,613 135,229 303,662 290,384 - 1,419,296
A reconciliation of resuts of NERDPEEEER
reportable segments 1o profit AEENT
for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments 2R EEE 1,419,296
Unallocated income RABBA 69,002
Unallocated expenses RABREZ (198,981)
Operating profit HERN 1,289,317
Finance income BTBWA 23,982
Finance costs g (901)
Share of results of associates EEBENREE (54,273
Profit before income tax BFrRRERT 1,250,015
Income tax expenses FiEREY (223,047)
Profit for the year ERRT 1,026,968
Non-controling interests FERER (10,130)
Profit attributable to equity FAFREREA
holders of the Company 31 1,016,838
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEEE(8)
Year ended 31 March 2017
HR017E3AS1ALEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Retailing - Wholesaling -
Macau and Mainland  Wholesaling - Mainland
overseas China Hong Kong China Licensing Unallocated Total
TE-F4 TE- BE-
RFIRESN REAE BE-FE FERY mEER AR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#n Fitn Fin Fi#n Fitn Fin Fin
Depreciation of property, nE BERERENE
plant and equipment (54,054) (17,102 4.261) (11,245) 7112 (28481) (122,255)
Amortisation of land use rights T RERE - - - (423) (7,562) (310) (8,295)
Depreciation of investment properties  R&MEFE - - - - - (942) (942)
Additions of non-current assets FRPEERE 43617 26,562 369 6,568 2,8% 88,221 168,233
Year ended 31 March 2017
HBR017TE3AIALEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Retailing - Wholesaling -
Macau and Mainland  Wholesaling - Mainland
overseas China Hong Kong China Licensing Unallocated Total
TE-F4 TE- BE-
RFRES REAE BE-FE FER mEER AR &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitn Fitn Fin Fitn Fin Fin Fitn
Segment assets PREE 4,621,864 1,587,734 682,328 2,151,384 430,868 9,474,178
Interests in associates REEREZER 85,012 85,012
Land and buildings i RiET 325,306 325,306
Investment properties RENE 35,020 35,020
Deferred income tax assets BEFEHEE 45,954 45954
Income tax recoverable MREREHR 2,956 2,956
Other unallocated assets HinkHREE 710,824 710,824
Total assets HEE 10,679,250
Segment liablies APafE (047 615) (37,506) (159,874) (179,064) (295,745 (919,804
Deferred income tax liabilties EEFMBHAR (81,670) (81,670)
Current income tax liabilities HEMEHAR (150,076) (150,076)
Gold loans EoEE (437,151) (437,151)
Other unallocated liabilties HiRAEEE (110,609) (110,609)
Total liabilities #aR (1,699,310)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The Group’s revenues are mainly derived from Hong Kong
customers, Mainland China visitors to Hong Kong and

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEEH ()
AEEZRATEREBELES RE
BRRFI 2 R B RMRE R R E R

Macau and Mainland China customers. An analysis of the KPR GET BB D 2 AL B
Group’s revenue by location in which the transaction took ADHTEIT
place is as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue WA
Hong Kong BA 7,407,584 6,940,960
Mainland China AR A i 5,063,673 4,134,091
Macau and overseas RPN I 2,107,152 1,732,226
14,578,409 12,807,277
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other than REEMGCWEI D 2 AEEEREEE

deferred income tax assets, available-for-sale financial

(TEREEMEHREE AIHLESR

assets, derivative financial instrument, rental deposits, BE-THESRIE HLRse N *s*
interests in associates and loan to an associate) by location NAZEZRERTF—REBE QRS
of assets is as follows: wn
2018 2017
Hong ~ Mainland Macau and Hong Mainland  Macau and
Kong China overseas Total Kong China overseas Total
EE  hERE RMRESD 5t BE RERM  ORPREHN e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH#T TE#R THT THT TER TERT TET TER
Property, plant and equipment 0E BERRE 32421 214020 21218 547659 337835 199,791 %644 564270
Land use fights iR - a0 - 213019 - s - ourTst
Investment properties RamE 15,963 19,847 - 35,810 16,399 18,621 - 35,020
Prepayments for purchase of BENE BERRXEIR
property, plant and equipment, TRz BNERE
and land use rights 131,543 2,966 - 134,509 - 12,694 - 12,694
Trading licence RHNR 1,080 - - 1,080 1,080 - - 1,080
461,007 509,852 21,218 992,077 365,314 478,887 26,644 860,845
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7 OTHER INCOME 7 HftkA
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Government subsidies R 48
— Value-added tax refund (Note i) —BEFRK (T 121,782 105,157
— Other subsidies (Note ii) —HE AL (MI5Ei) 34,634 35,370
Rental income He WA 4,974 4,762
Others HAth 21,974 30,305
183,364 175,594
Notes: iz
[0} This represents refund from the tax authority in Mainland China. (i) tAKERBEN I EELE 2 R RS
The amount of refund is based on 13% of the cost of the imported BIENEARAZ13%TE - AR AEE A
diamonds. The Group is entitled to the refund as it is a member of +EBARGHIZKE MBATERLES
the Shanghai Diamond Exchange and the diamonds are imported BERZEED  WAEEFERRR
through the Shanghai Diamond Exchange.
(ii) This represents subsidies from a municipal government in Mainland (ii) It & A B A 3 T BT B R 2 fE B o

China.
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OPERATING PROFIT 8 HEEAEN
The operating profit is stated after charging the following: R T HBR T 518 B 256K -
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Cost of sales (Note (i) & (i) SHEE PR N (BT R () B (i) )
— cost of inventories sold —BEFENRK 10,637,774 9,322,365
— cost of licensing business — M ETE AR 199,258 207,851
10,837,032 9,530,216
Staff costs (including the directors’ BIRA(BIEEZH:)
emoluments) (Note (i) (Bt &% i) ) 864,985 737,794
Operating lease KEHE
— minimum lease payments —HEHAEMNK 626,939 645,875
— contingent rents - A 196,778 148,980
Commission expenses to TERFRRZ
credit card companies A 100,665 95,300
Depreciation of property, Y B M E
plant and equipment (Note 16) (FfzE16) 117,056 122,255
Depreciation of investment properties BREYERE
(Note 18) (MI5E18) 1,177 942
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 17) T Hb A AR (B RE17) 9,677 8,295
Loss on disposal of property, LEME  HBER
plant and equipment B it 1,783 1,966
Auditor’s remuneration % ELRD BN &
— Audit services —EIZR 5,487 5,353
— Non-audit services — BRI 1,701 926

Notes

0] Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) of HK$317,483,000 (i)

BIRA (BIEESE<E) 317,483,000/ T

(2017: HK$284,915,000) are included in cost of sales.

(i) Breakdown of total staff costs are as follows:

(20174F : 284,915,000/ 70 ) 5+ A S & BAR ©

(ii) BIRABRESITMOT :

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAET

Basic salaries, wages, bonus and allowance EXFe HE TeA KRR 1,105,076 955,930
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIKE KA — TE R ARG &l

(Note 14) (HEE14) 76,159 65,543

Long service payment (Note 31) REIRB S (MIE31) 1,233 1,236

1,182,468 1,022,709
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9 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 9 HikE (HR)  B&E
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Net realised (losses)/gains on derivative TESBMTAZBEE
financial instruments (Note) (&18) Hﬂlm@aﬁ
(BsE) (29,551) 899
Realised fair value losses on China Gold PR IREE ﬁﬁﬁ NS
Silver Group Limited share option BRE,2EE LTE
18 (9) -
Fair value gains on convertible bond EH@H&%%ZQ%ME
(Note 21) iz (MFEE21) 1,803 2,844
Net realised gains/(losses) on gold loans EE%FEZE“ Bz
(B18)F%E 1,981 (14,815)
Net unrealised gains/(losses) on gold loans =& B E 2 KRB U~
(Note 33) (/&) F58 (M17E33) 2,020 (9,716)
Net exchange gains b H W F 37,339 7,013
13,583 (138,775)
Notes: B aE
Derivative financial instruments mainly represent the gold contracts, gold MEeMmIAEFERAFSEH FoBEEOLES
future contracts and gold forward contracts. These derivative financial BHAN -ZENESRTATFAE TG ER -

instruments are not qualified for hedge accounting.

10 FINANCE INCOME, NET 10 BMBEKA B8
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TET FHET
Finance income: WA
— Bank interest income —IRITF BUA 22,323 17,951
— Effective interest income on the — BT —KBE QRN
non-current loan to an associate IERBERZ
FEHA 4,097 3,919
— Interest income on the convertible bond ~ —RI#IRE%A 2
FEHA 1,712 1,712
— Interest income on the loan to —BERT—REE QT
an associate ZFBUA 790 400
28,922 23,982
Finance costs: BTG RS
— Interest expenses on bank borrowings —SRITERZFBRAX (2,485) (803)
— Interest expenses on gold loans —EHeBEZMBERX (3,907) (8,208)
.39  (©011)
Finance income, net MBKA - BE 22,530 14,971
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES 11
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for

the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated

on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates

of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

FRisRBA
ERNEBHNIERAFE GRS
MR R16.5% (20174F : 16.5% ) 51 12
BE B INE R 2 RIE TR AF E (G RTE
AR RMERNEEERATERE RN
T=E o

“al 7+

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Current taxation: BVHARH 18

— Hong Kong profits tax —EBMEN 88,296 80,047
— Overseas taxation —gINBiIE 174,379 149,710

— (Over)/under-provision in prior years —BEFEEE
GBE) /TR (37,434) 696
Deferred income tax (Note 30) RIEFTSH (M47130) 17,884 (7,406)
243,125 223,047

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate applicable to the profits of the

R ER B B P S A s M) 2 B R B R S
AREHERENMINEF IR RTE
ZI% Rt Y Ul

consolidated entities as follows:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit before income tax B P15 50 A& A 1,613,439 1,250,015
Add: Share of results of associates 0 IR AR EE 29,897 54,273
1,643,336 1,304,288

Tax calculated at domestic tax REANS e AR

rates applicable to profits e RtE 21

in the respective jurisdictions 261,473 210,136
Income not subject to taxation BARB 2 BA (5,639) (10,698)
Expenses not deductible for AR 2 H

taxation purposes 3,539 3,684
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BAEFERE(BE)/

TR (37,434) 696

Tax losses of which no deferred tax asset ~ KRIERIELFHIBE E 2

is recognised WMIBEE 1,681 6,592
Utilisation of previously B AN RERNIASE

unrecognised tax losses (1,521) (248)
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of ~ H7 B8 ;A 1 Fff /B 2 &)

those subsidiaries in Mainland China Rk s T 2 TBIF

(Note 30) (MI3E30) 21,026 12,885

243,125 223,047
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$1,369,393,000 (2017: HK$1,016,838,000)
and the weighted average number of 587,107,850 (2017:
587,107,850) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017 is the same as the basic earnings per
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the years.

12 BEREF

BREARZFBBEAR GRS AR
1l 7K £2 @)3% F11,369,393,00078 7T (2017
% :1,016,838,000/8 70) R FNE BITE
PR 2 N 15 $1587,107,8500% (2017
% :587,107,8500% ) 51 & -

AREATED BT EEEEWEDN
LWL WU 20184 K20179F3A31H
HFEzSRBERNEGREREF
EIER

DIVIDENDS 13 KRR
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
2017/18 interim dividend, paid, BR2017/184F € # B %
of HK$0.35 (2016/17 interim dividend: B SR EE RO, 35/‘@%
HK$0.29) per ordinary share (2016/174F E R HAf%
0.29/%7T) 205,488 170,261
2017/18 special dividend, paid, B &2017/184F Z & Rl
of HK$0.20 (2016/17 special dividend: B EREEAR0.20% T
HK$0.26) per ordinary share (2016/17TF EHERIRL B
0.26/87T) 117,421 152,648
322,909 322,909
2017/18 final dividend, proposed, ¥HR2017/184F [Z R EA IR
of HK$0.55 (2016/17 final dividend: B e RE@AR0.558 T
HK$0.40) per ordinary share (Note) (2016/17F E AR E.
0.40%87T) (MI&E) 322,909 234,843
2016/17 special dividend, proposed, #EIR2016/174F ZH I I
of HK$0.15 per ordinary share T E@AR0.158 7T - 88,066
322,909 322,909
Note: 5T

At a meeting held on 27 June 2018, the directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.55 per ordinary share. Such dividend
is to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company on 15 August 2018. This proposed dividend is not reflected
as dividends payable in these consolidated financial statements, but will be
reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31
March 2019.

M2018F6 A27ART 2 G L EEFEHIK R
BB E R L mAR0.55/ T - A IR EAFREAAA
A]PA2018F8 A15H 877 Z lR i G K& #b /& - th#k
AR BN BN SR A M SRR PIMERMRE

M R AE Z2019F3A31 A L FE 2 RE @ﬂ
fid o
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14 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

14 SRHEBEFIBRE

Net contributions to pension plans charged R4RA B R B 2

to the consolidated income statement

BAKSETEIY

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000

T TAT

AR 76,159 65,543

The expense is recognised in the following line items in the
consolidated income statement:

BHERAXINEERaR A TIER

o7 -
e -

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

THT FAT

Cost of sales fHE A 26,890 23,896
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER 45,680 38,340
Administrative expenses TRER 3,589 3,307
76,159 65,543

The Group’s net contributions to pension plans are mainly
for employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Summary
of the pension plans are as follows:

(i) The Group contributes to an MPF Scheme for its
employees in Hong Kong, under which the Group and
each employee each makes monthly contribution to
the scheme at 5% of the qualifying earnings of the
employee, subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2017:
HK$1,500) per month.

(i)  The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China also
contributes to retirement plans for their employees
in Mainland China at a percentage of their salaries in
compliance with the requirements of the respective
municipal governments in Mainland China. The
municipal governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligation of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group in Mainland China.

AEEZRASHBERIELEAS
B Rob Bl ALIE B T3 o Bk 58I B
W

() AEEBAEFBEEBRIBHMERD
Berts B AERESERY
BIREBZAEBABL%IES A
oS B EE LR A1,5008 T
(20174 : 1,500/ 7T ) °

i) AEERTENZHBARITAE
BT AR B A TR 2 AR E R
ERmBEANREEFHAES
—E B2 BKF B K
FRBEERERNREAARB LARK
R BEAMES 2 RKEMEE-
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15 ESREREEARGRFIRES
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (a) EFERTHRERZMNS
emoluments
The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the FARNARBEERITRE 2
directors and chief executive of the Company during B @ EEmT

the year were as follows:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Fees ka 2,170 2,170

Salaries e 62,585 61,905
Performance and discretionary WRIBMIBEER 2L

bonuses 31,204 23,446

Contributions to pension plan RIREETEIH K 492 477

Total directors’ emoluments, payable & & B AR E B SR &

and expensed in the consolidated T ESHE R

financial statements 96,451 87,998
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a)

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued) ($#8)
Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (a) EERITTHEZME (18)
emoluments (Continued)
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a FAAPAATEETRARFZANBER
person’s services as a director, whether of the RESENIERE :
Company or its subsidiary undertaking:
For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E2018F3A31HILEE
Performance Estimated Employer's
and money  contribution to
discretionary Housing  values of other a retirement Total
Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits  benefit scheme emoluments
Name of director and EERTHAR BEARE @iz BEIRBHET
chief executive i34 g fif Bl EEEE  HHE%RE by L HesE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT T#7 T#7 T#T TH#T TR
WONG Wai Sheung (Note )~ E(EF (i) 55 54,867 15,307 - - 178 70,407
TSE Moon Chuen BN ES 55 1,447 2,826 - - 61 4,389
WONG Hau Yeung 565 55 967 5,652 - - #“ 6,715
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy HE 55 695 4,711 - - 29 5,490
CHUNG Vai Ping BRIk 55 684 353 - - 29 1,121
CHAN So Kuen €3] 55 3,685 2,355 - - 154 6,249
WONG Ho Lung, Danny B 110 60 - - - - 170
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline HER 110 60 - - - - 170
HUI Chiu Chung Rk 110 60 - - - - 170
LI Hon Hung TER 110 60 - - - - 170
WONG Yu Pok, Marina? BiE 250 - - - - - 250
TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander  BiEIR* 300 - - - - - 300
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen* 9 300 - - - - - 300
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin® KR 300 - - - - - 300
HUI King Waif SRR 250 - - - - - 250
2,170 62,585 31,204 - - 492 96,451
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15 EFREREEARRIIRES

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued) ($#8)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (a) EERITTHEZME (18)
emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE2017F3A3IALEFE
Performance Estimated Employer's
and mongy  contribution to
discretionary Housing  values of other a retirement Total
Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits  benefit scheme emoluments
Name of director and BRRITREH REREE Efvigfle  BEmRRET
chief executive 4 ik i Bz FR2H  HENEE SHEI ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FiEn FiEx TR T FiEn TFign FiEn
WONG Wai Sheung (Note )~ S8 (Fiz) 55 54,609 11,089 - - 172 66,125
TSE Moon Chuen mi 55 1367 2,084 - - 59 3,565
WONG Hau Yeung B3 55 903 4,168 - - 39 5,165
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy U] 55 648 3473 - - 28 4,204
CHUNG Vai Ping EHk 55 651 695 - - 28 1429
CHAN So Kuen BZ0B 55 3487 1,737 - - 151 5430
WONG Ho Lung, Danny EihE 110 60 - - - - 170
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline HER 110 60 - - - - 170
HUI Chiu Chung B 10 60 - - - - 170
LI Hon Hung TRl 110 60 - - - - 170
WONG Yu Pok, Marina® Fpey 250 - - - - - 250
TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander  BiEIR* 300 - - - - - 300
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen* 3550 300 - - - - - 300
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin* KRR 300 - - - - - 300
HUI King Walt SRE 250 - - - - - 250
2,170 61,005 23446 - - 477 87,098
# Independent non-executive directors # BIUFBITES
Notes: B aE
i) Mr. Wong Wai Sheung is also the chief executive of the 0] EREEEENBERRRZITIREH
Company.
No directors waived their emoluments in respect of H E220174F K2018F3H31H I F
the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2018. B UEEEHEANE -
No directors received or will receive remuneration in MEEERENE ZHF D RS
respect of accepting office as a director. No directors WENEH € - BB E SR BHEEER
received or will receive other emoluments in respect NRIFHMB AR EBHEMES
of director’s other services in connection with the BR7S B Uk W ER Kb Bl < o

management of the affairs of the Company, or its
subsidiary undertaking.
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

15 EERERTEAREIRER

(#)
() EERITTHERMS (&)

Aggregate emoluments
paid to or receivable by
directors in respect of
their services as
directors, whether of
the Company or

Aggregate emoluments
paid to or receivable by
directors in respect of
their other services in
connection with the
management of the
affairs of the Company

its subsidiary or its subsidiary
undertakings undertakings Total
HEEFLFH HERTEFLTH
ERBARESRZ EMBELTEHZ
RBEEHEER EREtRBEAH
ExRGMesE i &4 b4t ] #8
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET FET
For the year ended HZE2018F
31 March 2018 SASIALLFE 2,170 94,281 96,451
For the year ended HE2017F
31 March 2017 SASIALEE 2,170 85,828 87,998

Directors’ retirement benefits

Except for the employer’s contribution to a retirement
benefit scheme as disclosed in (a), no other retirement
benefits were paid to the directors of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2018 in respect of
their services as directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries (2017: same).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the years ended 31 March
2018 (2017: same).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company
did not pay any consideration to any third parties
for making available the services of themselves as
directors of the Company (2017: same).

(b) EFZEHKIEF

Br @B AT B 2 RIREFE 2R =
HEAN B EZ2018F3A31H ILAF
B UWERAQRZEEREEMT
ARG REMBARIZEEMIE R
AR 7% S A B A iR K@ FI (20174F
R o

(c) EEZMBREF

REZE2018F3A3IH IEFE - i
B FBICE 08 B U T (0] BB A
) (20174 1 48R)) -

(d HEH#EEBRBRB=HIM

K=
REE2018F3A31HILFE - A&
NETEETREZ A REE AR
RARBHEERB IS ERMNRE
(20174 : F2[A) °
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

194

(e)

(f

(9)

(h)

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
were entered into by the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking in favour of the directors of the Company,
a controlled body corporate or a connected entity
of such directors at any time during the year (2017:
same).

15 EEREREEARBIRER

(#%)

(e)

FRLUEE ZSEECREE
EERERESZBAZER
FLURRRAMEREZEH

B 4 [ E 05 1) - A28 ) o B
BAFAUBITTARATEE &
SEFEEEABEER AT
HAZER EUERRAMEE
%24k (20179 : 4RFF]) -

Directors’ material interests in transactions, (N EERXS RIKSHZEKX
arrangements or contracts Ea
Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the notes BRZEGREVBREMTEMIBS
to these consolidated financial statements, no other iR s RSN NAal i Ept A
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts EEEBIILARREENHEFA
in relation to the Group’s business to which the EREESEEER BREZE2018
Company was a party and in which a director of the FIAGIALEFEARFRFAT
Company has a material interest, whether directly or AEERCEMEARZS ©H
indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during AH (20174 HBR) -
the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: same).
Five highest paid individuals (9 EEEEHFMAL
Among the five highest paid individuals, all (2017: all) hEERFMATES 23
of them are directors of the Company and the details (2017F 2 ) BANRESE F
of their remuneration are disclosed in the preceding EEeHBER LRIERE-
paragraph.
Senior management’s emoluments (hy SHEBAR#ME
The emoluments fall within the following bands: BEZMEN T THIAER

2018 2017
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T 22,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 = HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,000/% 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7T £3,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,0017% 7T £4,500,0007% 7T 1

2 2

Senior management represents senior management S ﬁ& EIEERIEST I AMEEA

staff who are non-directors.

\
”
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

/T\

16 B% -BERRMH

Furniture and
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold computer Plant and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment machinery vehicles Total
HEME KA-RER
THREF ke EEEE RAERES RE 1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEL TiEn TR FET TiEn ThEL
At 1 April 2016 #2016E4R 1A
Cost AR 479914 474,820 178,959 55,972 24,689 1,214,354
Accumulated depreciation 2HAE (69,079) (350,370) (130,629) 40,076) 20,334) (610,476)
Net book value REFE 410,841 124,450 48,336 15,896 4,355 603,878
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE017F3ANALER
Opening net book value FUEEEFE 410,841 124,450 48,336 15,896 4,355 603,878
Exchange oifferences EREE (6,868) (1,416) (1,095) (628) (158) (10,165)
Addltions HE - 60,142 29,813 4,823 - 94,778
Disposals HE - (1,248) (646) (72) - (1,966)
Depreciation charge HEXM (11,206) (78,896) (04,361) 6,178) (1614) (122,255)
Closing net book value FREEFE 392,767 103,082 52,047 13,841 2,583 564,270
At 31 March 2017 #201743A31A
Cost KA 474,596 498,825 189,784 48217 23,867 1,235,289
Accumulated depreciation 2itHE (81,829) (395,793) (187,737) (34,376) (21,284) (671,019
Net book value REFE 392,767 103,032 52,047 13,841 2,583 564,270
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE018FIANALEE
Opening net book value FNEEFE 392,767 103,032 52,047 13,841 2,583 564,270
Exchange oiferences ERER 13,179 2,270 2,612 1,015 155 19,231
Additions HE 2,624 45,670 31,360 3,647 483 83,784
Disposals & - (1,425) (545) (455) (145) (2,570)
Depreciation charge REZM (11,369) (73,478) (24,837) (6,027) (1,345) (117,056)
Closing net book value FREEFE 397,201 76,069 60,637 12,021 1,731 547,659
At 31 March 2018 #2018%3A31A
Cost KA 493,474 508,451 225,154 54,520 25,407 1,307,006
Accumulated depreciation 2HE (96,273) (432,382) (164,517) (42,499) (23,676) (759,347)
Net book value REFE 397,201 76,069 60,637 12,021 1,731 547,659
Annual Report 2017/18 #8195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NSRSyl D

17 LAND USE RIGHTS 17 b fE i
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
Year ended 31 March HESASIHLEE
Opening net book value FYIRE FHE 247,781 215,245
Addition NE 8,809 51,704
Amortisation charge BB (9,677) (8,295)
Exchange differences ME =R 26,106 (10,873)
Closing net book value FARIREFE 273,019 247,781
At 31 March #3HA31H
Cost B 7R 327,619 287,873
Accumulated amortisation R (54,600) (40,092)
273,019 247,781
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 KEYXE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Year ended 31 March §E3ASIALEE
Opening net book value FYREFE 35,020 24,617
Addl’[lon //J\E - 11 ,735
Depreciation e (1,177) (942)
Exchange differences fEH Z5 1,967 (390)
Closing net book value FREEEFE 35,810 35,020
At 31 March #3A31H
Cost PR 7R 42,661 40,446
Accumulated depreciation 2RI E (6,851) (5,426)
35,810 35,020
At valuation (Note) 548 (B &E) 101,401 99,028
Note: PR EE

The valuation of the investment properties was determined by an
independent valuer BMI Appraisals Limited at open market values (2017: BMI

Appraisals Limited).

a)e
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18

19
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-

18 #|EWMR (#&)
AR AT RS 2 40 7 S 7 A SR SRR

cancellable operating leases are as follows: ZJEREMSHETENT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Not later than one year —FR 10,006 7,344
Later than one year and not later than —FRETBBRF
five years 5,544 9,412
15,550 16,756
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19 REBRELFIZHES
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
As at 1 April R4A1H 85,012 154,531
Share of results of associates for the year ~ FRNE(REE & A B E4E (29,897) (54,273)
Share of reserve movement of F R & D R
associates for the year 12,478 (15,246)
As at 31 March P3H31H 67,593 85,012
Amount due from an associate (Note ) FEUM — KB A BIER IR
(B ki) 13,173 33,340
Amount due to an associate (Note i) FE — KB A RIERIR
(B&Ei) (3,555) (1,995)
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31 March

/\‘/T\

19

198

2018

are as follows:

Particulars of

19 HWEBRELFIZHES (i)
R2018F3 A31 A AREEE 2L R a2 7185

0 -

Place of issued % of attributable interests
Name incorporation share capital held indirectly Principal activities
£ o 1 B 3L 3t BRITRFHE HERTRGHEKESLE IEXH
2018 2017

Luk Fook Diamond Hong Kong HK$6,120,000 50% 50%  Manufacturing and

Company Limited? BB 6,120,000/ 7T wholesale of diamond
NEEAER AR products

B0 B mn BHE B B

China Gold Silver Group The British Virgin -~ USD3,334 50% 50%  Retailing and franchising

Company Limited Islands (“BVI") 3,334% T operations of gold and

(‘CGS’) RBHERRHS jewellery products in
HESREEBERAA Hong Kong, Macau

([HERER]) " and Mainland China

Notes:

(i)

Pursuant to the shareholder’s agreement, this associate is controlled
by a third party, who holds the casting vote in the directors’ meetings.

The financial statements of this company are audited by firm other
than PricewaterhouseCoopers. The financial year of this associate is
not conterminous with that of the Group and the financial statements
used for equity accounting are for the 12 months period ended 31
December 2017. This associate uses 30 June as its financial year to
conform with its holding company’s reporting date. Pursuant to the
shareholders’ agreement, the company is controlled by its holding
company, which holds the casting vote in the directors’ meetings.

Amount due from an associate of HK$13,173,000 (2017:
HK$33,340,000) is trade in nature. Amount due from/(to) associates
are denominated in HK$ and are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The Group’s associates did not have any significant capital
commitments as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

BT

(i)

EEE RFIRTERL
RESSRUEEHH
EmZTERFBHE

BREBRRBZ ZHEAFHREFTEE
ARRERZE =T

ZARZHBEREABERKESTMER
itz SN oAt B TS FTE8 A% o 3% 4 A B 2 BB
FERASETR EUBERRDEARERE
e RERE2017FE128318 (H12@ A
HARE o 3% R AR A6 AS0 R fE A E BT B
EFER UEERRARNREBH K-
IRIRAR SR e - X A R E IR A AR HI - 3%
ERARNESEEZTIRATE-

FEU— R & A B8R TE 13,173,000 7T, (2017

£ 133,340,000 ) AE S ME - Bl (JE

M BERRRBENETHE  BIKF - 28
REAEEREE-

AN B A Bl R20184 K%201743 A31
B 3 BT & KA AN AR -
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20 LOANS TO AN ASSOCIATE 20 HERF—XBELT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHET
Non-current portion JEREE S
Loan to an associate (Note i) BERT—REE QR (M) 94,927 90,830
Current portion mENE S
Loan to an associate (Note ii) BERTFT—REEQE (M&Fi) 43,190 20,000
138,117 110,830

Notes:

(i

In connection with the acquisition of CGS on 6 June 2014, the Group
and Hong Kong Resources Holdings Limited (“HKRH”) each agreed
to provide funding of HK$100,000,000 to CGS by way of shareholder
loan for general working capital and business expansion purpose.

The shareholder loan is unsecured, interest-free and not to be repaid
within one year after the end of the reporting period. The carrying
amount is denominated in HK$.

The difference between the nominal value of the loan and its fair
value of HK$80,207,000 at the time of acquisition amounting to
HK$19,793,000 is regarded as part of the cost of the investment in
CGS.

The Group and HKRH each agreed to provide two short-term
shareholder loans of HK$43,190,000 in total (2017: HK$20,000,000)
to CGS. The short-term shareholder loans are interest bearing at 2%
per annum and with maturity within one year.

GEE

(i

Annual Report 2017/18 E#i

MR2014F6A6EEPRSE AEE R
BEEBRERBRAR ([EAERZER])
HRAEEB—ERFEER MFEERREME
100,000,0008 TE® ER—BREEEE R
ESi S0k

PERE R EIEIR 8 BFANRESE
Rig—FAEE - BREEIAETEHE

B2 TH B B AR AR ) 2 /(580,207,000
P 7L 2 £ %819,793,0008 7T - 143 A B IR

BRERRZ—HHD

AEBRBESERERSEREATES
SRR M E A $£43,190,0007% 7T (20174 -
20,000,000/ 7T ) K 52 BARR R E K o S HIR &R
BRE2% 2 EFERA B YR —FREH-
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21 f14E€&mTH
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current portion JEREE D
Convertible bond (Note) AR ES (M) 50,782 48,979
Current portion mEES
CGS Share Option P B 5 5R B8 ISR - 9
50,782 48,988
Note: feaE:

On 6 June 2014, the Group subscribed a convertible bond of HKRH of
HK$57,080,000 with 3% interest rate per annum and 5 years of maturity
from the date of issuance. The conversion period commences on the 2nd
anniversary of the issue date and expires on the date which is three days
before its maturity.

The convertible bond comprises a loan receivable component and option
component which together have been designated as derivative financial
instrument by the Group. The convertible bond was initially recognised at
HK$57,080,000 and subsequently revalued to HK$50,782,000 at 31 March
2018 (2017: HK$48,979,000). The fair value as at year end was valued by
an independent valuer using a Trinomial Tree model with the following key
assumptions:

R2014F6A6H  AEEREE S ERE R IRRK
f&%57,080,000/% 7t  F 7| %&3% - B3 17 B HIEFS
FREE - RN EITEBREMAFRREREA
Al 39{ /ﬁ

B EHFBERERERRERE  AAEEET A
PTHE S B T A - Al R (& % 1257,080,00078 TTi#E 1T )
SHER - 1512201843 A31H & {4 A50,782,000/5
7T (20174F : 48,979,000/87T ) » FRAAEHBE L
ER R = XA ER RIA THERBRETHE

As at 31 March

®W3A31A

2018 2017
Share price of HKRH BABEIRERRD B HK$0.08#% T HK$0.107% 7T
Exercise price 1B HK$0.178# 7T HK$0.187 7T
Dividend yield iR S 7 = 0% 0%
Effective interest rate GRS 15.18% 15.31%
Volatility S iE 39.14% 41.14%
Risk free rate g 1.22% 0.91%

The fair value gain of HK$1,803,000 (2017: HK$2,844,000) was included
under “Other gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 March 2018.

A EW 1,803,000/ 7T (20174 : 2,844,000/ 7T )
FFABZE2018F3ASIA L FE 2 rABmR 2 [H
iz, (E518) - FE] -
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22 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22 FAIftHHESRMEE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
At 1 April ®4A1H 7,690 8,767
Net loss transfer to equity (Note 29) ERERR2FER
(MF5E29) (1,615) (1,077)
At 31 March ®3A31H 6,075 7,690
Available-for-sale financial assets represent common shares AP ESHEERE "IN EBHAKR
issued by a company listed on The Stock Exchange of SFIBRAT L2 AREIT 2 LM -
Hong Kong Limited. The available-for-sale financial assets AftEESREENETHEREAR
are denominated in HK$ and stated at fair values. BE27-
23 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23 e AMREARAMEKIESR
RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
T AT
Non-current JEEPHA
Rental deposits Heks 77,658 108,510
Prepayment (Note) FEFTARIE (MI5E) 134,509 12,694
212,167 121,204
Current EPSA
Rental deposits Heke 85,456 70,221
Value-added tax recoverable AUk BB 148,768 154,184
Prepayments TETERIE 64,720 50,495
Interest receivables U FI] 8, 7,023 2613
Other receivables Eoth fE Y AR 1B 27,944 19,419
Other deposits Hfige 30,854 26,391
364,765 823,323 _
576,932 444,527
Note: B aE
As at 31 March 2018, amount of HK$131,543,000 included in non-current 201834318 - B BN TET R IEH 131,543,000/8
prepayment represents the prepayment paid for the acquisition of several JL Ty B3R 8 (B #9560,700,00078 T W EE AL A & 7
commercial properties located in Hong Kong with an aggregate consideration A TREMEMINOEMER - 2 KESEER
of approximately HK$560.7 million. The acquisition is completed in April 2018F4 A FERK °
2018.
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DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the deposits, prepayments and
other receivables approximate their fair values and are
denominated in the following currencies:

23 #e WAREREMEKESR

(#&)
e B ARTE K E A AR T 2 BRE
HARERE LA THIEHRE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000

TET AT

HK$ BT 295,853 168,543
RMB AR 231,496 213,429
MOP SRS TT 42,521 52,263
Other currencies Hip gk 7,062 10,292
576,932 444 527

The credit quality of deposits and other receivables has
been assessed by reference to historical information about
the counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties
have not defaulted in the past. At 31 March 2018, no
deposits and other receivables were considered impaired
(2017: Nil). The Group does not hold any collateral for its
deposits and other receivables.

INVENTORIES

The inventories net of provision are as follow:

24

REREMBWEREBE EEEENER
DEFRHFHHER LR BEERE
TG - RAEHF BT WEE RS-
R2018%F3A31H WL & R H M EIKL
BRIEBW G AERE (2017F &) - K&
B EmpEEZe REMERRBRZREE
A4 I o

5E
BBz HFEWO T :

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Finished goods BIRY G 7,855,443 6,916,477
Raw materials R4 % 136,284 56,293
7,991,727 6,972,770

At 31 March 2018, inventories carried at net realisable A2018FE3A31H R Al & I8 H A 5 BR

value amounted to approximately HK$92,055,000 (2017:
HK$47,290,000). As at 31 March 2018, the Group
recognised inventory provision of HK$9,206,000 (2017:
HK$4,729,000). During the year ended 31 March 2018,
provision of inventories amounted to HK$4,477,000 (2017:
HK$266,900) was recognised as an expense and included
in ‘cost of sales’ in consolidated income statements.

2 175 49 /92,055,000 7T (20174 :
47,290,000/ 7T ) ° ’A2018F3H31H *
NEBHRTERE 206,000/ 7T
(2017 : 4,729,000/ 7T ) ° A & 220184
SHHIEFE HRAMI 2 HFERE
1% B4,477,0007% 7T (20174 : 266,900/
L) RERIFIARGEERRIEE
B o
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25 TRADE RECEIVABLES
The Group’s sales to retail customers comprised mainly
cash sales and credit card sales. Concessionaire sales
through department stores and sales to wholesale
customers are generally on credit terms ranging from O to
90 days.

The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

25

R 7 B RIA

AEERTETFIHETERRRTHE
RERRHE - BERSRFTHE AL
BEPHEZEEH RN F0OE0R -

B HRWIRIAE 2 BRERIN T

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHET

0 - 30 days 0£30H 244,820 143,542
31 - 60 days 31£260H 76,925 44,481
61 — 90 days 61%290H 20,170 20,371
91 - 120 days 91%120H 8,769 2,944
Over 120 days H#im120H 9,112 5,920
359,796 217,258

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their ZoRWARE Z REERE A RERE

fair values and are denominated in the following currencies: WIA TS EHE BEA

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FHET

HKS$ AT 67,452 19,425
RMB AR 270,887 186,078
MOP BT 19,088 9,638
Other currencies Hap g 2,369 2,117
359,796 217,258

The credit quality of trade receivables has been assessed by
reference to historical default rate of the counterparty. The
existing counterparties have not defaulted in the past. The
Group does not hold any collateral for its trade receivables.

As at 31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$17,881,000
(2017: HK$8,864,000) were past due but not considered
impaired and all of which were aged over 90 days.

EoRKEBEELEENBER2EYF
FBREHAR LR ETH G - RBEEF A
FIEA R A BT EREE S E
U BR B+ B T3

R2018F3A31H @ HIBE I E AR A
SE BB BB0R M E 5 E R 1E =
17,881,0005% 7T, (20174F : 8,864,000/%
JT) e
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES 26 BlE&RMITHER
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Short-term bank deposits, with FHB LR =ZEAN
maturities less than 3 months RERIRTTE 707,164 195,300
Cash at bank and on hand RITFRRFRERE 1,192,895 1,333,906
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEED 1,900,059 1,529,206
Short-term bank deposits, with FHBEBA=-EAN
maturities over 3 months ERIRTTE R 197,808 332,568
Total cash and bank balances Be RIRTTHEBRATE 2,097,867 1,861,774

As at 31 March 2018, the cash and bank balances
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$1,442,671,000 (2017: HK$1,070,366,000) are held by
the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China. The conversion
of the RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

R2018F3A31H LA REHENIR S
K §R 17 45 82 491,442,671,000% 7T (2017
£ :1,070,366,00078 7 ) Ty AL [E FA
WiﬂzZBﬁ%@ﬂ%ﬁ BZEUARE
FHEMEHRIRE BINE B G ST B BT
T 9845 2 HINIEE & 1) 45 Bl 2 4R 431

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 27 B ZREfIIRIE - HthfEFRIARE
ACCRUALS FHRRIE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FAET
Trade payables Z S ERE 380,134 381,575
Deposits from customers and licensees REEPRETEZE® 389,348 318,647
Salaries and welfare payables e 5 & A& FI 193,894 160,004
Other payables H e BRIE 119,443 111,736
Accrued expenses JEE & A 42,634 32,702
1,125,453 1,004,664

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S
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27 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 27 B HEfFIRIE - HthfEFRIERE
ACCRUALS (Continued) AR (48)

The ageing of trade payables is as follows: B IRENERBE ZRERNT

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAET

0 - 30 days 0£30H 276,949 247,907

31 - 60 days 31260H 79,244 120,730

61 — 90 days 61ZF90H 19,596 11,224

91 — 120 days 912120H 4,345 1,417

Over 120 days HBi@E120H - 297

380,134 381,575

The carrying amounts of the trade payables, other payables
and accruals approximate their fair values.

B SR IRIA - B B BRIA S e AT IR
ZREERFEZ RERE -

28 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 28 BRERKRDERE
(a) Share capital (a) =&
2018 2017
No. of shares HK$'000 No. of shares HK$'000
& A THET g4 FET
Authorised: VERE
Ordinary shares of SRREECAETT
HK$0.1 each ZEBRR 800,000,000 80,000 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: 31T R&E
Ordinary shares of SRREECAETT
HK$0.1 each 2 EmAR 587,107,850 58,710 587,107,850 58,710
(b) Share premium (b) BERE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 31 March MR3A31H 2,494,040 2,494,040

Annual Report 2017/18 #8205
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29 RESERVES 29 f#fW
Available-
for-sale
Capital financial
Capital  redemption assets  Exchange  Statutory Other  Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
RERE  WiiHe

e il cREERE ERRG EERE  ARRG  REEW 1]
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
T TR TR TET TR TR Fign TR

(Note i) (Note iv) (Note ii) (Note iii)
(W) (M) (Meki) (W)

Representing: B
Reserves [t

[cuded proposed cvidend) ~ (FBERERS) 135,713 00 BB) @07 060 - 5615878 5798137
Proposed dividend RS - - - - - - 32809 322,909
At 31 March 2016 12016537318 135,713 200 (8,257) (43,017) 92,620 - 5938787 6,121,046
For the year ended #E2017%3031A0

31 March 2017 LEE
At 1 April 2016 201654718 135,713 200 (3,257) (43,017) 92,620 - 5938787 6,121,046
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit attributable to equity KRAERRBA

holders of the Company ElE A - - - - - - 1016838 1016838
Other comprehensive income ~ Xf2EHA
Currency tranglation differences B = - - - (1173 - - - (171,739)
Remeasurement of EEEFIELN

employes benefit BHitE

obligations (Note 31(d) (M5£31(d)) - - - - - - 1,349 1,349
Revaluation of avallable-forsale M ELBEE

financial assets(Note 22) HEEZD (F52) - - (1,077) - - - - (1,077)
Total other comprehensive Ht2EEKA

income - - (T3 . o 1018187 845372
Transactions with owners BEBEAZZS
2015/16 final dividend paid B2015/165 5 Rk 2 - - - - - - (199617)  (199,617)

2015/16 special divicend paid Ef2015165 EH Bk S - - - - - - (128292 (123292)
2016/17 interim dividend paid ER2016MTEEPERE - - - - - - (170261)  (170,261)
2016/17 special dvidend paid £ (120161 TE B RIRE - - - - - S (5648 (15269

- - - - - - (645,818) (645,818)

At 31 March 2017 2017537318 135,713 200 (4,334) (214,759) 92,620 - 631,156 6,320,600
Representing: I
Reserves &

(excluded proposed dividend) (TRERERE) 135,713 200 (4,334) (214,759) 92,620 - 5988247 5997,691
Proposed dividend BRRE - - - - - - 32009 322,909
At 31 March 2017 2017834318 135,713 200 (4,334) (214,755) 92,620 - 631,15 6,320,600
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29 RESERVES (Continued) 29 W (#)
Available-
for-sale
Capital financial
Capital redemption assets  Exchange  Statutory Other  Retained
reseve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total
BFED  THiHE
23] fiF eMEERE ERRE 2 EEGRE EMEE REEY én
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T#T TET FET T#T TET Fén T#T
(Note i) (Note iv) (Note i) (Note iii)
(W) (M&iv) (Meki) (W)
Representing: B
Reserves [t
[cuded proposed cvidend) ~ (FBIERERS) 135,713 00 @3 RIUTH 92620 - 5988247 5007691
Proposed dividend BRks - - - - - - 32909 322,909
At 31 March 2017 20173318 185,713 200 (4334 (214755) 92,620 - 6311,15% 6320600
For the year ended #E2018%
31 March 2018 SAIALEE
At 1 April 2017 01754 A18 135,713 200 (4,334) (214,755) 92,620 - 631,15 6,320,600
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit attributable to equity RRFERRFEA
holders of the Company FefE & - - - - - - 1369393 12369,393
Other comprehensive income ~ Ef2EKA
Currency tranglation differences ~ E = - - - 405244 - - - 405244
Remeasurement of EEEFELN
employee benefit Bt E
obligations (Note 31(d) (M5£31(d)) - - - - - - 16,646 16,646
Revaluation of avallable-for-sale AT ERBEE
financial assets(Note 22) HEEZS (Fi52) - - (1615) - - - - (1615)
Total other comprehensive H2EEKA
income - - (1,619) 405,244 - - 1386039 1,789,608
Transactions with owners HEBEAZXS
2016/17 final dividend paid BR201617EE KBRS
(Note 13| (BizE13) - - - - - - (234843 (234843
2016/17 special dividend paid BH2016HTEERRIRE - - - - - - (88,066) (88,066)
2017/8 nterm dhidend paid £ (1201718 ERERE - - - - - - 0548y (205488
2017/18 special dvidend paid £ (1201 7/18E B RIRE - - - - - - [T (740)
Acquisition of additional equity BiARER
interest in a subsidiary from WEEH B AR
anon-controling interest BOMNRAER - - - - - 17,569 - 17,569
- - - - S 17E9 (645818 (28.249)
At 31 March 2018 R2018E3A31A 135,713 200 (6,949 190,489 92,620 17,669 7,061,377 7,482,019
Representing: &
Reserves FEE
xcuded proposed cvidend) ~ (FEIEEERS) 135,713 00 GBI 10489 RGN 17569 6728468 7,159110
Proposed dividend BRES - - - - - - 32009 322,909
At 31 March 2018 R2016%3A318 185,713 M BMY 190489 W6 1759 7061377 7482019
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29 RESERVES (Continued) 29 &l (#8)

Notes: FfsE -

[0) The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between 0] NEE 7 BN FEIE RS E 9974 S 4H
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the Fir U B2 B BB /A B 2 A1) T £ Bt A B B 1T AR
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at ARIRHzEEMERZ =8
the time of the Group’s reorganisation in 1997.

(ii) Statutory reserves are non-distributable and the transfers of these (ii) EEREI AT DR BRI BERIET AE
funds are determined by the Board of Directors of the relevant BB A E A R EEEREP E AR
Mainland China subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant laws and AR RARBIRTE ©
regulations in Mainland China.

(ii) Other reserve primarily arose from the acquisition of remaining (il HihREHBEEEREWE-—RWBEREIHT
6.7% equity interest of a subsidiary, and represents any differences 6.7% [ HE - FEIEIERER AR 2T (AR
between the amount by which the non-controlling interest are RIER R EREE) HENRBZAAE
adjusted (to reflect the changes in the interests in subsidiaries) and ZERE
the fair value of the consideration paid.

(iv) During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company purchased (iv) H E2016F3A31BILFE A Ral A
2,000,000 of its shares on Hong Kong Stock Exchange at a total K 1829,143,0008 TN B BB X MEE H
consideration of HK$29,143,000. All the repurchased shares were 2,000,0000% f% 17 © Fr & B8 Bl A& 19 9 2 51 85 -
cancelled and the issued share capital of the Company was reduced MARR KB BFITRANE B ER 2 Eiﬁﬂxf’ﬁ
by the nominal value of these shares accordingly. The premium ZHEEE -BREAXNEEEARAR
paid on repurchase was charged against the share premium of the A& 19 4 (B B o ﬁiE‘ﬁﬁHﬁfﬁﬁ@*H#Zi
Company. An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares FEE B IR B 2= & AR E 0 [ -
cancelled was transferred from retained earnings to the capital
redemption reserve.

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 BIEFRH®R
Deferred income tax of the Group is provided for in respect AEEREERSH I T IR B &
of: 1
Undistributed profit of
Tax depreciation Unrealised profit on those subsidiaries in
allowances and tax losses  closing inventories Mainland China Total
hER
REMERGRARER HRFRCKEHRTN MELRF 2 REF #a
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FAT THET FEL THET FEL THET FEL
At 1 Apri #4B1E 1,723 127 39238 30270 (76677 (13519 (35716  (43122)
Credited/(charged) to the  4RABRR
consolidated income & A/ (k)
statement (Note 11) (BFE11) 1,784 1,596 (625) 8,968 (19,043) (3,158 (17,884) 7,406
At 31 March #W3A31A 3,507 1,723 38,613 39,238 (95,720) (76,677) (53,600) (35,716)
Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

30 EIEFTFIR (18)

Representing: b=t
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAET
Deferred income tax assets IRIEFTISTEE 47,114 45,954
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEMEE (100,714) (81,670)
At 31 March M3A31H (53,600) (35,716)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profit
is probable. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had
potential unrecognised deferred tax assets amounting
to HK$14,505,000 (2017: HK$14,703,000) in respect of
tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable
income. Cumulative tax losses of HK$43,187,000 (2017:
HK$40,396,000) can be carried forward indefinitely;
cumulative tax losses of HK$37,595,000 (2017:
HK$35,522,000) will expire (if not utilised) within the next
three to five years.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - LONG
SERVICE PAYMENT

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of service with
the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any
remaining obligations. The long service payments are paid
out from the Group’s cash in hand when such payments are
required.

The latest actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2017 and
31 March 2018 specifically designated for the Group’s
employees was completed by a qualified actuary, Towers
Watson Hong Kong Limited, using projected unit credit
method.

31

BEMSHEEDREE CRIARIA
MR -MAEBAE B A BERE T
Hﬂaﬁ%mﬁ%l%“?‘ﬁ o FA20184 3 A 31

CAEBEBEABREEHIBEE
,\14,505,000/.173 (20174F : 14,703,000
BIL) BB THEENIREBRE
ABMMAZHREBE - R HIEEIA
43,187,000/ JT (20174 : 40,396,000
BIL) A ER AT R HIEEIE
37,595,000 7T (20174 : 35,522,000/
TSR AR AR=ZE2RAFANE
i °

EREFNRE- RURES

*ETF%E\“ REERD XEEBREERET

BT BAEHW&Z!S’E@E* HEZET
BEZERERAES —RIERRIEA - &
NREDRTEREE Z& ?é%ﬁ%&ﬁlﬁ

BEEME W ERNRBENRFTEIET
RARGEE 2 HEL 2 REEm - AEH
Y EBHEMNEEFRETAKTREZ
Ee REZXNEABIER 84K
Bz FRRASBANERRE S -

BEARBEMBETEUTBRRAAN
Bt B EREATKERAEEEEM
7%, 220174F3 A31H K201843A31H
BATIRE AT
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31 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS -LONG 31 EERfE{E- RUERES

SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued) (£8)
(@ The amount recognised in the consolidated balance @ NEEEEBERBERZIFEN
sheet is as follows: T
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Present value of defined benefit AEwRMNEEZRE
obligations 8,237 23,754
() Movements in the net liability recognised in the b) REEEEBRBERERZBEFSE
consolidated balance sheet are as follows: BEANE -
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
At 1 April R4H1H 23,754 23,918
Expenses recognised in the RizEERRER AL
consolidated income statement 1,233 1,236
Remeasurements recognised REM 2 E WA
in other comprehensive income ERZEH= (16,646) (1,349)
Benefits paid directly by employer EBEEESNMZ2EF (104) (51)
At 31 March MR3H31H 8,237 23,754
(€) Expenses recognised in the consolidated income ) REEERRERIHAZNT:
statement is as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current service cost BNERR S & 775 750
Interest cost F B A 458 486
1,233 1,236
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31 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - 31 ERRFIRE- RUERES
LONG SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued) ($8)
(d)  Income recognised in the consolidated statement of 0 REFEEE2ERARKER ZLALDN
comprehensive income is as follows: T
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Remeasurements of employees EERANEEMEFTTE
benefit obligations (16,646) (1,349)
(e) The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 () F2018% K201743A31HFEA
March 2018 and 2017 (expressed as weighted FERBERR (AIEFHZ5))
average) are as follows: T
2018 2017
Discount rate AhIR & 2.6% 2%
Future salary increment KRR Fr &GI8 3% 3%
Return of MPF balances BB AHREIRE 3% 3%

Impact on employee benefit obligations

HERBRIRENHKE
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
B2 fRE% 18 B
Discount rate 0.25% Decrease by 4.6% Increase by 4.9%
lps 0.25% H4.6% #104.9%
Salary growth rate 0.25% Increase by 15.7% Decrease by 18.6%
FogRX 0.25% #IN15.7% R118.6%
The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change LA SRR E DT IR IR R R &
in an assumption while holding all other assumptions i AT A B *“fﬁ??ﬂ_“iﬁ( °oE
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and PR SIER KRR EE R A - — (R
changes in some of the assumptions may be HEE) R BEIEM -

correlated.
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32 BANK BORROWINGS 32 HWITER
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured RHRITENR  EIER 415,000 -
As at 31 March 2018, the bank borrowings were due for 20183318 @ R 17 E FRARSME A
repayment within three months (2017: nil). Bank borrowings AMEE (20174F < ) /3 (415,000,000
of HK$415,000,000 (2017: nil) bore interest at floating rates. I (20174 ) MRITEFILZ BT
The interest rates of the bank borrowing ranged from 1.7% KB -BITERFMNEB1.7%E1.8%
- 1.8% (2017: nil) per annum. The bank borrowings were (20174 - #&) - RITEFIABTRHE
denominated in HK$.
The carrying amount of the bank borrowings approximated EIRITERA RS - IR EI K
their fair value, as the impact of discounting was not EHit - RITERREEEAL R AEN
significant due to their short-term maturities. aHe
33 GOLD LOANS HefERw
Gold loans are measured at fair value at the end of each ESHEEDRSREPELEEBZRAR
reporting period and the change in fair value is recognised EERAnBERESNGEIBRR [ A
in “Other gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated income s, (B18)  EE | pRER -
statement.
As at 31 March 2018, gold loans of HK$140,692,000 2018F3 A31H » &4 EE140,692,000
(2017: nil) represent borrowings from banks of which the BT (20176 | RRITEF EXE
repayment amounts are pledged with gold prices and BEUAESERER  K170,591,000% 7T
HK$170,591,000 (2017: HK$437,151,000) represent (20174 : 437,151,000 ) &F L E Y
borrowings of gold which involved physical settlement. REWEEEE-
As at 31 March 2018, the gold loans are interest bearing HR2018F3A31H 2B E1%0.98%=
at 0.98% — 2.6% per annum (2017: 2.5%), with original 2.6% (20175 : 2.5% ) 2 F R HRE B R
maturity of 2 — 6 months (As at 31 March 2017: 1 - 6 BER BB KRB RE2Z6MH A (R
months) from date of inception. 2017%3H31H 1&E6{HA) -
The net unrealised gains on gold loans arising from change BEeEBEANEEHMEL 2 AERINE
in fair value of HK$2,020,000 (2017: net unrealised losses 7% % /%2,020,000/% 7T (20174 : R # 1R
of HK$9,716,000) has been recognised in “Other gains/ &5 1851 589,716,000/8 7T ) TN tR & B &=
(losses), net” in the consolidated income statement. = [Halezs/ (B518) F5] PHER-
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34 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

A
o

FLOWS

(@)

Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated

from operations:

34 FEReRER

(@) R AEEE

EEZHSHE:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Profit before income tax B PAT 1S 50 A& A 1,613,439 1,250,015
Amortisation of land use rights oMb AR S (FIEE17)
(Note 17) 9,677 8,295
Depreciation of property, plant and WE BENREITE
equipment (Note 16) (MIzE16) 117,056 122,255
Depreciation of investment BEMERE (H3518)
properties (Note 18) 1,177 942
Loss on disposal of property, HMEME  MEREHEZ
plant and equipment (Note 8) E518 (FI5E8) 1,783 1,966
Provision for long service payment RERG 2 EE
(Note 31(b)) (MI5E31(b)) 1,233 1,236
Net realised (gains)/losses on E¢BEECEER
gold loans (Note 9) (W), /ERFE
(M$5E9) (1,981) 14,815
Net unrealised (gains)/losses on BFEEBEZARER
gold loans (Note 9) (=), BEF5E
(K¥5E9) (2,020) 9,716
Finance income (Note 10) BB A (H97E10) (28,922) (23,982)
Finance costs (Note 10) W% EA (M5E10) 6,392 9,011
Fair value gains on AmRES 2 ARE
convertible bond (Note 9) Weas (B 3E9) (1,803) (2,844)
Fair value losses on derivative MESBMIAZARE
financial instruments (Note 9) &8 (FT3E9) 9 -
Share of results of associates JEAEE S AR EE
(Note 19) (MI5E19) 29,897 54,273
Operating profit before working LEECEHLE R
capital changes 1,745,937 1,445,698
Increase in rental deposits Hetkegm (15,617) (10,231)
Increase in inventories BFEIE (1,086,284) (575,338)
Increase in trade receivables, deposits, & ZEW R - 124 -
prepayments and other receivables — FE/~ 5018 & H 4th g Uk
AR I AN (54,307) (82,237)
Decrease/(increase) in amount FE Uy JE 5B A B FROE
due from/to associates wL(1gm) 22,517 23,194
Increase in trade payables, other EZEMNER BB
payables and accruals TH N FERT AR IEE N 67,291 133,891
Decrease in employee benefit EEEFEERD
obligations (Note 31(b)) (MI5E31(b)) (104) (51)
Net cash generated from operation ~— & EELE 2R & F58 679,433 934,926
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34 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 34 FEBRRER(1E)
FLOWS (Continued)
(b)  Significant non-cash transactions b) EXFBEEXRS
As at the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group H ZE2018F3A31ALFE K&
entered into gold loan contracts with physical EFUNEBEYRINESBESL
settlement amounting to HK$170,591,000 (2017: & 18170,591,000 /& JT (20174 :
HK$437,151,000). The repayment and borrowing of 437,151,000/ 7L) - BB =S
gold loans with physical settlement are included in BEENEEREFIEAER SRS
the inventories in the consolidated statement of cash FFARERERERTHNTFEE
flows as non-cash transactions. To
(€©)  Net debt reconciliation () MEBEFREHE
Below sets out an analysis of net debt and TREBINEBFELIT LG 27 E
movements in net debt for each periods presented: &R FEAE
2018 2017
Total Total
st “a
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Gold loans with physical EMREN=TSEE
settlement (Note (b)) (KizE D)) 170,591 437,151
Gold loans with cash settlement ReXilnEsEE 140,692 -
Bank borrowings RITER 415,000 -
Net debt BHeHE 726,283 437,151
Liabilities from financing activities: MEERELANBE:
Gold loans
with cash Bank
settlement borrowings Total
Rexdn
EoEE SRITER #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FTET F#ET
At 1st April 2017 ®2017%481H - - -
Net cash inflows — BeMAFRE
financing activities —REEE 140,448 415,000 555,448
Unrealised loss on gold loans B2 BECARERERE 244 - 244
At 31st March 2018 ®2018%3H31H 140,692 415,000 555,692
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35 COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

EhkiE ek

35 i
Capital commitments (a) BHFXIE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FAET
Contracted but not provided for: ERTAEREL B
— property, plant and equipment - ME -BELEE 481,712 6,692
— investment in an available- —RE-—HAIHLE
for-sale financial asset SREE 6,923 6,250
Total capital commitments contracted = &] #11B R {EH B >~
but not provided for B AR EIEREE 488,635 12,942

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, there are
no capital commitments which are authorised but not
contracted for.

As at 31 March 2018, the capital commitment of
HK$476,604,000 included above represents the
remaining consideration for the acquisition of several
commercial properties in Hong Kong with total
consideration of HK$560,710,000. The consideration
and related transaction costs paid up to 31 March
2018 are included in the non-current prepayment
(Note 23).

Commitments under operating leases
At 31 March 2018, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

(b)

H2018E3A31H k201743 A31
BB EREER R4 2 B A
e

MR2018F3A31H U L& 2 &
INEHEATE,604,000/8 TR IR AEHR(E
560,710,000 THEREE TM
EMEZ FHNRE - HE2018F3 A
STHEXMNMRERBEARZHAK
FFAERETE A (5E23) -

EEHEERIE
P2018F3HA31H N E gt L b
MEFREBEAAREE 2 LCEHEM

operating leases in respect of land and buildings as RARRZN 2 REHEER BN
follows: Ik
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Not later than one year —FR 563,598 582,736
Later than one year and not —FRETHBART
later than five years 397,699 596,527
Later than five years HBRAF - 321
961,297 1,179,584

The actual payments in respect of certain operating
leases are calculated at the higher of the minimum
commitments as noted above and the amounts
determined based on a percentage of the sales of the
related outlets.

FTHEHERRMIR LA
A A SRR PR AR B S 3K 5 HR
—EEOHMEREERIRSE
o
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37

216
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had an outstanding
financial guarantee amounting to HK$898,630,000 (2017:
HK$764,044,000) issued to several banks in respect
of 50% of the aggregated amount of bank facilities
granted to an associate. As at 31 March 2018, the
bank facilities utilised by the associate is approximately
HK$1,534,000,000. In the opinion of directors of the
Company, the fair values of these financial guarantees are
not significant at initial recognition as the directors consider
the possibilities of default by the associate is remote.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The major shareholder of the Company is Luk Fook
(Control) Limited (“Luk Fook Control”), a company
incorporated in the BVI, which directly owns 39.89% of the
Company’s shares. The remaining shares of the Company
are widely held.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and his family including Mr. WONG
Ho Lung, Danny and Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are
discretionary beneficiaries of the Wong’s Family Trust (the
“Trust”). The Trust is the beneficial owner of the entire issued
share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith
Company Limited which is the beneficial owner of 36.72%
of issued shares of Luk Fook Control. The remaining shares
of Luk Fook Control are held by various shareholders.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are directors of the Company.

(@) The Group has entered into supplementary licensing
and maintenance agreement with GS Tech Company
Limited (92% owned by the Wong’s Family Trust)
for acquiring a license to use certain computer
programmes and to receive maintenance services
fees. For the year ended 31 March 2018, license
fees of HK$3,114,000 (2017: HK$2,832,000) were
capitalised in the consolidated balance sheet and
maintenance services fees of HK$4,542,000 (2017:
HK$4,025,000) were charged in the consolidated
income statement, respectively.

37

RRER

HR2018F3A31H  AEB T T — R
BN RRIRTTRVE M FE 2 50% R & T iR1T
1T H) R (8 12 BT 75 12 1R 5898,630,0007%
7T (20174F : 764,044,000/ 7T ) ° 722018
FIASIA BERARCHARITRE S
#91,534,000,000/8 - A R Al E B R A
ZEYBERNALERVI LS ERREL
TEXN DRESRAHE D FIBRAR
BRI BEME K o

FREALTZES
$Z\\jZI;zHX$7%/\7EB(? &) BR
A ([AEERD EF??EZ’EE%E’
ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁkiz RC-EEBELRAD
39.89% %17 ° $Qﬁ%?ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ °

HEBEERERE (BEELAELER
wmHFNE) AERRKE ([5:5E])
ZEEZMA ERAERERERTA
RARIZHMERTRAZERBEEA &
AHEKRERTAERAREREG NEIE
B&36.72% B B 1A% 17 o /N fR I AR #4 T A%
MEBEEERREE -

BREELE BERTERERF

/NAY

AEERHSEEANEMABRA
A (H2% i m M= KRR Gt
BRI BN EE® TGS
ESETEMER RWENEER
B R - B 220183 531
HIEFE 7% 2 H3,114,000
7 7t (20174 : 2,832,000 7T )
RIFEEEBBRENLREE
iR 7 &4,542,0005 7T (20174 :
4,025,000 70) ERERE Bm KA
Bk -

(a)
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

37 MEBEALZXS (&)

(b) The Group has entered into a lease agreement of (b) ZAE&E B New Merit Corporation
a premise with tenancy period of 36 months with Limited (A EREE LE RS INRE
New Merit Corporation Limited, an entity jointly BUE=FHRAZESNERE)FIY
controlled by Mr Wong Wai Sheung and other two —EYERNEE W - 78 B A361E
independent third parties. As at 31 March 2018, rental A #2018F3A31H  ENEGAEE
deposits of HK$2,550,000 (2017: HK$2,550,000) EBEXREARELR 2,550,000
were recognised in the consolidated balance sheet. 7 (20174 : 2,550,000/ 7T ) - & &
For the year ended 31 March 2018, rental expenses 20183 ABIHILFE B RE&EAR
of HK$8,953,000 (2017: HK$8,953,000) were B & R &R 28,953,000 7T
recognised in the consolidated income statement. (20174 : 8,953,000/ L) * % X 5
This transaction was carried out at terms mutually Ty MERART 4975 B 1810 T MG FGE
agreed between the respective parties. 1T°
Transactions with associates (c) HERELFZXS

2018 2017

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

ihr=a FHET FHET

Sales of goods HEEm () 35,756 42,535

Subcontracting fee paid BENSEE (i) 20,904 15,920

Rental income HaBA (i 3,497 1,442

Management fee income BERBERA () 755 751

Purchase of goods B/E 0] 11,436 4,040

Licensing fee paid ENmEEBER () 352 341

Interest income on the loan to BRTF—REE QR

an associate 2 FBUA 10 790 400

Notes: e -

(i) Sales of goods, subcontracting fee paid, rental income,
purchases of goods, licensing fee paid and management fee
income were charged at terms based on mutual agreements.

(ii) As mentioned in Note 36, the Group had financial guarantee
amounting to HK$ 898,630,000 (2017: HK$764,044,000)
issued to several banks in respect of bank facilities granted to
an associate.

0) RARAE B 1 3 B 2 IR SR 2 35
EEm ENSBRER HeRA B
5 ENREEBRERREEBIRA -

(i NP ESEAT#L A EE B T —
kNS E’Jfﬂfmﬂéﬁ?&ﬁﬁfﬁéﬁ
Y B 7% ¥ (R £898,630,000/%8 7T (2017
4 1 764,044,000/ 7T ) ©
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 37 FIZEALTZE S (§8)
(d) Year-end balances (d) FHRER
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Loan to an associate EXRT—REE QT
- non-current (Note 20) —JEBNET (B 7E20) 94,927 90,830
Loan to an associate BRT —REE QA
— current (Note 20) — BN EA (Bff5F20) 43,190 20,000
Amount due from an FEU — K H & A R BRIA
associate (Note 19(i)) (PFEE19() ) 13,173 33,340
Amount due to an JER — R & AR ERIA
associate (Note 19() (P 5E19() ) (3,555) (1,995)
(e) Key management compensation e) EEEREME

Key management includes directors (executive
and non-executive) and senior management of the
Group. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

TREEBEREAKREES (W17
FOFATES) RafEEAR 3L
BERFENHENIREEREZ
BT :

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Salaries, allowances and e EUREDMAZ
benefits-in-kinds 64,437 63,643
Performance and discretionary BRBEWIBER LA
bonuses 35,443 26,572
Contributions to pension plan RIREETEIHER 570 553
100,450 90,768
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 38 HEMERER
Subsequent to the year end, the Group entered into FHEBE AEEITVHERERRR"
provisional sale and purchase agreement to acquire several NBERERBEBEEACEEHOARE
properties in PRC with total consideration and related 299,000,000 7T 2 & H B &Y & T4 % -

expenses amounting to approximately RMB299,000,000.
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39 SUBSIDIARIES 39 MELTE
At 31 March 2018, the Company had the following principal M2018F3A31H KRR ZE BB A
subsidiaries: AR
Proportion of
Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FRRER
301 BRTRE/ FiisgER
-1 B TERH EREXEE  FORRSLERLA id7]
Directly Indirectly
HiE L
Luk Fook Investment (B.V.) The BVI Investment holding HK$2 100 - -
Limited EBAARNE REER BT
China Gems Laboratory Limited Hong Kong Authentication of gemstones HK$2 - 100 -
HEREEERLOERAR BE BRER 28T
Fancy Trend Investment Limited Hong Kong Property holding HK$12,100 - 100 -
RRREBRAT BE RAENE 12,100 7T
Ice Collection (International) Limited ~ Hong Kong Retalling of gold and HK$100 - 100 -
KE (BBR)BRAR B jewellery products 100570
KELHERTER
Jewellworld.com Limited The BVI Investment holding, and HK$8,000,000 - 51 49
KEHRBVI)ERAT EBEBREE  provision of software 8,000,000/ T
development and services
relating to internet
REBR REGHHERES
Rl
Jewellworld.com Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, and HK$100 - 51 49
GEHR (F8)ERAR B provision of software 1008 7T
development and services
relating to internet
RERRG REBIHERLF
EBBEBRS
Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited Hong Kong Gold bullion trading HK$14,000,000 - 100 -
NEERBRAF Bk BRI R 14,000,0007% 7T
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39 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39 MEATE ()
Proportion of
Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FRRER
BMEI/ BRTRE/ FrisiER
&8 BB TERE BEREREE  FORRBTERLAH i4:]
Directly Indirectly
EE L3
Luk Fook Holdings Company Limited  Hong Kong Provision of management HK$2 - 100 -
NEEEBRAR BA services to group companies 2B

and wholesale distribution of
gold and jewellery products

REEERBTEELR R H

DHEESRHEER
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Australia Retailing of gold and jewellery AU$100,000 - 100 -
(Australia) Pty Limited B products in Australia 100,000
mﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁ
GEEMTEXE
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (HK) ~ Hong Kong Retalling of gold and HK$100 - 100 -
Company Limited BB jewellery products 1008 7T
NERE ST (BB)BRAR B RGEERTEEN
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Macau Retailing of gold and jewellery MOP1,000,000 - 100 -
(Macao) Company Limited i products in Macau 1,000,000 7T
NERE 21T R ERAR REFRHEEL RAEER
TEENK
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Canada Retalling of gold and jewellery CA$100 - 100 -
(Canada) Limited mex products in Canada 100MEART
iNIIEYN %ﬁ%ﬁﬁ &
GEERTELEH
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Singapore Retailing of gold and jewellery $$1,000,000 - 100 -
(Singapore) Pte. Limited g products in Singapore 1,000,000%7 N3 7T
RIMEREES R
KREEMTEEH
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39 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39 MEATE ()
Proportion of
Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FHBRER
gL/ BRTRE/ FiisER
-1 BB TERH EREREE  FORASLERLA id:]
Directly Indirectly
HiE M
Luk Fook Jewellery & USA Retailing of gold and jewellery UsD100 - 100 -
Goldsmith (USA) Company Limited 5 products in USA 100% 7T
REBREEER
GEEMTERE
Luk Fook 3D Management Company ~ The BVI Investment holding HK$1 - 100 -
Limited RBARARMEE REAER 1T
NEDEEEBRAT
Max Forum Development Limited Hong Kong Property holding HK$100 - 100 -
ERERERAT BE BENE 1007
Maxigood Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Manufacturing and wholesale HK$3,000,000 - 100 -
(note 29ii) BE distribution of jewellery 3,000,000 7
ERECEBRDA (M9 products

RERMENHEAREER

BMAEEHBRAR Mainland China  Manufacturing, wholesale, HK$60,000,000 - 100 -
HE N, retaling of gold and jewellery 60,000,000/ 70

products and provision of
quality examination services in
Mainland China

RPER R ERE HE-T
EESRFEERNREME
BEETRE

BRE(EM) athERA A Mainland China  Manufacturing of jewellery HK$8,000,000 - 100 -

IR, products in Mainland China 8,000,000/ 7
RABEAHEREER
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39 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39 MEBATE ()
Proportion of
Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FRRER
BMEI/ BRTRE/ FrisiER
&8 BB TERE BEREREE  FORRBTERLAH i4:]
Directly Indirectly
EE L3
BMFIREHBRAR+ Mainland China  Property holding in HK$35,000,000 - 100 -
HER Mainland China 35,000,0007 7
RABENEENE
NMEEA (L) BRDA Mainland China ~ Wholesale of polished diamond USD200,000 - 100 -
HEIR in Mainland China 200,000% 7T

R ERB R BETEZER

NERE (LR BR AT Mainland China  Retailing of gold and jewellery HK$29,750,000 - 100 -
R E R products in Bejing, Mainland 29,750,000/ 7
China
ReER R HEEE R
GEERTEEK

BMABEHREABRAR Mainland China  Trademark licensing, brand HK$2,000,000 - 100 -
HE N building and promotion in 2,000,000 7
Mainland China
R B R 2 AR RE
BB RHEE RN

NRREEHE

\M

| &Y BRAF+ Mainland China  Trademark licensing, brand HK$8,000,000 - 100 -
HE N building and promotion in 8,000,000/ 7T
Mainland China
RAEA R EEERE
ElRRERERRE
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39 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39 MEBATE ()
Proportion of
Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FHBRER
gL/ BRITRE/ FsEER
-1 BB TERH EREREE  FORASLERLA id:]
Directly Indirectly
HiE M
NESmRE (EB) BB AR Mainland China ~ Manufacturing, wholesale of HK$50,000,000 - 100 -
RE R gold and jewellery productsin 50,000,000/ 7
Mainland China
RAEAD R EER
HEESRKEER
NEHREEH (EB) BB AR Mainland China  Retailing of gold and jewellery HK$50,000,000 - 100 -
RE R products in Mainland China 50,000,000/ 7
RPEREREES RTEEM
TEEB
NEEHRE (ER)BBRAA+ Mainland China  Trademark licensing, brand HK$3,000,000 - 100 -
RE R building, promotion 3,000,000/ 7T

and provision of quality
examination services in
Mainland China
ROERBEEEERE:
EIRRHERREIAR
RUEESETRE

EEABHRKENIERAR+  Manland China  Manufacturing of gold products RMB5,000,000 - 100 -
RER in Mainland China AR 15,000,007
RABEAHEESER

EEHERGEEHERAR Mainland China ~ Wholesale of polished diamond ~ RMB10,000,000 - 100 -
REIR and jewellery productsin -~ AR #10,000,0007C
Mainland China
RAER R EEITEERR
KEEM
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39 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39 MEBATE ()
Proportion of
Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FHRER
BRmL/ BRTRE/ FisHiER
£ B3T3 TERH EMEFHE FORMBLERILA :4:]
Directly Indirectly
Ef M
NERE (BEM)BRDA Mainland China  Manufacturing, wholesale of RMB10,500,000 - 100 -
RE R gold and jewellery products AR #10,500,0007C
in Mainland China
WA E R HE R
HEBESRUEER
BN B RGEERAR Mainland China  Manufacturing of gold products RMBS5,000,000 - 51 49
BRI, in Mainland China AR #5,000,0007C
RABENHEELER
EERERERHARAT Mainland China  Retailing of gold and jewellery RMBS50,000,000 - 51 49
REIR, products in Mainland China A &#50,000,0007%
%ﬁlWﬁﬁ?ﬁéﬁ
GEERTER
ARABHREBRAR+ Mainland China  Retailing of gold and jewellery RMB5,000,000 - 100 -
hERM products in Mainland China A & #5,000,0007C
RPBEREREEES R
GEERTEER
EE RETHEARAD Mainland China  Electronic retailing of gold and RMBS5,000,000 - 100 -
R E R jewellery products in ARHE
Mainland China 5,000,0007T
RPBERREEES R

KEERETEERK
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39 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

/\‘/T\

39 MBAF ()

Proportion of

Particulars of ordinary

issued share shares held

Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-

incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling

Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests

FHBRER

gL/ BRTRE/ FiisER

-1 BB TERH EREREE  FORASLERLA id:]

Directly Indirectly
HiE M

Luk Fook Prestige (Malaysia) Malaysia Retailing of gold and jewellery MYR2,000,000 - 100 -
SDN. BHD. SRAD products in Malaysia 2,000,000
RERERREELR BREELE

GEEMTERE

Luk Fook Optical Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Retailing of optical products in HK$15,000,000 - 783 21.7

FEREERAR E Hong Kong 15,000,000/ 7
REBREREERTELH

Bright Bilion Corporation Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 -
[EEITARRAR 0 REBRENE 1007

Green Rich Corporation Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 -
ERERAA Bk REBRENE 1007 7T

Talent Up Corporation Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 -
HEERAF 0 REBRENE 1007

Ultra Power Corporation Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 -
HEBRAT Bk REBRENE 1007 7T

+ The subsidiaries are established as wholly foreign-owned enterprises + ZEWB AR ARTBEANMA Y 2 ZINE D

in Mainland China.

Unless otherwise stated, all the above companies operate

principally in Hong Kong.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

BRrBRAEIN

BEREXRT-

BRABRBHEER

EERR ERAIIARAMBERREE
BAFEXEBRFELBERAEEE

EFEZEERNS

%%WL\EJ }ET/\/ \'T‘H_?/

MEARZHIBTECERBR IR
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40 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 40 FLAFIZEEARE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets FERBEFE
_ Interests in subsidiaries RUBRR s S Dol 3,138,226
Current assets mEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHT B A R BRIB 2,928,711 2,228,711
Cash and bank balances H & RIRTTA 5,165 133,372
________________________________________________________ 2,933,876 = 2,362,083
Total assets HEE 6,072,101 5,500,308
EQUITY Ega
Capital and reserve attributable to EAFRBBEA
the equity holders of the Company B4 & R i 0
Share capital [N 58,710 58,710
Share premium B 3 (B 2,494,040 2,494,040
Reserves (Note a) e (FisEa) 1,049,758 998,971
________________________________________________________ 3,602,508 3,551,721
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities mBAR
Accruals FEST SRR 1,398 1,434
Amount due to subsidiaries FEAS BT /BB 2 B 5 IE 2,327,503 1,947,153
Gold loans =eEE 140,692 -
________________________________________________________ 2469503 1,048,587
Total equity and liabilities Em Rk B EARE 6,072,101 5,500,308

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the ARARIEESEE %EEE%%AEAZOmiGH 27
Board of Directors on 27 June 2018 and was signed onits B EN KA TIHEERRER
behalf.

Wong Wai Sheung Chan So Kuen
HER FR%IR
Director Director

EE EE
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40 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Note (a) Reserves movement of the Company

40 ERFZRERRR (A)

Bt i () 728 1 s 2

Capital
Contributed  redemption Retained
surplus reserve earnings Total
ERER ZEFREOGEH FREEH HE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FTHET FTH#T FTH#T
For the year ended E FE20185F
31 March 2018 SAS1ALEE
At 1 April 2017 2017564 H1H 298,687 200 700,084 998,971
Profit for the year F R - - 696,605 696,605
2016/17 final dividend paid & 142016/17F
REARE - - (234,843) (234,843)
2016/17 special dividend paid B 2016/174 &
R Rl 8 - - (88,066) (88,066)
2017/18 interim dividend paid B 12017/18F &
HEARR S - - (205,488) (205,488)
2017/18 special dividend paid 2 2017/185 &
KRl & - - (117,421) (117,421)
At 31 March 2018 R2018%F3A31H 298,687 200 750,871 1,049,758
Representing: %
Reserves (excluded FE (T RERK
proposed dividend) KE) 298,687 200 427,962 726,849
Proposed dividend BREE - - 322,909 322,909
At 31 March 2018 A2018%3A31H 298,687 200 750,871 1,049,758
For the year ended B E2017F
31 March 2017 SAS1ALEE
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4A18 298,687 200 649,069 947,956
Profit for the year FER A - - 696,333 696,833
2015/16 final dividend paid 2 142015/165F &
RER B - - (199,617) (199,617)
2015/16 special dividend paid B 12015/16F £
R BIAR S, - - (123,292) (123,292)
2016/17 interim dividend paid 2 2016/174 &
HERR S - - (170,261) (170,261)
2016/17 special dividend paid B 2016/174F &
R Rl B - - (152,648) (152,648)
At 31 March 2017 A2017%3A31H 298,687 200 700,084 998,971
Representing: %
Reserves (excluded B (TR ERIR
proposed dividend) B8 298,687 200 377,175 676,062
Proposed dividend BRE B - - 322,909 322,909
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3A31H 298,687 200 700,084 998,971
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BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Note (a) Reserves movement of the Company (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange for all the issued ordinary
shares of Luk Fook Investment (B.V.l.) Limited and the value
of net assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired by
the Company during the Group’s reorganisation in 1997.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders,
provided that the Company would, after the payment of
dividends out of the contributed surplus, be able to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or the realisable value
of the Company’s assets would thereby not be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities, its issued share capital and
its share premium. At the Group level, the contributed
surplus is reclassified into its component of reserves of the
underlying subsidiaries.

40 FLAFIZHRERRR (K)

fifE() AABIREES (B)

RRATF 2 EBBBIEARRNFRRZIRLUK
Fook Investment (B.V.l.) Limited% &B 2 3
TEBBRMETRG 2 EEEERRFR
19974F A & (B S AH BRI P U BB AR RA B 38
RAEIZEEFEME 2 B - RIEERE
(IOBIFE R ADE) (KIER]) - BB AR
AREE TARE - AR R BB BRSNS
BB BENRBEIHRINES: K
KRRz BEEABRERLE T DRE
B HEBFHTRARERMNEE 28
M AEEEEMS  LEHRRBRERN
DEASHBMB AR 2 FE#ESD -

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S
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